
 

 

BERLIN MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
Meeting Agenda 

 
Berlin Town Hall 
10 William Street 

Monday, February 26, 2024 
 
 
6:30 PM EXECUTIVE CLOSED SESSION – Conference Room 

STATUTORY AUTHORITY TO CLOSED SESSION, General Provisions Article, §3-305(b) (1) To discuss the 
appointment, employment, assignment, promotion, discipline, demotion, compensation, removal, 
resignation, or performance evaluation of appointees, employees, or officials over whom this public 
body has jurisdiction; or any other personnel matter that affects one or more specific individuals. 

 
7:00 PM  CALL TO ORDER, REGULAR SESSION – Council Chambers 

1.  7:05 PM CONSENT AGENDA: 
  a) Approval of Minutes for: 

      1.  Special Open Session of 2.05.24 
       2.  Regular Session of 2.12.24 

       
2.  7:10 PM ITEM(S) FOR APPROVAL:  

A public comment period will now be offered after discussion by the Mayor and Council for each Item for 
Approval. Any person who may wish to speak will be given two (2) minutes or such time as may be 
deemed appropriate by the Mayor. 

a) Motion 2024-11: Approval of Chamber of Commerce Alcohol Permit Request for 2024 Events – 
Executive Director Ryan Nellans 

b) Motion 2024-12: Approval for Burley Oak Brewing Company to sell alcohol to be consumed on 
premises at the Berlin farmers market and during events approved by the Mayor and Council for 
the sale/consumption of alcohol – Burley Oak Brewing Company Director of Sales Matt Burrier    

 
3. 7:25 PM PRESENTATION(S):  

a) BEACON Strategic Plan: Summary of Current Progress – BEACON Director John Hickman & 
Associate Director Jessica Iacona 

b) Town of Berlin Financial Overview: FY2024 6-Month Review – Finance Director Natalie Saleh 
c) PJM Quarterly Report – Electric Utility Director Tim Lawrence 
d)  Town of Berlin 2023 Annual Report & 2024 Goals – Mayor Zack Tyndall 

 
4. 8:00 PM DISCUSSION: Step & Grade System for FY2025 with COLA and Projections – Human  

Resources Director Kelsey Jensen 
 
5. 8:20 PM FIRST READING – Ordinance 2024-01: Mayor and Council of Berlin Infrastructure  

Bonds, 2024 Series A – Mayor Zack Tyndall (Public Hearing will be held on Monday,  
March 11, 2024). 

 
6. 8:25 PM ANNOUNCEMENT(S):  

a) Tax Rate Public Hearing Date – Mayor Zack Tyndall 
b) Poll Vote Results for Portion of Opioid Settlement – Mayor Zack Tyndall 

 
7. 8:30 PM REPORTS: Town Administrator’s Report, Departmental Reports   
 
 

1 



 

 

To access the Meeting via Facebook, please click the blue Facebook icon at the top of any page on www.berlinmd.gov, 
or type @townofberlinmd in the Facebook search bar. QR code links to online packet. Anyone having questions about 

the meetings mentioned above or needing special accommodations should contact Town Administrator Mary Bohlen at 
(410) 641-2770. Written materials in alternate formats for persons with disabilities are made available upon request.  

TTY users dial 7-1-1 in the State of Maryland/outside Maryland dial 1-800-735-2258. 

8. 8:40 PM COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Any person who may wish to speak on a matter at the Regular Session may be heard during COMMENTS 
FROM THE PUBLIC for a period of five (5) minutes or such time as may be deemed appropriate by the 
Mayor. Anyone wishing to be heard shall state their name, street name, and subject on which they wish to 
speak. 

 
9. 8:45 PM COMMENTS FROM THE COUNCIL 
 
10. 8:50 PM COMMENTS FROM THE MAYOR 
 
11. 8:55 PM  COMMENTS FROM THE PRESS 
 
12.  9:00 PM ADJOURNMENT 

2 

http://www.berlinmd.gov/


Special Open Session 2.05.24 

Page 1 of 5 
 

         
BERLIN MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

Special Open Session  
Meeting Minutes 

Monday, February 5, 2024 
    

 
 
5:00 PM  REGULAR SESSION – Berlin Town Hall Council Chambers 
 
Present: Mayor Zackery Tyndall, Vice President Dean Burrell, Councilmembers Steve Green, Shaneka 
Nichols, and Jack Orris. 
Absent: Councilmember Jay Knerr 
Staff Present: Town Administrator Mary Bohlen, Town Attorney David Gaskill, Finance Director 
Natalie Saleh, Public Works Director Jimmy Charles, Electric Utility Director Tim Lawrence, Mayor’s 
Executive Assistant Sara Gorfinkel, and Special Projects Administrator Kate Daub. 
 
This meeting was also broadcast live via Facebook. Following a moment of silence and the Pledge of 
Allegiance, Mayor Tyndall called the meeting to order at approximately 5:00 PM.  
 
1. Opening Statement 

Mayor Tyndall announced the purpose of the meeting was to review a potential bond issuance for 
the Town of Berlin. He explained that a $750,000 Capital Project line item was included in the 
fiscal year (FY) 2024 Electric Utility budget for AMI Smart Meters. He clarified that Electric 
Department crews are recording electric meter readings manually as the current mechanical 
meters and meter readers are outdated and no longer effective. Mayor Tyndall reported that 
electric meter readings are recorded on paper and manually keyed into the billing system 
monthly; he acknowledged the current method for reporting is not reliable and is more prone to 
error.  
 
He continued by saying the Finance Department contacted the Maryland Community 
Development Administration (CDA) to inquire about the possibility of issuing general obligations 
bonds to fund the purchase of Electric AMI meters as well as adding the construction of a new 
Public Works Facility which he said would be classified as a General Fund project.  

 
2.   Discussion 

Ms. Saleh stated the total amount of $3.8 million to be borrowed through the issuing of a bond is 
not to exceed that amount. She explained the two projects will have different amortization 
periods based on the useful life of each project; she reported the AMI metering project would be 
financed for twenty years or less pending determination by the manufacturer and additional 
information from the CDA, and the Public Works facility would be financed for thirty years. Ms. 
Saleh noted the bonds’ fixed interest rates would be set in April 2024 with semiannual payments. 
However, in the event the town determines it will not utilize or need the full amount, Ms. Saleh 
said the total can be adjusted as they move further into April. She made the Mayor and Council 
aware the application deadline to participate in the April bond issuance is February 9, 2024, 
adding that authorization from the Council is needed to move forward.  

Agenda Item 1 a) 1

3 



Special Open Session 2.05.24 

Page 2 of 5 
 

Ms. Saleh briefly reviewed the intended bond payoff plan. She noted that the Electric Fund 
estimated an annual debt service of $80,000 based on a projected 5% interest rate.  She 
continued by saying debt repayments would be covered by the operational revenues of the 
Electric Fund, adding that the Electric Fund is currently applying for grants for the project. Ms. 
Saleh made the Council aware that a discussion would be had later to determine how to include 
the costs of the AMI Project in the Electric Rate Study.  
 
She reported the General Fund had an estimated annual debt service of $185,000 and debt 
repayment for a new Public Works facility would be addressed in several ways which include 
allocating LIG (Local Impact Grant) funds to debt services, allocating set amounts from impact 
fees, as well as securing the debt service if needed. She reminded the Council that the interest 
rate would be fixed for the entire term of the loan, adding the town would not be permitted to 
prepay or refinance the loan should interest rates decrease in the first ten years. If awarded, Ms. 
Saleh said the town would be required to make the first payment in October, however, she 
clarified the payment would be interest only. Lastly, she stated the next payment would be due in 
April 2025 and include principal and interest.  
 
Councilmember Green acknowledged he is not prepared to determine a repayment mechanism 
but said the timeline would allow the town to decide how to best handle the General Fund 
repayment. He asked how the $2.8 million budget number for a Public Works facility came about; 
Ms. Saleh answered that it was clear the original FY24 budgeted amount of $400,000 would not 
cover the cost of an all-inclusive facility. As she acknowledged the amended budget amount for 
the project is on the higher end, Ms. Saleh said the town would not be required to spend the full 
amount should design costs come in lower.   
 
Vice President Burrell asked how the bonds and proposed projects would impact town operations 
and the citizens of the town. Public Works Director Jimmy Charles said a new facility would help 
to provide a proper place to store and maintain equipment. He continued by saying a new facility 
would allow for adequate office space, as well as space for employee locker rooms and showers 
for his crews. Mr. Charles acknowledged the amended budget amount for the project is 
substantial, but he reminded the Council the cost also includes adding water and electric service 
to all three parcels of the property.  
 
Electric Utility Department Director Tim Lawrence reported it is his understanding the town of 
Berlin is the only electric utility municipality in the state of Maryland that has not made the 
transition to AMI metering. He indicated the change to AMI would allow the utility customer to 
access a portal in which they can analyze their energy usage every fifteen minutes. Mr. Lawrence 
said that AMI metering would help to improve the accuracy of meter readings and reduce the 
need for re-reads. He recognized this would help the town save the wear and tear of vehicles, as 
well as emissions output. Lastly, Mr. Lawrence said AMI meters are equipped to provide 
notifications when an issue is detected such as a meter overheating and allow for remote 
disconnect should a meter need to be shut down.  
 
Councilmember Nichols returned to the importance of providing an appropriate facility for the 
Public Works Department. She emphasized the significance of providing staff with necessary 
amenities given the safety aspect of their role and the handling of hazardous waste. 

4 



Special Open Session 2.05.24 

Page 3 of 5 
 

Councilmember Orris asked to confirm which parcel was being considered for the location of the 
facility; Mayor Tyndall answered it would be a combination of parcels 191 and 410.  
Councilmember Orris asked to clarify the total debt amount the town carries for the property. Ms. 
Saleh stated a sizable portion of the debt remains; however, she noted the bonds carried over 
have very favorable interest rates. Mayor Tyndall added it is his understanding the total debt 
service principal and interest is less than $190,000 per year on the General Fund.  
 
Councilmember Orris referred to Ms. Saleh’s staff report included in the meeting packet and 
asked to confirm that $500,000 remains budgeted for Town Hall renovations; Ms. Saleh 
confirmed. He then asked if it would behoove the town to keep the $400,000 budgeted for a 
Public Works facility and decrease the amount of the bond to $2.4 million; Ms. Bohlen responded 
by saying they do not believe Town Hall renovations can be done for just $500,000 and the 
$400,000 could be reallocated to support the project if needed but said they anticipate the $2.8 
million for a new Public Works facility will likely end up being less. 
 
Councilmember Orris asked to confirm the number of EDUs that may be needed for the new 
facility; Mayor Tyndall answered they would not be able to determine the number until a design 
was prepared. Councilmember Orris asked for clarity regarding the bond financing and the 
possibility of using casino revenues as part of the bond payoff plan. Mayor Tyndall explained 
there would be a change of expenditures, adding that the objective would be to slowly shift the 
cost of LEOPS from the LDC Multi-Year plan to the Public Works department. Ms. Saleh added 
that they would need to find a solution to pick up the differential from LEOPS, but it would allow 
the town to deviate from fully funding LEOPS with casino revenues. Mayor Tyndall noted there 
may be an avenue to overcome some of the costs that have been discussed if the Council can 
come to a consensus on the repurposing of parcel 57. 
 
Ms. Bohlen announced a first reading of the CDA bond ordinance would take place at the Mayor 
and Council Regular Session meeting on February 26, 2024, and the Public Hearing would take 
place at the Regular Session meeting on March 11, 2024. She explained the purpose of the 
ordinance is to allow the referendum period of an ordinance which is twenty days to be 
completed in time to meet the next CDA deadline. 
 
As Councilmember Knerr was absent from the meeting, Mayor Tyndall reported that they met to 
discuss the matter of the bond, along with Mayor’s Executive Assistant Sara Gorfinkel and Ms. 
Saleh; he said Councilmember Knerr was supportive and agreed with moving forward.  
 

3.   Item for Approval:  
a)  Motion 2024-05: Approve Application to the Community Development Administration 2024 

Local Government Infrastructure Financing Program  
Before moving forward with the motion for approval, Councilmember Green asked to ensure 
that all five points noted in the memo written by Ms. Lindsay Rader, Esquire on behalf of Funk 
and Bolton Law Group were covered; Ms. Rader and Funk and Bolton Law Group serve as legal 
consultants to the town on the Proposed Participation in Maryland Community Development 
Administration’s Local Government Infrastructure Financing Program. Ms. Bohlen confirmed 
that all points were addressed in the motion.  

5 



Special Open Session 2.05.24 

Page 4 of 5 
 

On the motion of Councilmember Orris, seconded by Councilmember Nichols, Motion 2024-
05: Approve Application to the Community Development Administration 2024 Local 
Government Infrastructure Financing Program was approved by the following vote:  

Name Counted toward 
Quorum 

 

 Aye No Abstain Recused Absent 

Dean Burrell, VP X     

Steve Green X     

Jay Knerr     X 

Shaneka Nichols X     

Jack Orris X     

Voting Tally 4    1 

 
4. Comments from the Public 

Resident Laurette Major of Kenwood Court asked how many staff members part of the Public 
Works Department would be affected by the new facility; Mr. Charles answered there are 
currently ten employees in his department. Mayor Tyndall added that the total does not include 
seasonal staff the town hires in the summer months. Ms. Majors asked to confirm the number of 
staff members who serve as meter readers would be affected by the transition to AMI meters; 
Mr. Lawrence answered he has ten crewmembers who serve as meter readers, adding that it 
takes them roughly two and a half days to read all meters manually. In addition, Ms. Saleh stated 
she has a Billing Supervisor in the Finance Department who enters all the data collected into the 
billing computer system. Ms. Bohlen clarified that the Electric Department does not have 
personnel designated as meter readers; rather, she said the meters are read by department staff 
for two days each month. 
 
Ms. Majors asked if there was a timeline for the purchase of AMI Electric meters should the bond 
application be approved; Ms. Saleh responded by saying the town is required to go through the 
Request for Proposal (RFP) process before purchasing the meters. Ms. Majors acknowledged that 
the smart water meter project took years to come to fruition and shared that she fears the same 
will happen with the new electric meters; Ms. Bohlen clarified that the water meter project took 
time because the town did not have adequate funding. She said that funding would be in place to 
move forward with the electric meters and development of the RFP should the bond be 
approved. Ms. Majors asked if the town anticipated an increase or decrease in the bill amount to 
residents for electricity as a result of the new meters; Ms. Saleh said she expects the amounts to 
vary because the readings would be more accurate. Mayor Tyndall added the town will not 
remain stagnant and hopes to use the data generated by the new meters to develop cost-saving 
metrics that benefit electric utility customers.  
 
Ms. Majors asked if the town should pause on applying for the bond until the following year given 
the current interest rates. Ms. Saleh explained there are specific windows for the issuance of 
bonds, adding the interest rate improves as a result of the number of municipalities and 
governmental agencies that participate in the pool. She also noted that CDA moves forward with 
the Program based on the number of entities interested in proceeding; there was no guarantee 
that the program would be made available every year. 

6 



Special Open Session 2.05.24 

Page 5 of 5 
 

5. Comments from the Council  
Vice President Burrell thanked everyone for the well wishes during his time away from the 
Council.  
 
Councilmember Nichols said Vice President Burrell’s absence was duly noted. She shared that she 
believes the town has taken a positive step toward moving projects forward that the Council has 
discussed for some time.  
 
Councilmember Orris welcomed Vice President Burrell back to the group. 
 
Councilmember Green said it was good to see Vice President Burrell back. He said he believes 
allowing public comment after each item for approval has been beneficial and something the 
Council should be proud of.   
 

6. Comments from the Mayor 
Mayor Tyndall acknowledged that the $3.8 million request may seem far-fetched, and said the 
town is confident that there is a pathway to be able to pay for the project discussed and can 
overcome the additional obligations through cost-saving methods and partnerships regarding 
how the town spends its tax dollars.  
 

7.   Comments from the Press – none. 
 

8.  Adjournment: 
On the motion of Vice President Burrell, seconded by Councilmember Nichols, the Mayor and 
Council meeting was adjourned at approximately 5:55 PM.  

Name Counted toward 
Quorum 

 

 Aye No Abstain Recused Absent 

Dean Burrell, VP X     

Steve Green X     

Jay Knerr     X 

Shaneka Nichols X     

Jack Orris X     

Voting Tally 4    1 

 
Respectfully Submitted,  

 
 

Kate Daub 
Special Projects Administrator 

7 



Reg. Session 2.12.24 

Page 1 of 8 
 

         
BERLIN MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

Meeting Minutes 
Monday, February 12, 2024 

    
 

 
7:00 PM  REGULAR SESSION – Berlin Town Hall Council Chambers 
 
Present: Mayor Zackery Tyndall, Vice President Dean Burrell, Councilmembers Steve Green, Jay Knerr, and 
Jack Orris. 
Absent: Councilmember Shaneka Nichols 
Staff Present: Town Administrator Mary Bohlen, Town Attorney David Gaskill, Economic & Community 
Development Director Ivy Wells, Electric Utility Director Tim Lawrence, Water Resources Director Jamey 
Latchum, Police Chief Arnold Downing, Police Lieutenant Robert Fisher, Finance Director Natalie Saleh, Public 
Works Director Jimmy Charles, Human Resources Director Kelsey Jensen, Mayor’s Executive Assistant Sara 
Gorfinkel, and Administrative Assistant Kate Daub. 
 
This meeting was also broadcast live via Facebook. Following a moment of silence and the Pledge of Allegiance, 
Mayor Tyndall called the meeting to order at approximately 7:05 PM.  
 
1. Consent Agenda: 

A) Approval of Minutes for: 
1.  Regular Session of 1.22.24 
 
On the motion of Councilmember Orris, second Councilmember Knerr, the Consent Agenda was 
approved by the following vote:  

Name Counted toward 
Quorum 

 

 Aye No Abstain Recused Absent 

Dean Burrell, VP X     

Steve Green X     

Jay Knerr X     

Shaneka Nichols     X 

Jack Orris X     

Voting Tally 4    1 

 
2.  Presentation: Proclamation 2024-01 – Month of February as National Black History Month 

Mayor Tyndall proclaimed the month of February as National Black History Month. He said the town of 
Berlin pays homage to the rich history and contributions of Black Americans, adding the town of Berlin 
celebrates the profound and evolving impact of Black artistry on our culture, national identity, and social 
movements that have helped the Berlin community. 
 

 

Agenda Item 1 a) 2

8 



Reg. Session 2.12.24 

Page 2 of 8 
 

3. Item(s) For Approval: 
a)  Motion 2024-06: Approval of Special Event Application for Record Store Day on Saturday, April 20, 2024 

Economic and Community Development Director Ivy Wells made the Council aware that Record Store 
Day has been nationally celebrated for several years to honor artists and their music. She stated the 
event was proposed by the owners of Sound Storm Records during a recent Merchant Meeting and said 
the idea was well-received by other business owners in attendance. Ms. Wells continued by saying she 
presented the event to the Berlin Arts and Entertainment Advisory Board who were also in support of 
the event. To ensure the event would not be taxing on Town resources, she noted that the organizers of 
Record Store Day have decided to hold the event from 11 AM to 3 PM, adding that other downtown 
businesses plan to host events in their shops. Ms. Wells clarified that road closures are included in the 
event request, specifically portions of Pitts Street and Gay Street, between the hours of 8 AM and 5 PM.  

 
Councilmember Knerr asked if the event would be of any cost to the town; Ms. Wells answered no. 
Councilmember Knerr asked if vendors would be expected to pay a fee to participate; Ms. Wells 
confirmed that vendors would be expected to pay the town a vendor fee to set up. Councilmember 
Knerr asked why the owner of Sound Storm Records was not taking the lead on the planning of the 
event; Ms. Wells said the planning is a shared combination of efforts between the owners of Sound 
Storm Records, Cozy Recording Studio, and the town of Berlin.  
 
Vice President Burrell asked if Record Store Day was included as part of the annual list of town events 
that was approved by the Council in October 2023; Ms. Wells answered no, adding it was a last-minute 
addition that was brought to the town’s attention at the Merchant Meeting in January 2024. Vice 
President Burrell shared he was under the impression any events that come about during the year that 
had not already been approved by the Council as part of the annual list would not be considered 
immediately. He said it was his understanding the event would be considered for inclusion in the 
calendar for the following year, adding he would suggest the Council remain steadfast in the approval 
process. 
  
Councilmember Orris asked for Ms. Wells to clarify the portions of Pitts Street and Gay Street that 
would be closed for the event; Ms. Wells explained Gay Street would be closed between Broad Street 
and the entrance to Tiki Tim’s Bar to ensure the parking lot behind the Atlantic Hotel could remain 
open; she reported that Pitts Street would be closed between Main Street and William Street as it is the 
designated location for vendors. Councilmember Green said Vice President Burrell’s opinion is valid; 
however, he said he would like to make a motion to approve the event given the limited number of 
resources the town would need to provide. 

 
On the motion of Councilmember Green, second by Councilmember Knerr, Motion 2024-06: Approval 
of Special Event Application for Record Store Day on Saturday, April 20, 2024, received the following 
vote:  

Name Counted toward 
Quorum 

 

 Aye No Abstain Recused Absent 

Dean Burrell, VP  X    

Steve Green X     

Jay Knerr X     

9 



Reg. Session 2.12.24 

Page 3 of 8 
 

Shaneka Nichols     X 

Jack Orris X     

Voting Tally 3 1   1 

       
b) Motion 2024-07: Approval of Employee Step and Grade System 

Human Resources Director Kelsey Jensen stated she developed a Step and Grade System at the direction 
of the Council which is made up of twenty-five grades and twenty-one steps. From there, she explained 
every employee was placed on a grade and all positions were evaluated using PayPoint HR’s 16-grade 
scale as a starting point for development. She said the information was used as the basis when placing 
positions on the newly created twenty-five-grade scale but acknowledged that some adjustments were 
made based on internal hierarchy and organizational needs. Once every position was assigned a grade, 
Ms. Jensen stated she was asked to move forward by assigning the closest step based on the employee’s 
current rate and adding one additional step to account for Fiscal Year (FY) 2025 budget figures.  
 
Mayor Tyndall asked to confirm the total cost of implementing the new system reviewed; Ms. Jensen 
noted some factors were not accounted for in the information presented such as tenure; however, she 
reported the total cost for bringing all employees onto the Step and Grade System plus the one 
additional step to account for FY25 is $177,000. She added the total would increase to $211,000 once 
fringe is included.  
 
Councilmember Knerr asked to confirm the total cost of implementing the new system should a 3% Cost 
of Living (COLA) increase be added; Ms. Jensen answered she did not have the total readily available but 
could provide the information to the Council later. Councilmember Green returned to the vote by 
Council in the prior year to approve bringing the town workforce to 35% of the market following the 
completion of the PayPoint HR Wage and Compensation Study. He acknowledged the decision did not 
impact every employee but noted that utilizing a Step and Grade System would affect everyone because 
of the step increase. Councilmember Knerr said it would be helpful to see the COLA numbers projected 
out five or ten years in conjunction with the Step and Grade Program to help the Council better 
understand the fiscal implications moving forward. 
 
Vice President Burrell asked how the new system would address tenure, specifically those with 
significant longevity with the town. Ms. Jensen responded by saying they continue to work on a way to 
appropriately address tenure, adding she spoke with other organizations that had extended the Step and 
Grade table without formally documenting it on paper. Councilmember Orris asked for clarification 
regarding the meaning of an empty grade; Ms. Jensen answered PayPoint HR recommended inserting an 
empty grade between certain positions to indicate differences in classifications.  
 
Councilmember Orris asked how new positions, specifically a Code Enforcement Officer, would be 
inserted into the system should the Council choose to add the position in the future. Mayor Tyndall said 
they would likely find a comparable existing position to categorize a grade when placing them on the 
scale. Councilmember Orris asked how feasible the $211,000 would be as the Council enters FY25 budget 
discussions; Mayor Tyndall answered it was too early to know where the total cost would fall within the 
scope of the budget. Ms. Bohlen clarified the motion being presented is whether the Step and Grade 
table will become effective, adding approval would not lock in a budget number for FY25. 
 

10 



Reg. Session 2.12.24 

Page 4 of 8 
 

Mayor Tyndall said he believes implementing the system would provide clarity from a financial 
perspective when they begin budget projections. Vice President Burrell shared that he feels the system 
would help employees know how to plan and Ms. Jensen agreed. She continued by saying the system 
would outline what an employee can work toward and make things more transparent. Councilmember 
Green recognized the impact a Step and Grade System would have on the budget; he said he supports 
adding a COLA but thinks it may be a case-by-case approach to determine the best way for the Council to 
address it. Ms. Saleh confirmed the Council would have time to evaluate the Step and Grade System in 
conjunction with the budget and potential COLAs during budget work sessions. 
 
Resident Mary Hedlesky of Westminster Drive asked to confirm the total amount that would be needed 
to bring the remaining employees to 35% of the market; Ms. Jensen clarified the employees who did not 
see an increase were already at 35% of the market. 
 

On the motion of Councilmember Knerr, second by Vice President Burrell, Motion 2024-07: Approval of 
Employee Step and Grade System and implement the information presented as a starting point for a 
Step and Grade System received the following vote:  

Name Counted toward 
Quorum 

 

 Aye No Abstain Recused Absent 

Dean Burrell, VP X     

Steve Green X     

Jay Knerr X     

Shaneka Nichols     X 

Jack Orris X     

Voting Tally 4    1 

 
c) Motion 2024-03: Approval of Request for Qualifications (RFQ) 2024-01: Design and Build 
 Services for three (3) facilities owned and operated by the Town 

Mayor Tyndall reported the town issued an RFQ seeking statements of qualifications for the development 
of design and build services for Town Hall Renovations, a new Public Works Facility, and a new Community 
Center. He explained the RFQ would not oblige the town to move forward with any statements submitted, 
but rather allow the town to seek out professional services that are needed to assist in the design and 
build process. Councilmember Orris asked for clarification regarding the type of renovations being 
considered for Town Hall; he referenced the $500,000 that has been budgeted for renovations and said he 
has not seen any quotes or ideas presented. Mayor Tyndall reported that two staff-level meetings have 
been held to get a general idea of the framework staff would like to see done in Town Hall, as well as what 
they would like to see as part of a new Public Works facility; he noted all options are being evaluated.  
 
Vice President Burrell shared he is hopeful that any information concerning renovations at Town Hall 
would go before the Council for discussion; Mayor Tyndall confirmed, adding he would like to add two 
council members to the staff-level group to be part of discussions concerning the work that is needed. 
Councilmember Knerr suggested holding public Work Session meetings to review plans for the Community 
Center and allow residents to share their ideas; Mayor Tyndall agreed. Ms. Bohlen emphasized that a 
Request for Qualifications is not a request for quotes. She said the town is asking for cost estimates but 

11 



Reg. Session 2.12.24 

Page 5 of 8 
 

clarified the estimates are to assist the town from a budgetary standpoint, adding the hope is to find the 
help that is needed to design the project and follow it through to completion. 

 
On the motion of Councilmember Orris, second by Vice President Burrell, Motion 2024-08: Approval of 
Request for Qualifications (RFQ) 2024-01: Design and Build Services for three (3) facilities owned and 
operated by the town received the following vote:  

Name Counted toward 
Quorum 

 

 Aye No Abstain Recused Absent 

Dean Burrell, VP X     

Steve Green X     

Jay Knerr X     

Shaneka Nichols     X 

Jack Orris X     

Voting Tally 4    1 

 
d)  Motion 2024-09: Approval of Request for Proposal (RFP) 2024-03: Audit Services for the Town’s existing 
 Information Technology Contract and System 

Ms. Bohlen explained the purpose of the RFP is to have the town’s existing IT systems and contracts 
examined to determine whether there are areas that need improvement based on the results of an initial 
audit for IT services. Should the findings show that improvement is needed, Ms. Bohlen said the firm 
selected can assist in the development of an RFP for IT Services. Councilmember Knerr asked if the 
company that is awarded the RFP would be able to bid on any additional RFP pending the need for new IT 
services; Ms. Bohlen confirmed the company would be prohibited from bidding on any similar projects for 
a minimum of five years.  
 
Mayor Tyndall noted the town has not gone to bid for IT services in a long time and feels it is prudent to 
keep things competitive, as well as understand where the town stands financially for the services it 
currently receives. Councilmember Green asked if the contract with the current IT vendor would preclude 
the town from making a change within the next budget year; Ms. Bohlen answered the town would be 
able to make a change. However, she noted that the development of an RFP for IT services is difficult, 
adding it is crucial to bring in a professional to assist with the process. Vice President Burrell said he feels it 
is a great idea to get an independent opinion as to the status of the town’s current IT services.  

 
On the motion of Vice President Burrell, second by Councilmember Orris, Motion 2024-09: Approval of 
Request for Proposal (RFP) 2024-03: Audit Services for the Town’s existing Information Technology 
Contract and System received the following vote:  

Name Counted toward 
Quorum 

 

 Aye No Abstain Recused Absent 

Dean Burrell, VP X     

Steve Green X     

Jay Knerr X     

Shaneka Nichols     X 

12 



Reg. Session 2.12.24 

Page 6 of 8 
 

Jack Orris X     

Voting Tally 4    1 

 
e) Motion 2024-10: Approval of Town of Berlin’s FY25 Worcester County Unrestricted Grant Request 

Mayor Tyndall referred to the draft letter included in the council packet concerning the town’s 
unrestricted County grant funding request for fiscal year 2025. He said the recommendation is to 
request an increase of 7.5% which would bring the total request to $500,000. He said the unrestricted 
grant helps to offset the costs of services the town of Berlin provides in lieu of Worcester County 
providing the services. Following a brief overview of additional projects highlighted in the letter, Mayor 
Tyndall stated the town is respectfully requesting a total of $526,000 in funding for fiscal year 2025. 
 
Councilmember Orris asked if the County Commissioners were made aware of the increased cost of 
the Seahawk Road striping project; Mayor Tyndall said the schools and Sheriff’s Office were in 
partnership with the work that was done; however, he said it would likely be the first time the County 
Commissioners will see the total cost of the project. Councilmember Green stated he liked the letter 
but asked if any feedback had been received following Mayor Tyndall’s attempt to form a partnership 
with other municipalities regarding the unrestricted grant funding request increase. Mayor Tyndall 
reported that he suggested to other municipalities they approach an increase communally but was 
made aware the town of Ocean City was requesting an amount that exceeded $500,000; he said he 
does not believe the town’s $500,000 request is outlandish. 
 
Ms. Diana Purnell of Mary Road thanked the Mayor and Council for pursuing the improvements 
needed to Seahawk Road. 
 
Mayor Tyndall announced the next meeting of the County Commissioners would be held on Tuesday, 
March 5, 2024, at 10 AM in Snow Hill. 

 
On the motion of Councilmember Orris, second by Councilmember Green, Motion 2024-10: Approval 
of Town of Berlin’s FY25 Worcester County Unrestricted Grant Request received the following vote:  

Name Counted toward 
Quorum 

 

 Aye No Abstain Recused Absent 

Dean Burrell, VP X     

Steve Green X     

Jay Knerr X     

Shaneka Nichols     X 

Jack Orris X     

Voting Tally 4    1 

 
4. Reports: Town Administrator’s Report, Departmental Reports 

Ms. Bohlen made the Council aware most town offices would be closed on Monday, February 19, 2024, in 
observance of President’s Day and Town Hall would be closed from 12:30 PM to 1:30 PM for a monthly staff 
lunch and team building. 

13 



Reg. Session 2.12.24 

Page 7 of 8 
 

Ms. Jensen said she will be attending the Salisbury University Job Fair on Thursday, February 22, 2024, along 
with Special Projects Administrator Kate Daub. 
 
Ms. Bohlen reported that interviews have been scheduled for the vacant Board of Elections position. She 
said a recommendation for appointment will go before the Council once a candidate is selected. 

 

5. Comments from the Public – none. 
 

6. Comments from the Council  
Vice President Burrell asked for clarity regarding the vacant positions accounted for in the Step and Grade 
System; Ms. Jensen explained the positions were not included in the monetary figures presented but were 
assigned a grade if the position was once filled previously. Vice President Burrell asked if the positions 
needed to be filled; Ms. Jensen clarified the positions were included in the Wage and Compensation Study, 
however, she said the positions had not been filled in several years. Vice President Burrell asked Public 
Works Director Jimmy Charles to describe the work being done under Route 113 associated with the drain 
that brings water from the west side onto the east side of town; Mr. Charles said it was a state project 
designed to improve the structural integrity of the concrete tubes located underground that were impeding 
the flow of water. Vice President Burrell returned to Motion 2024-06 and the vote by the Council to approve 
the Special Event Permit for Record Store Day; he said the Council deviated from one of their established 
procedures and shared that it is his hope the group will be consistent in how they handle the process going 
forward realizing they have set a new precedent.  
 
Councilmember Knerr asked if the Council would consider doing a blessing at the start of each meeting as 
opposed to a moment of silence. After a lengthy discussion which included comments made by members of 
the Council and the public, the Council opted to continue with a moment of silence to avoid any future 
concerns that may come with reciting a blessing at the start of Regular Session meetings.  
 
Councilmember Orris asked to confirm whether the Parks Commission approved overseeing the disposition 
of parcel 52; Ms. Daub confirmed the Commission members agreed to add parcel 52 to their purview.  
 
Councilmember Green asked if there was a status on the Heron Park Building demolition project; Ms. Bohlen 
reported a pre-construction meeting was held on-site at Heron Park on Wednesday, February 14th adding 
the contractor hopes to begin work within the next two to three weeks.  
 

7. Comments from the Mayor 
Mayor’s Executive Administrative Assistant Sara Gorfinkel announced the town has launched its Town Flag 
fundraiser; she said the suggested donation to purchase a flag is $30 and can be ordered by email or via a 
form on the town’s website. Ms. Saleh clarified the purchase of flags should be referred to as a fundraising 
fund and not a donation.  
 
Ms. Saleh added that the Finance Department has not received much support for the Energy Assistance 
Fund as it did not generate the funding it has in the past. She clarified that the contributions received are 
used to assist lower-income families in the community with electric utility assistance and encouraged utility 
customers to visit the town’s website to learn more. 

 

14 



Reg. Session 2.12.24 

Page 8 of 8 
 

8.   Comments from the Press – none. 
 

9.  Adjournment: 
 
On the motion of Vice President Pro Tempore Nichols, second by Councilmember Orris, the Mayor and 
Council meeting was adjourned at approximately 8:41 PM.  

Name Counted toward 
Quorum 

 

 Aye No Abstain Recused Absent 

Dean Burrell, VP X     

Steve Green X     

Jay Knerr X     

Shaneka Nichols     X 

Jack Orris X     

Voting Tally 4    1 

 
Respectfully Submitted,  

 
 

Kate Daub 
Administrative Assistant 

15 



 

STAFF REPORT: ALCOHOL AT EVENTS 

2/22/2024  

  STAFF REPORT 
 
 

 
 

TO:   Mayor and Council 
 

FROM:   Director, Economic & Community Development, Ivy Wells   
 
MEETING DATE: February 26, 2024 
 

SUBJECT: Alcohol at Events 
__________________________________________________________________ 

 
SUMMARY  
 
Liquor Sales at Town Events: The Berlin Chamber of Commerce has approached the town 
with a request to expand the beverage offerings at their events to include liquor, alongside the 
current beer and wine options so that the new distillery, Forgotten 50, can be included.  
 
 
Burley Oak Brewery Beer Sales Request: Burley Oak Brewery has acquired an off-premise 
consumption license and has submitted paperwork to the town requesting permission to sell 
beer at The Berlin Farmers Market and other town events for on-site consumption. This request 
is independent of the Chamber of Commerce's alcohol permit for Jazz, Blues, Wine & Brews, 
Small Town Throw Down, Fiddlers Convention, Oktoberfest.  
 
Currently, both the Buzz Meadery and Lyon Rum participate in the farmers market offering 
sealed containers for sale and off-site consumption; fully allowed by the state and county.  
 
Recommendation: I recommend that the Mayor and Council review these requests 
considering the potential benefits to these businesses and the impact on public safety; plus 
any relevant regulations or ordinances. I have spoken with Chief Downing and he is aware of 
these  requests.  
 
Cost to the Town of Berlin: There is no additional cost to the Town of Berlin for approving these requests.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Burley Oak’s Off-Premises Request forms  
2. Berlin Chamber of Commerce Alcohol Permit Forms 

 

Agenda Item 2

16 



  MOTION OF MAYOR AND COUNCIL 2024-11 
 
 
 
 

A motion of the Mayor and Council of the Town of Berlin APPROVING THE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 
ALCOHOL PERMIT REQUESTS FOR FOUR (4) 2024 TOWN OF BERLIN EVENTS. 
 
 
This motion authorizes the exception for sale and consumption of alcohol (*), during four (4) events:  
 

1. Jazz and Blues, Wine, and Brews Festival: Saturday, May 4, 2024, from 10 AM to 6 PM 
2. Small Town Throw Down: Saturday, September 7th, 2024, from 12 PM to 6 PM  
3. Fiddler’s Convention:  

o Friday, September 20th, 2024, from 5 PM to 10 PM 
o Saturday, September 21st, 2024, from 10 AM to 5 PM 

4. Oktoberfest: Saturday, October 19th, 2024, from 11 AM to 4 PM 
 
(*) Alcohol denotes Beer, Wine, and Liquor. 
   
 
Approved this ______day of _______________, 2024 by the Council of the Town of Berlin, Maryland 
by affirmative vote of ____ to ____ opposed with ____ abstaining and ____ absent. 
 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Dean Burrell, Vice President of the Council 
 
 
Approved this ____day of _____________, 2024 by the mayor of the town of Berlin. 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Zack Tyndall, Mayor, President of the Council 
 
 
 
Attest: ___________________________ 
 Mary Bohlen, Town Administrator 

Agenda Item 2 a

17 



18 



___________________________________ , _________________________________________________ , County/City, Maryland, 
and that I assent to the granting of this Permit to the retail licensee stated on this application, and that I authorize the Comptroller 
of Maryland, his duly authorized deputies, inspectors and clerks, the Board of License Commissioners of the jurisdiction in which the 
festival is located, its duly authorized agents and employees, and any peace officer of such jurisdiction to inspect and search, without 
warrant, the premises upon which the actions and activities under this Permit are to be conducted, at any and all hours.

COM-FED/RLS-355 Rev. 06/16

Form

355 NON-PROFIT FESTIVAL PERMIT APPLICATION

Office Use Only

Approved  ______________

Date __________________

Number _______________

Permit Year _____________

Stub Number  ___________

To the Comptroller of Maryland,

Application is made by the undersigned under the provisions of Article 2B of the Annotated Code of Maryland for the permit indicated
above. This application shall be filed with the office of the Comptroller not less than 30 days prior to Non-Profit Festival.

1. Name of Non-Profit organization  ______________________________________________

2. Mailing address:  __________________________________________________________

 ________________________________________________________________________

3. Business Telephone no.:  ____________________________________________________

4. Federal tax identification number:  _____________________________________________

5. Attach a copy of your 501(c) determination letter.

6. The primary purpose of this festival is to promote Maryland beer, liquor or wine . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  YES   NO 

7. Provide details of the beer, liquor or wine festival: ______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________________________________

8. Location: _______________________________________________________________________________________________

Beer, liquor or wine festival dates:  _________________________________ Hours of Operation:________________________ 

9. Does applicant agree to conform to all laws, rules and regulations of the State of Maryland related to the actions 
and business activities authorized under this permit? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .   YES  NO 

10. I agree that at all times during the beer, liquor or wine festival the permit holder shall have present at least two 
agents, one of whom may be the permit holder, who are certified by an approved Alcohol Awareness Program . . YES NO 

1. Name ____________________________________________________ Phone Number _____________________________ 

Name of program ____________________________________________________________________________________

2. Name ____________________________________________________ Phone Number _____________________________  

Name of program ____________________________________________________________________________________

11. Submit with this application to the Office of Comptroller a list of all off-site permit holders who will attend this festival. 

PLEASE NOTE:

(1) YOU ARE REQUIRED TO NOTIFY THE LOCAL LICENSING BOARD OF THE JURISDICTION IN WHICH THE FESTIVAL WILL BE 
HELD THAT THE FESTIVAL PERMIT HAS BEEN ISSUED.

12.  Must be signed by an officer of the non-profit.

AFFIDAVIT

I do solemnly declare and affirm under the penalties of perjury that the contents of this document are true and correct to the best of
my knowledge, information, and belief.

Signature Printed Name

13. This section must be completed by the authorized representative of the festival. 

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that I am the authorized representative of the festival stated in this Permit located at ________________________

    Beer Festival   $100 
    Liquor Festival $100   
    Wine Festival $100

19 



Form

355

14. This section must be completed by the owner of the premises where the event will take place. 

Statement of owner of premises required in connection with Alcoholic Beverages Law of Maryland: I/we hereby certify that I/we

are the owner(s) of the property known as _______________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________

named in the foregoing application made to the Comptroller of Maryland under the Alcoholic Beverages Law of Maryland; that 
I/we assent to the granting of the permit applied for, and that I/we hereby authorize the Comptroller of Maryland, his duly 
authorized deputies, inspectors and clerks, the Board of License Commissioners of the jurisdiction in which the place of business 
is located, its duly authorized agents and employees and any peace officer of such jurisdiction to inspect and search, without 
warrant, the premises upon which the business is to be conducted and any and all parts of the building in which said business 
is to be conducted at any and all hours.

Affidavit

I do solemnly declare and affirm under the penalties of perjury that the contents of this foregoing document are true and correct 
to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief.

 _________________________________________________  __________________________________________________
Signature of owner, partner or corporate officer Type or print name of owner, partner or corporate officer

 _________________________________________________  __________________________________________________
Title Date

Third Party Checks 

Affidavit

I do solemnly declare and affirm under the penalties of perjury that the contents below are true and correct to the best of my 
knowledge, and that I am authorized and empowered to issue a check and make payment for the license/permit fee on behalf of 
the applicant.

Name of Corporation; Partners of Partnership; or Individual (include Trade Name)

Complete Mailing Address

Signature of Owner, Partner or Corporate Officer Title

Federal Identification Number and/or Social Security Number Date

NON-PROFIT FESTIVAL PERMIT APPLICATION

COM-FED/RLS-355  Rev. 06/16

CONTACT INFORMATION: 410-260-7314
or 800-MD-TAXES

www.marylandtaxes.com

Comptroller of Maryland
Field Enforcement Division

Regulatory and Licensing Section 
P.O. Box 2999

Annapolis, Maryland 21404-2999

20 



21 



22 



23 



24 



25 



26 



Prepared by Date & Time Location

What’s being prepared:

Est Alc by Volume

Ingredients Volume Alc %

Manager Approval: name signature

27 



  MOTION OF MAYOR AND COUNCIL 2024-12 
 
 
 
 

 
A motion of the Mayor and Council of the Town of Berlin AUTHORIZING BURLEY OAK BREWING 
COMPANY TO SELL ALCOHOL TO BE CONSUMED ON PREMISES AT THE BERLIN FARMERS MARKETS 
AND DURING FOUR (4) EVENTS APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL FOR THE SALE AND 
CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOL. 
 
This motion authorizes the exception for sale and consumption of Burley Oak Brewing Company beer 
products during the following events:  
 

1. Berlin Farmer’s Markets: Every Sunday in May through September from 9 AM to 1 PM 
 

2. Jazz and Blues, Wine and Brews Festival: Saturday, May 4th, 2024, from 10 AM to 5 PM 
3. Small Town Throw Down: Saturday, September 7th, 2024, from 1 PM to 6 PM  
4. Fiddler’s Convention:  

o Friday, September 20th, 2024, from 7 PM to 10 PM 
o Saturday, September 21st, 2024, from 10 AM to 5 PM 
o Sunday, September 22nd, 2024, from 10 AM to 1 PM 

5. Oktoberfest: Saturday, October 19th, 2024, from 11 AM to 4 PM 
 
 
Approved this ______day of _______________, 2024 by the Council of the Town of Berlin, Maryland 
by affirmative vote of ____ to ____ opposed with ____ abstaining and ____ absent. 
 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Dean Burrell, Vice President of the Council 
 
 
Approved this ____day of _____________, 2024 by the mayor of the town of Berlin. 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Zack Tyndall, Mayor, President of the Council 
 
 
 
Attest: ___________________________ 
 Mary Bohlen, Town Administrator 

Agenda Item 2 b

28 



29 



30 



31 



32 



33 



34 



35 



36 



37 



38 



 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Town of Berlin 

Strategic Plan Summary of Current Progress and 
Outcomes 

 

Phase 1: September 2023 – November 2023 

Phase 2: December 2023 – February 2024 

Phase 3: To be determined 

 
Prepared by: 

The Business Economic and Community  
Outreach Network at Salisbury University 

 
 

 

 

Agenda Item 3 a

39 



 

3 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

Summary: 

Over the course of the past three months BEACON has completed the steps outlined in Phase 
two of our strategic planning engagement with the Town of Berlin.   

The reporting below summarizes the activities and progress so far.   

PHASE 1:  

The initial phase of crafting an updated Strategic Plan involved a series of meetings and email 
exchanges with the Town of Berlin staff and Mayor from September 15, 2023, to November 16, 
2023. These discussions focused on designing and reviewing a survey, establishing the 
collection process, forming the committee, and arranging meeting schedules. The survey aimed 
to gather residents' perspectives on the strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats 
(SWOT analysis) of the Town of Berlin before engaging stakeholders in strategic planning 
discussions. 

BEACON collated the feedback received from the community responses, stakeholder inputs, 
and key informant interviews with town council members and county commissioners. 
Subsequently, BEACON convened an introductory session of the Strategic Planning 
Stakeholders’ Committee to provide input on the strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and 
threats of the Town of Berlin and kickstart the strategic planning process. During this session, 
participants deliberated on current community values, updated the community values 
statement to include pillars, crafted vision statements, and identified the town's strengths, 
weaknesses, opportunities, and threats. 

PHASE 2: 

Develop a summary of 2016 Strategic Plan: 

The previous strategic plan for the Town of Berlin spanned from 2016 to 2018. BEACON, 
utilizing input from town personnel, reviewed the elements of the 2016 Strategic Plan to 
provide a status report for the Strategic Planning Committee to consider as they developed the 
new strategic plan. A comprehensive overview of this assessment is available in Appendix A. 

PHASE 2 Activities: 

Following the initial Strategic Planning retreat with the committee and feedback from the 
Council, BEACON organized two listening sessions to gather additional citizen views for the 
planning process.  These sessions open to local Berlin residents. The overlap of planning these 
sessions and the December Holiday season required a several weeks break in conducting the 
session.   

The first session took place at the Worcester County Public Library – Berlin Branch at 10:30 
A.M. on January 10, 2024.  The second session took place at St. Paul United Methodist Church 
at 6:00 P.M. on January 17, 2024. The decision to hold two separate sessions was based on 

40 



 

4 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

location; Rt. 113 divides the town into east and west Berlin. Conducting sessions on both sides 
of the highway allowed for a comprehensive understanding of the priorities of Berlin business 
owners and residents. During each session, attendees were queried about their perceptions of 
the Town of Berlin's strengths, challenges, and opportunities. 

Summary of Listening Sessions: 

When residents were asked about strengths, a consensus emerged across both sides of Berlin, 
highlighting its appeal as a great place to live due to its historical charm, strong sense of 
community, abundance of parks, quality schools, and affordable housing options. Additionally, 
residents commended the town's relatively low crime rate and high safety standards compared 
to neighboring areas on the Eastern Shore. They expressed appreciation for the diligent efforts 
of the police, fire department, and public works, though stormwater management emerged as 
a notable concern during the first session. 

In terms of challenges and opportunities, attendees from both sessions voiced concerns 
regarding the insufficient infrastructure for pedestrian mobility, particularly the lack of 
sidewalks and bike paths, and the pressing need for additional crosswalks. The hazardous 
crossing at Rt. 113 near Food Lion was highlighted as a specific area of concern. Participants 
emphasized the importance of providing engaging activities to retain young residents in Berlin 
and preserve its small-town character, fearing the potential transformation into a destination 
dominated by high-priced summer rentals. 

However, attendees from each session diverged in their perspectives on business and economic 
development. West side residents expressed a desire to sustain controlled growth while 
preserving the town's historic essence and regulating the types of businesses entering Berlin. 
Conversely, east side attendees harbored resentment towards perceived disparities in 
resources and opportunities, expressing concerns about inequitable taxation and gentrification. 
They felt marginalized by the concentration of development on the west side and feared the 
displacement of lower-income African American residents due to lack of diversity in planning 
commissions. 

While both sessions found common ground on strengths, challenges, and opportunities, the 
emphasis varied. The first session prioritized issues such as parking, stormwater management, 
and infrastructure, whereas the second session delved into concerns about gentrification and 
the perceived unfair tax system. 

  

41 



 

5 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

Strategic Planning Session 2: 

Session two of the Strategic Planning Stakeholders’ Committee took place in the Town Council 
Chambers at 1:00 P.M. on January 25, 2024. The primary purpose of this meeting was to assess 
the insights gathered from the two listening sessions, refining the mission and vision 
statements, updating community values, and revising driving strategies while developing 
subsequent tactical action plans.  

The mission, vision, and values statements presented below were revised during this working 
session, incorporating feedback from the committee and refining the language for clarity and 
effectiveness. 

Mission Statement: The heart of the town of Berlin lies in our dedication to nurturing 
community pride, preserving heritage, and creating a clean, safe, enjoyable and affordable 
environment for residents, workers, and visitors alike. 

Vision Statement: We envision a town where our heritage, culture, resilience, friendliness, and 
well-being serve as the guiding principles, fostering a vibrant and inclusive community.  

Community Values: 

Attendees agree that the term “community values” was a better fit than “pillars” for Berlin. The 
revised values are listed below: 

 HERITAGE – Pride: Legacy of the past, extending seamlessly into the future. 
 CULTURE – Arts/Entertainment/Aesthetic: Creating a vibrant cultural scene for 

residents and visitors to enjoy. 
 RESILIENCY – Financially Sustainable: Ensuring responsible stewardship for a stable and 

secure financial foundation. 
 INCLUSIVITY – Welcoming/Respectful: Embracing diversity and promoting a friendly 

and respectful community for all. 
 WELL-BEING – Committed to wellness: prioritizing the health and well-being of our 

community. 
 VIBRANCY – Embracing growth and future-oriented: Fostering growth, innovation, and 

preparation for the town’s future. 

 

 

 

The remainder of this page was intentionally left blank. 

 

  

42 



 

6 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

SWOT Analysis: 

Revisions of the town’s strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats were conducted to 
include feedback from the listing session and discussed as well, the final analysis is listed below: 

STRENGTHS OPPORTUNITIES 
• Cultural and historical heritage 
• Diversity of people 
• Access to business and services 
• Environmentally friendly (green spaces and 

healthy living) 
• Safe and clean 
• Community events/community spirit and 

engagement 
• Diverse and vibrant business community 
• Affordable rent 
• Parks  
• Strategically located 
• Schools 
• Access to healthcare 
• Access to higher education 

• Event succession planning 
• Public art/murals/statues 
• Diversified town events 
• Affordable housing 
• Infrastructure and accessibility 
• Shuttles/Transportation for visitors 
• Proximity to major highways 
• Public safety 
• Diversified town events 
• Control overdevelopment 
• Improve green space in public parks 
• Increase pathways to success instead of lowering 

cost of living 
• Tear down old structures and rebuild 
• Fix zoning structure 
• Broadband 

WEAKNESSESS THREATS 
• Communication 
• Infrastructure – Fiber Optic Internet; water and 

electricity costs; storm water management 
• Affordable housing 
• Disproportional growth 
• Limited workforce to fill positions in public 

services 
• Parking 
• Event succession planning 
• Insufficient sidewalks and crosswalks 
• Not enough activities to keep youth engaged 
• Traffic and speeding 
• Tax inequity 
• Gentrification 
• Lack of community center 

• Ability to maintain workforce 
• Economic challenges 
• Housing/Affordability 
• Overdevelopment 
• Inappropriate growth 
• Behavioral health and provider access 
• Access to event/recreation for all ages 
• Public safety 
• Loss of diversity 
• Support for aging community (age in place) 
• Infrastructure 
• Short-term rentals 

 

 

 

 

 

43 



 

7 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

Driving Strategies: 

Additionally, the committee discussed the driving strategies to focus on for the revised strategic 
plan. After discussion the committee developed the following strategies: 

• Strategy 1: short term (1-3 years) Improve and expand infrastructure focusing on 
reliability and safety. 

• Strategy 2: short term (1-3 years) Focus on public safety needs, demands, and 
expectations. 

• Strategy 3: short term (1-3 years) Address interconnectivity of neighborhoods and 
access to businesses and services including parking. 

• Strategy 4: medium term (3-5 years) Retain small town feel, enhance equity, and 
provide opportunities for all income levels to live and thrive in Berlin. 

• Strategy 5: medium term (3-5 years) Improve recreation facilities, public amenities, and 
green spaces including existing facilities and access for all. 

• Strategy 6: long term (5+ years) Unify the town. 

Tactical Action Plan: 

The Committee began discussions on the Tactical Action Plans.  The committee developed 
action steps for Strategy 1 and had initial discussions on Strategy 2.  Strategy 1: short term (1-3 
years) Improve and expand infrastructure focusing on reliability and safety. 

o AS1: Increase the number of businesses and homes with Fiber Optic Connectivity 
o AS2: Improve water resources/water quality (sewer) 
o AS3: Stormwater/runoff improvements/study 
o AS4: Improve roads and sidewalks (potholes) 
o AS5: Community involvement and education on stormwater/runoff 

• Strategy 2: short term (1-3 years) Focus on public safety needs, demands, and 
expectations. 

o Began discussions on how the action steps would be specific and measurable,  this 
may include specific language focused on the ways that the steps are approved and 
completed.   

Committee members were encouraged to share the progress with their network in order to 
create action steps that address the needs and wants of the Town.   

The Committee asked to conduct the next discussions on action steps over two shorter 
sessions, of two and a half hours.  Conversation regarding the subsequent action plans for each 
strategy is scheduled to persist in the upcoming sessions. The potential dates for the upcoming 
sessions, contingent upon the approval for phase three, are March 5th, 6th, or 7th, and March 
12th or 13th. 

A summary of the Strategic plan to date is included in Appendix E. 

44 



 

9 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

Summary of activities and progress from Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 2016 – 2018  

 

The Town of Berlin’ last strategic plan covered the years 2016 to 2018.  BEACON reviewed the items 
included in the plan and progress on those items.  The information was provided by town staff.  Below is 
a summary of the goals, actions and progress. 

Goal number one was to increase parks and recreation facilities. The targeted outcomes were to reach a 
decision on the former Tyson property (Herron Ponds) and the creation of two new recreation events.  
Six actions were proposed. They are listed below, along with the status. 

• Complete assessment and funding review to enable a decision on acquisition of the Tyson 
Property – Outcomes Completed , property acquired in 2016. 

• Work with Parks and Recreation in developing programs, and expand “Just Walk” program (2 
items) – Outcomes Completed, Prior to COVID the County held tennis and Basketball at town 
parks, but not active currently, Other organizations have basketball programs, there  continue 
to be two “Just Walk” programs annually. 

• Create regular fitness programs at Stephen Decatur Park – Outcomes, Not complete, town does 
not have a Parks and Recreation department and is dependent on the County or other 
organizations, but does not allow for-profit entities. 

• Establish regular walk around town with elected officials and provide public updates (2 items) – 
Outcomes Completed, Attempted, but low interest. 

Goal  number two was to preserve Berlin's traditions, quality of life, and "wow" factor while prospering 
and changing.  Targeted outcomes were a preliminary plan for Town growth and development including 
parking capacity and alternative transportation options  and  better communication of the schedule of 
special Town events. Six actions were proposed. They are listed below, along with the status. 

• Partner with other transportation providers to meet senior mobility needs in the Town – 
Outcomes Completed, A mobility and parking study was completed in 2019.  

• Establish written agreements with schools and churches for temporary use of on-site parking 
during Town events - Outcomes Completed , A written agreement is in place with St. Paul for 
ongoing public parking; Berlin Intermediate School is used as satellite parking during major 
events. 

• Work with the Library Board to use the lot behind new library for public parking -  The Library 
has allowed use of their parking for Town events when available. 

• Adopt architectural standards and revise building codes as needed for better access and 
mobility using all types of local transportation -  Outcomes, no progress reported. 

• Initiate specific growth planning and access management for Berlin's three primary 
transportation corridors (MD 346, MD 113, and US 50) -  Outcomes, no progress reported. 

• Provide more information to residents and visitors about all Berlin events, using a variety of 
media -  and including both photographs and event descriptions - - Outcomes Completed , 
Events have been and continue to be advertised on cable, social media, local media, 
newsletters, including the Town websites and via direct mailer. 

 

45 



 

10 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

Goal  number three was to Enhance and maintain public safety services.  Targeted outcome was Stable 
public safety staffing, structure, and equipment.  Four actions were proposed. They are listed below, 
along with the status. 

• Establish a funding formula for EMS services – Outcomes, No outcome reported 
• Use the five-year capital plan public safety improvement  and complete engineering and site 

work for the new police station (2 items) - Outcomes Completed, Street cameras purchased and 
placed downtown, new police facility was completed in 2019. 

• Use annexation and planning processes to anticipate growth and plan for public safety needs - 
Outcomes Completed, The town has incorporated a review & response from Police/Fire/EMS for 
each new project, change of use and annexation; this process continues to be developed. 

Goal  number four was to Invest in the Town’s infrastructure including public buildings, roads, sidewalks, 
water and sewer pipes, and the electric utility to ensure that they function well and meet state and 
federal regulations.  Targeted outcome was Increased awareness of all infrastructure programs and 
services including roads, sidewalks, sewer and water pipes, stormwater management, electric utility, 
public buildings.  Six actions were proposed. They are listed below, along with the status. 

• Reduce flooding - Outcomes Completed, Ongoing. 
• Continue ongoing infrastructure improvements and maintenance - Outcomes Completed, 

Ongoing. 
• Work with the state Department of Transportation to deal with flooding problems on state 

roads in Berlin - Outcomes Completed, Ongoing. 
• Implement the AMI smart metering system for water and electric services including obtaining a 

grant to support the water component of the metering system - Outcomes Completed/Ongoing, 
Smart metering project underway for water; continuing to explore for electric. 

• Complete the engineering plan to upgrade the electric substation and work on funding for the 
project - Outcomes Completed / ongoing, Electric Utility continues to work toward 
undergrounding existing lines and remove poles. Continues to explore a fiber utility for Town 
facilities and ultimately to businesses and homes. 

• Provide regular communication to residents about ongoing infrastructure programs and services 
and about progress - Outcomes Completed, Regular news releases and other notification efforts 
ongoing. 

We encourage the Strategic Planning Committee for this planning cycle to review the past items and see 
if any should be included in this plan.   

  

46 



 

12 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

SWOT Linkages 
Strengths → Opportunities 

• Cultural and historical heritage • Event succession planning 
• Public art/murals/statues 

• Diversity of people • Diversified town events 
• Affordable housing 

• Access to business and services • Infrastructure and accessibility 
• Shuttles/Transportation for visitors 

• Environmentally friendly (green spaces 
and healthy living) 

• Infrastructure and accessibility 
• Proximity to major highways 

• Safe and clean • Affordable housing 
• Public safety 

• Community events/community spirit and 
engagement 

• Event succession planning 
• Diversified town events 

• Diverse and vibrant business community • Infrastructure and accessibility 
• Diversified town events 

• Affordable rent • Affordable housing 
• Control overdevelopment 

• Proximity to tourist areas • Improve access and safety at highway 
crossings 

• Parks • Improve green space in public parks 
Weaknesses → Threats 

• Communication • Ability to maintain workforce 
• Infrastructure – Fiber Optic Internet; 

water and electricity costs; storm water 
management 

• Economic challenges 

• Affordable housing • Housing/Affordability 
• Economic challenges 
• Overdevelopment 

• Disproportional growth • Economic challenges 
• Inappropriate growth 
• Overdevelopment 

• Limited workforce to fill positions in 
public services 

• Behavioral health and provider access 
• Ability to maintain workforce 

• Parking • Access to event/recreation for all ages 
• Event succession planning • Access to event/recreation for all ages 
• Insufficient sidewalks and crosswalks • Economic challenges 
• Not enough activities to keep youth 

engaged 
• Access to event/recreation for all ages 

• Traffic and speeding • Public safety 
• Tax inequity • Economic challenges 
• Gentrification • Loss of diversity 

• Overdevelopment 

47 



 

13 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix C: 
Summary of Two Listening Sessions: 

 

Town of Berlin Strategic Planning 
Summary of Two Listening Sessions: 

January 10th and 17th, 2024 

 
 

 
 
 

                                

48 



 

14 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

Introduction 

BEACON at Salisbury University facilitated two events to which local Berlin residents were invited. The 

first session was held in the Worcester County Public Library—Berlin Branch on January 10, 2024; and 

the second session was held in St. Paul United Methodist Church on January 17, 2024. At each session, 

the moderator, Ms. Jessica Iacona and Mr. John Hickman, respectively, questioned attendees about 

what they perceived to be the Town of Berlin’s strengths, challenges, and opportunities. The reason for 

conducting two separate sections was location: Rt. 113 divides the town into east and west Berlin, and 

as noted in the summaries below, many residents feel that there are two distinct Berlins under a single 

town governance, although that’s not an official distinction. We have included a summary of each 

meeting below followed by a summary of issues that came out of both meetings. We hope the Town of 

Berlin will find this information helpful as we move forward in the strategic planning process.  

Summary of Listening Session on January 10, 2024 

Worcester County Library—Berlin Branch 

BEACON Team Present: Jessica Iacona, Bailey Willey, Trey Lodge 

Number of Community Members Present: 18 

The session opened with a discussion of Berlin’s strengths, and the first thing mentioned was that Berlin 

is a pleasant place to live because it’s safer than many area towns. Also, it’s close to resort areas, but not 

too close. There are so many amenities here, including plenty of stores and restaurants, along with a 

hospital, doctors, dentists, excellent schools, and a town that listens to its residents—there is a lot of 

community involvement, according to one attendee. One person said that Berlin is “like a bubble” 

compared to other local towns. Attendees believe that its small-town charm is one of its greatest 

strengths.  

There are a lot of younger people moving into Berlin, perhaps because, as someone pointed out, rents 

are affordable in and around Berlin. There were at least five positive comments from the audience 

about rents and affordability. Furthermore, they considered it a strength that short-term rentals are 

restricted; also, two dwellings on the same property are prohibited, which mitigates noise levels, so the 

current rental situation is favorable to local residents.   

Another major strength is the economic climate in Berlin, which was discussed among at least five 

attendees. One resident called it an “economic miracle” because of all the new businesses and jobs that 

49 



 

15 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

have been created over the past 20 years. There are so many opportunities for small businesses, and 

new stores keep coming in; in some cases, new apartments are opening above these stores, which, 

according to the attendees, is “good planning.” More stores plus more apartments equals more growth, 

one resident said. Even with all this growth, Berlin has preserved and maintained many historic 

buildings. In fact, Berlin is doing much better than many other small, historic towns like Cambridge, they 

claimed. Additionally, a resident mentioned that the Chamber of Commerce has gotten very strong, and 

that a lot of young business people are involved, further stimulating this growth.  

All of these factors—lifestyle, affordable rents, and economic development and opportunities, along 

with proximity to tourist areas—have made Berlin a safe and pleasant place to live. 

The discussion then moved into what Berlin could do better in the future, and the first thing that came 

up was parking. This generated considerable discussion, with at least nine people commenting on 

parking problems. They pointed out that there is not enough parking to meet demand. Merchants are 

taking advantage of parking, they said, and more people are parking in municipal lots. One idea that 

came up was for merchants to register their car and have designated parking places, perhaps with a 

merchant tag on their car. One attendee said that an owner is considering repaving their lot and 

charging for parking. The concern is that the town would have to hire people to enforce parking and 

collect parking fees. Having to pay for parking could discourage some people from visiting Berlin, 

someone pointed out. Also mentioned was that merchants have been made aware that they’re not 

supposed to be parking in front of their stores—they should leave those spots for guests. Also, a 

question came up about whether the town could pay the people that own the parking lots to keep 

parking free. Another concern is that streets are too narrow for people to park on both sides, and it’s 

difficult for bigger trucks to navigate through areas that are too tight. One resident mentioned that a 

parking garage could help alleviate the parking issue, and another offered that parking needs to be 

advertised more. The attendees agreed on one thing: a lot of questions need to be answered before any 

decisions can be made about paid parking.  

The conversation then moved into electric and water costs being too high, especially the former, and 

one idea brought up was possibly using casino fees to lower the amount that each resident has to pay. 

That money is currently being used to pay for the police station. When they mentioned again the high 

cost of electricity, council members in attendance noted that Berlin’s rates were lower than Delmarva 

Power and Choptank Electric Cooperative’s rates. Also mentioned was that the electric company needs 

to do a better job of keeping customers informed. Water costs were brought up, and when someone 

50 



 

16 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

mentioned that smart meters will be changing to charge by 100 gallons instead of 1,000 gallons, 

attendees were happy to hear this. 

Another key weakness noted was storm water management. Excessive storm water creates flooding 

that prevents travel in the communities, and one resident bluntly stated, “Berlin does not care about 

storm water management.” Attendees even claimed that they’d be willing to pay higher storm water 

fees if they thought Berlin would use that money to improve drainage. Also brought up was the need to 

enforce more regulation concerning new homes being built because when a new property is built at a 

higher level than the neighbor’s property, the latter property can become flooded during storms. 

Additionally, one resident wanted to require more rain gardens in new homes to help solve this issue.  

Next, a resident mentioned that there were no sidewalks on Old Ocean City Boulevard, which is 

dangerous. An attendee claimed to have almost gotten hit twice in the previous week. Furthermore, the 

street light doesn’t work in that area, creating an additional hazard. Also, of concern because of the 

danger is the crosswalk at Food Lion and Rt. 113. There is no countdown, and  narrow with “no place to 

land” on the east side.  

A conversation developed around police presence being an answer to some of these issues, and one 

resident said that it would be nice to have more officers patrolling and walking around town. There are 

certain areas that should be patrolled more often and at infrequent times, according to one attendee. 

Also, police presence would help with the problem of people driving too fast in front of the ice cream 

shop.  

Finally, other improvements suggested were putting public bathrooms on Williams Street; moving the 

siren at the town hall to Decatur Park, Buckingham Street, or Flower Street (entrance of Decatur Farms); 

and increasing visibility at the corner of Williams Street and Main Street because, as one attendee 

noted, it’s an accident waiting to happen; installing a traffic light at the intersection of Main Street and 

Rt. 50; and having Buckingham Elementary School keep their lights on at night because it’s very dark in 

that area in the evening, which could create opportunities for crime.  

The final stage of this listening session was for attendees to come up with opportunities for Berlin to 

capitalize on in the next one to three years. The first discussion centered around the amount and kind of 

growth Berlin should experience. An attendee mentioned that “sensible” growth should be the goal, 

meaning that the town should decide about what kinds of businesses and merchants they want. New 

developments are on the horizon, which would increase the tax base, but they were concerned about 

51 



 

17 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

the balance between growth and keeping their small-town identity. They suggested an increased fee for 

development that would go toward infrastructure to balance the “damage” developments do to an 

area. Another idea was to have developers provide something the town needs, like a fire truck, in 

exchange for being allowed to develop in Berlin.  

Attendees agreed that the Town of Berlin should prioritize improvements that would benefit current 

residents over what would attract people to move here. There is a lot of opportunity for creating events 

for local residents. As of now, town events are “super busy,” they noted. However, the main discussion 

centered around events and activities for young people. There are a lot of children in Berlin, and the 

town has the opportunity to build a YMCA and/or a public pool, and they should stop putting the 

skateboard park on hold. They can create competitions for young people, such as basketball 

tournaments, frisbee golf competitions for small prizes, and so forth; however, they will need people to 

sponsor those competitions, and as one resident noted, it will take a lot of time to put on these events. 

Additionally, they could create a summer youth recreation program with times like 9:00 a.m. to 3:00 

p.m. (similar to school hours), and kids could bring their lunch and hang out with teachers in the park. 

They currently have a summer program, an attendee mentioned, but it could be expanded.  

Since there is a large number of residents under 50, attendees suggested that the town’s focus turn 

more toward the younger generation than the Baby Boomer generation so that more young people will 

be encouraged to stay here; this can keep Berlin from becoming just a summer rental place in the 

future. Someone also mentioned that the library should increase activities for young people because 

currently, they don’t have as many activities as other libraries in Worcester County. And finally, 

someone suggested a Youth Job Corps for summer employment in which young people can benefit the 

community by completing such tasks as painting fire hydrants, light poles, parking lots, and sidewalks; 

picking up garbage; doing gardening for municipal property and parks; being couriers; and working as 

visitor center guides.  

Other opportunities suggested briefly were upgrading the water capacity and treatment; ending use of 

public dumpsters on July 1st; creating a dog park; creating a “community needs” committee; and 

sponsoring more after-school programs.  

 

 

52 



 

18 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

 

Summary of Listening Session on January 17, 2024 

St. Paul United Methodist Church 

BEACON Team Present: John Hickman, Robert Hoffman, Bailey Willey 

Number of Community Members Present: 40-45 (a few people walked in and out during the session) 

This meeting began with a discussion of strengths, and the first one mentioned was community spirit. 

They said that the town is open to what residents have to say, which they appreciate because that isn’t 

always the case, even in small towns. On a personal level, the town’s diversity is one of its greatest 

strengths: People help each other in time of need, regardless of race, and many people of all races know 

each other by their first name. 

They talked about how much Berlin has to offer, mentioning historic neighborhoods, and art and 

community events. The town has parks that include tennis courts, basketball courts, and places for 

people to walk their dogs; however, they noted that the parks on the east side of Berlin had fewer trees 

than in west side parks, so planting more trees may be an idea to consider in the future. There are good 

schools and a fine health care system, they said, and with credit given to Public Works, they have one of 

the cleanest towns. Because of Berlin’s small size, many residents know their Public Works officials, 

which gets things done faster than in many larger cities. Also mentioned was that the Town of Berlin still 

owns the electric plant, unlike many other municipalities. When the power goes out, it’s usually quickly 

restored. To round out the list of strengths, a couple residents noted that Berlin has much less crime 

compared to many other areas on the Eastern Shore. That comment earned a round of applause.  

There wasn’t much discussion or debate over the strengths, so that conversation moved quickly. Most 

residents felt lucky to live in Berlin. They want to continue to feel that way, and that led into a much 

deeper and longer discussion about challenges and suggestions for improvement. Those two categories 

were not talked about separately but were blended into a single discussion.  

The highway, neighborhood roads, and traffic came up first. One attendee suggested that a bridge be 

built over Rt. 113 for safe crossing. Other residents concentrated more on the need for more crosswalks 

and for improving the crosswalks that already exist, making them safer. They pointed out that too many 

pedestrians were darting across Rt. 113, especially at Uncle Willie’s and Food Lion, which is a safety 

concern. One suggestion was to push the state to finish crosswalks and surrounding areas, because in 

53 



 

19 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

some places, even getting to the crosswalks isn’t safe. One person stated that having safe crosswalks 

could alleviate parking problems to a small degree, with fewer people needing to drive if they can safely 

walk to a destination. Another problem is that many areas don’t have sidewalks either. They felt that 

more sidewalks, crosswalks, and bike lanes would improve mobility in Berlin.  

They also talked about child safety and the traffic situation. Too many people speed through 

neighborhoods that have a large number of children, and an attendee suggested rerouting some traffic 

to avoid these neighborhoods, if possible. And finally, residents believe potholes are a problem the town 

needs to address.  

Attendees also brought up the need for more activities for children and young people. While the church 

is the “cornerstone of the community,” as one resident put it, their resources are limited. They would 

like to see a YMCA and other outreach centers to keep the local youths engaged. Young people plus 

boredom often equals an unfavorable result for both these children and their community, so it’s 

important that activities geared toward young people are available. Also, keeping their youth involved 

will encourage many of them to stay in Berlin when they reach adulthood.  

Most of the discussion centered around the need to combine what they perceive as two Berlins (east 

and west of Rt. 113) into one Berlin, because they don’t see the current situation as fair. The first thing 

brought up was that while low-income housing is built in east Berlin, businesses thrive in west Berlin, 

and that creates resentment, especially when it comes to taxes. The west side, they pointed out, has 

activities all the time, such as Christmas lights and community events; however, citizens on fixed 

incomes help pay for these activities with their taxes, and many on the east side can barely afford to 

stay in their homes. One resident emphatically stated that something must be done about tax inequity. 

The town needs to control growth because taxes are currently used to promote all this growth, some 

mentioned, and that causes a lot of these other problems. They also said that the town can’t continue to 

grow with a 100-year-old infrastructure, meaning even more tax money.  

The east side has a “failure to thrive,” as one resident put it. There used to be a flower shop, pool hall, 

and other businesses, but local zoning isn’t working in the residents’ favor. When a business leaves, the 

property is rezoned to residential, so another business can’t replace it; therefore, one suggestion is to 

bring back a small commercial district that will encourage new businesses to set up shop in east Berlin. 

As one attendee asked, why not have doctors, lawyers, accountants, and other professionals open 

offices on the east side? Currently, that’s not happening. Instead, developers are putting up 

54 



 

20 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

townhouses, and these units are not affordable. While the majority of attendees wanted new 

businesses in east Berlin, one-person voiced opposition to that idea, preferring to keep the east side of 

the town mostly residential.  

At that point, one attendee brought up what he sees as a major concern, and others quickly agreed: 

gentrification on the east side. Everybody used to know each other by their first name, but high prices 

are driving out residents and keeping former residents from returning. People from far outside the area, 

such as Pennsylvania and New Jersey, are replacing them. This is affecting a lot of lower-income African 

American families (among other races) on the east side because if they rent, they won’t be able to 

afford new units put up by developers, and rents for current properties will only increase, driving many 

out. Residents who own their home are being bombarded with offers to sell for cash by aggressive 

developers, and as one attendee noted, that’s not a compliment, as these developers claim. Instead, it 

makes them feel scared and insecure, so they want these solicitations to end. One person suggested 

that if someone approaches them with an offer, they should demand that they cease and desist 

contacting them.  

The attendees discussed the causes and suggestions for improvement for this perceived unfair 

treatment. For one, they noted that there is a severe lack of diversity on the planning commission. One 

attendee claimed that the commission is only interested in protecting developers’ interests, and they 

don’t mind pushing out anyone below a certain income level. Other attendees agreed with this. Other 

suggestions discussed were getting more people to attend town council meetings and demanding that 

these meetings be moved to different locations, meaning some meetings would be held on the east 

side. One resident suggested creating a new town code requiring any developer putting up a new 

property to ensure the rent or purchase is affordable for residents in that area. Another resident quickly 

pointed out that a study is needed to determine what is considered affordable because a quickly 

guessed definition wouldn’t earn immediate consensus.  

To round out this discussion, they said that Berlin’s history needs to be preserved on the east side as 

well as the west side. They suggested renovating and preserving the multi-purpose community center 

across from St. Paul United Methodist Church, for a start, because there is a lot of history in that 

building. One person mentioned that a group was already working on this issue, and their first meeting 

is scheduled for February 5th, which was met with instant approval. And they want older people to get 

their children involved in preserving their town by teaching them the history and encouraging them to 

attend town meetings. Otherwise, when they get older, they’ll leave, and Berlin won’t be the same as 

55 



 

21 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

families move out and people coming from other areas replace them. The east side may even lose much 

of its diversity, which they considered to be one of Berlin’s greatest strengths. While they believe Berlin 

is a nice place to live now, they wonder how long that will last if people don’t act to resolve these 

concerns.  

What We Learned from Both Listening Sessions 

To gain a full perspective, BEACON hosted two listening sessions, the first at the Worcester County 

Library—Berlin Branch (west Berlin), and the second at St. Paul United Methodist Church (east Berlin). 

The longtime perception has been that there are “two Berlins,” with Rt. 113 being the divider, and that 

division isn’t just geographical, according to residents who live on the east side. Getting feedback from 

both sides of the highway provided a fuller picture regarding what is important to both Berlin business 

owners and residents. 

When we asked about strengths, most residents on both sides agreed that Berlin is a great place to live 

thanks to its historic nature, community spirit and involvement, parks, schools, affordable rents, and so 

forth. People on the west side considered its small-town charm to be one of its greatest strengths, and 

while east side residents also mentioned this, they called Berlin’s diversity its greatest strength. Many of 

those residents are African American with several other races also represented, and they claim that this 

diversity has allowed people of all races to know each other on a first-name basis and help each other in 

time of need.  

Another strength is the town’s comparatively low crime rate and safety compared to other locations on 

the Eastern Shore and nearby areas. People in both sessions were impressed with the job the police, fire 

department, and public works do, although during the first session, storm water management was 

discussed as a major problem.  

When it came to challenges and opportunities, crosswalks and sidewalks were areas of major concern in 

both sessions. There aren’t enough sidewalks or bike paths for mobility, and more crosswalks are 

definitely needed, according to attendees. The dangerous crossing of Rt. 113 at Food Lion was 

mentioned as a particular concern during both sessions. Also, speeding in neighborhoods with children 

is too frequent, so this danger also needs the town’s attention. One way would be to lower speed limits, 

even if that means petitioning the state to make that happen. 

56 



 

22 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

Berlin also needs to focus on creating more activities to keep young people engaged, whether it’s 

through library-sponsored activities, competitions, youth-oriented events, or opening a YMCA or similar 

community center. Some suggestions varied, as illustrated earlier in this report, but the need for 

focusing on youth was discussed during both sessions, and attendees felt this issue needs more of the 

town’s focus. Attendees at both sessions wanted young people to choose to live in Berlin so the town 

doesn’t eventually lose its welcoming, small-town character populated with longtime residents and 

become just a place for high-priced summer rentals.  

While residents in both sessions came up with many of the same strengths, challenges, and 

opportunities, they had decidedly different perspectives when it came to business and economic 

development. During the first session, residents called the incredible growth of businesses and jobs an 

“economic miracle,” and their concern was to maintain growth while not losing the town’s small-town 

feel. Also, they wanted its historic nature preserved. They mentioned controlling the types of businesses 

they wanted to come in, and they suggested either a fee or a trade-off (such as a free fire truck) in 

exchange for permitting new development. However, during the second session, residents resented that 

all the businesses, benefits, and activities were going to the west side while east side residents were 

taxed at the same rate; furthermore, their taxes helped support promoting and attracting this new 

commerce. They felt that a lot of the problems discussed during the meeting were the result of too 

much growth on the west side.  The town council and planning commission concentrated on downtown 

Berlin and, according to the east side residents, they protected only the interests of developers, even if 

that meant pushing out longtime Berlin families below a certain economic level. Unlike during the first 

session, these attendees felt threatened that lower-income African Americans, among others, would be 

displaced, and they thought one of the reasons is the lack of diversity on the planning commission; 

therefore, according to them, the situation is unlikely to be resolved soon.   

There was a lot of agreement during both sessions on strengths, challenges, and opportunities; 

however, while parking, storm water management, and infrastructure were major focuses during the 

first session, gentrification and the perceived unfair tax system dominated a large portion of the second 

session. The concept of “two Berlins” coming up more during the second session isn’t surprising because 

like with any dispute over racism and/or economic disparity, the division is more noticeable to the group 

that feels they’re on the wrong side of that boundary.   

  

57 



 

24 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

 

 

STRATEGIC PLANNING  
Town of Berlin 

Planning Session Two 
January 25, 2024 

1:00 PM – 5:00 PM 
Town Hall– Berlin, MD 

 

1. Welcome – 1:00 – 1:05 
 

2. Progress and review of past session – 1:05 – 1:20 
a. Questions 

 
3. Community Values and Vision Statement – 1:20 – 1:40 

a. Review revisions and finalize 
  

4. Review of SWOT – 1:40 – 2:15 
a. Present: 1:40 – 1:50 
b. Group breakout to discuss: 1:50 – 2:05 
c. Feedback: 2:05 -2:15 

i. SWOT – Correct? 
1. Anything missed 

 
5. BREAK – 2:15 – 2:25 

 

6. Review of Linkages – 2:25 – 2:55 
a. Present – 2:25 – 2:30 
b. Group breakout to discuss – 2:30 – 2:50 
c. Feedback – 2:50 – 2:55 

 

7. Discussion – Driving Strategies – 2:55 – 3:55 
a. Present – 2:55 – 3:05 
b. Group Discussion – 3:05 – 3:45 
c. Feedback – 3:45 – 3:55 

 
8. BREAK – 3:55 – 4:00 

 
9. Discussion – Action Steps – 4:00– 4:45 

 
10. Next Steps 4:45 – 5:00 

 
 

58 



 

26 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Berlin 
Strategic Plan for FY 2025 – FY 2028 

 
DRAFT  
1/26/24 

To be updated in Phase 3 
 

 
Prepared by: 

The Business Economic and Community  
Outreach Network at Salisbury University 

 
 

59 



 

27 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

 

Contents 
Appendix A: ................................................................................................................................... 8 

Summary of 2016-2018 Strategic Plan ........................................................................................ 8 
Appendix B: ................................................................................................................................. 11 

SWOT Linkages as shared with Committee ............................................................................ 11 

1/22/24 .......................................................................................................................................... 11 

Appendix C: ................................................................................................................................. 13 
Appendix D: ................................................................................................................................. 23 

Appendix E: ................................................................................................................................. 25 

INTRODUCTION....................................................................................................................... 28 

TOWN OF BERLIN CHARACTERISTICS ........................................................................... 28 
OVERVIEW OF PROJECT AND STRATEGIC PLANNING PROCESS .......................... 29 

PURPOSE OF THE STRATEGIC PLAN ............................................................................... 30 

SWOT ANALYSIS ..................................................................................................................... 32 

STRENGTHS .............................................................................................................................. 32 

WEAKNESSES ........................................................................................................................... 33 
OPPORTUNITY ......................................................................................................................... 33 

SUMMARY SWOT ANALYSIS ............................................................................................... 36 

LINKAGES FROM SWOT ANALYSIS .................................................................................. 37 

DRIVING STRATEGIES .......................................................................................................... 38 
TACTICAL ACTION PLAN..................................................................................................... 39 
 

  

60 



 

28 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

INTRODUCTION 
 
This Strategic Plan, compiled by the Business, Economic, and Community Outreach Network at 
the Franklin P. Perdue School of Business and Salisbury University, was commissioned by the 
Town of Berlin. The contents of this plan were developed through a survey of the Town of 
Berlin residents and business owners, interviews with town employees and external stakeholders, 
two community listening sessions, and a series of strategic planning retreats facilitated by 
BEACON. 

The Town of Berlin, Maryland, is distinguished as a charming and quaint small town, recognized 
for its distinctive ambiance featuring period architecture, antique shops, arts and crafts galleries, 
and a diverse selection of restaurants. Notably, Berlin has garnered popularity as an esteemed 
visitor destination, notably following its prominent feature in the movie "Runaway Bride", as 
well as earning the name "America's Coolest Small Town" by Budget Travel. The town 
seamlessly integrates a historical charm with a contemporary cultural vibrancy, rendering it an 
attractive locale for both residents and visitors. The fusion of small-town charm and cultural 
attractions contributes to Berlin's unique appeal, establishing it as a distinct and hospitable 
community within the state of Maryland. 

TOWN OF BERLIN CHARACTERISTICS 
 
As of July 1, 2022, the estimated population of Berlin stands at 5,259, based on data from the 
United States Census Bureau. The demographic profile indicates a distribution of age groups, 
with 3.1% of the population being under 5 years old, 28.4% under 18 years old, and 18.2% aged 
65 years and over. The gender composition reveals 55.6% female individuals. 

In terms of racial diversity, the majority of the population identifies as White alone, constituting 
79.4%, followed by 13.9% as Black or African American alone, 0.3% as Asian alone, and 6.4% 
as Two or More Races. No reported individuals are identifying as American Indian and Alaska 
Native alone or Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander alone. 

Ethnically, 3.8% of the population identifies as Hispanic or Latino, while 77.3% are White alone, 
not Hispanic or Latino. It's important to note that the percentages for American Indian and 
Alaska Native alone, as well as Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander alone, are reported 
as 0.0%1 

The economic landscape of the region reveals significant trends from 2017 to 2021. The civilian 
labor force, comprising individuals aged 16 years and above, constituted 63.4% of the total 
population during this period. Among this workforce, females accounted for 57.3%. Key sectors 
contributing to the economy include accommodation and food services, with sales totaling 
$16,043 (in thousands) in 2017, and health care and social assistance, reporting substantial 
receipts and revenue amounting to $182,847 (in thousands) during the same year. Additionally, 

                                                           
1 U.S. Census Bureau. "Age and Sex." American Community Survey, ACS 5-Year Estimates Subject Tables, Table 
S0101, 2022. 

61 



 

29 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

the retail sector played a significant role, recording total sales of $100,937 (in thousands) in 
2017, with a per capita retail sales value of $21,967 (in thousands). 

In terms of health statistics, approximately 12.6% of individuals under the age of 65 reported 
having a disability between 2017 and 2021. The percentage of individuals under 65 years 
without health insurance was 7.6%. 

Examining income and poverty, the median household income, adjusted for 2021 dollars, stood 
at $69,955 from 2017 to 2021. Per capita income in the past 12 months, similarly adjusted, 
amounted to $31,251 during the same period. The percentage of persons living in poverty was 
reported at 10.5%, providing insights into both the economic prosperity and social challenges 
within the community. 

In 2022, the Town of Berlin sustained a workforce of 2,319 individuals aged 16 years and over, 
actively engaged in a variety of industries2. The employment distribution across sectors paints a 
diverse economic landscape for the town. Notably, the construction industry employs 199 
individuals, while manufacturing and wholesale trade provide opportunities for 69 and 10 
workers, respectively. The retail sector contributes significantly with 259 employed individuals, 
followed by transportation and warehousing, and utilities employing 63, respectively. The town 
sees activity in information-related occupations with 38 individuals, and finance, insurance, real 
estate, and rental and leasing sectors engage 126 workers. Furthermore, professional, scientific, 
management, administrative, and waste management services collectively employ 175 
individuals. The educational and healthcare sectors play a crucial role in the town's employment 
scene, with a combined total of 688 workers. Additionally, arts, entertainment, recreation, and 
accommodation, and food services provide jobs for 560 individuals. Other services, excluding 
public administration, account for 48 employees, while public administration employs 84 
individuals. 

OVERVIEW OF PROJECT AND STRATEGIC PLANNING PROCESS 
 
The project is structured in three distinct phases, each culminating in a collaborative review and 
adjustment session between BEACON and the Town of Berlin. The iterative approach ensures 
flexibility and alignment with evolving needs. 

Phase 1 - Preliminary Assessment: 

BEACON initiated the project by engaging with the leadership of the Town of Berlin to outline 
broad goals for the strategic plan. This phase involved the development of an initial survey for 
Berlin's citizens and businesses and the gathering of input from elected officials and department 
leaders. Telephone interviews with elected officials further enhanced BEACON’s understanding 
of the Town. The outcome of Phase 1 is a summarized report that paves the way for Phase 2. 

 

                                                           
2 U.S. Census Bureau, 2018-2022 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates 

62 



 

30 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

Phase 2 - Constituent Engagement and Planning Retreat: 

Leveraging the insights acquired in Phase 1, BEACON worked collaboratively with the Berlin 
Town Council to explore strategies for garnering additional community feedback. Two 
community listening sessions were conducted: the first session took place in the Worcester 
County Public Library—Berlin Branch on January 10, 2024, and the second session occurred in 
St. Paul United Methodist Church on January 17, 2024. Following these listening sessions, a 
second strategic planning retreat was facilitated on January 25, 2024, at the Berlin Town Hall. 
The community listening sessions and the second strategic planning retreat led to the analysis of 
findings and the preparation of a comprehensive report, setting the stage for Phase 3. 

Phase 3 - Strategic Action Planning and Follow-up: Upon Approval of Berlin Town 
Council 

Upon approval by the Berlin Town Council, the final phase will involve reconvening officials 
and constituents for a third strategic planning meeting with the committee, which will be 
conducted during two sessions to allow the committee members to maintain focus and reflect on 
the work they have done.  This phase will leverage insights from the initial retreat. A 
comprehensive strategic action plan, delineating projects and initiatives, will be developed based 
on the retreat findings. The committee will review the final draft to ensure it accurately reflects 
the work of the group.  The final draft plan will be presented to Town Councilmembers in a 
working session and shared with the public in an open town session(s). Following these sessions, 
the draft strategic plan will be subject to final edits and updates. The project will conclude with 
follow-up assistance during the after-care period, facilitating the integration of follow-up 
committee work and the tracking of progress. 

PURPOSE OF THE STRATEGIC PLAN 
 
The Strategic Plan for the Town of Berlin serves as the guiding framework for the Town 
Council's future activities and operations. In accordance with state law, the Council is entrusted 
with adopting policies that set the overall direction for the town. Strategic planning plays a vital 
role in offering clarity, direction, and focus, particularly in dynamic and high-growth 
environments. The plan conveys a clear message about the identity of the town and its 
aspirations for the future, outlining organizational priorities and corresponding objectives to 
achieve these goals. 

The objectives of the Town of Berlin Strategic Plan are as follows: 

• Establish priorities to set the focus for the town. 
• Clearly define the town's actions and investments. 
• Direct the accomplishment of short-term and long-term goals. 

This strategic plan will be utilized to: 

• Concentrate the town's organizational efforts and resources. 
• Establish priorities for annual work plans. 

63 



 

31 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

• Evaluate progress towards realizing its vision. 
• Adjust the town's direction in response to a changing environment. 

The plan serves as the framework for activities and operations across all town departments. Key 
elements include the town's core values, vision and mission statements, areas of focus with 
defined objectives, and implementation strategies with associated responsibilities. Collectively, 
these components shape the overall direction of the Town of Berlin, contributing to the 
betterment of future generations. 

MISSION, VISION, VALUES 

The mission, vision, and values were developed through a series of discussions among the retreat 
participants. The mission statement should communicate what the Town of Berlin is (its reason 
for existence) while the vision outlines what the Town aspires to be in the coming years. The 
values identify the core principles that should guide and direct the town and their decision-
making and actions.  

COMMUNITY MISSION  

We envision a town where our heritage, culture, resilience, friendliness, and well-being serve as 
the guiding principles, fostering a vibrant and inclusive community. 

COMMUNITY VISION  

The heart of the Town of Berlin lies in our dedication to nurturing community pride, preserving 
heritage, and creating a clean, safe, enjoyable, and affordable environment for residents, workers, 
and visitors alike. 

64 



 

32 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

COMMUNITY VALUES 

SWOT ANALYSIS 
 

The following is a comprehensive analysis of the environment of The Town of Berlin. This was 
developed through a survey of The Town of Berlin residents and business owners to which 117 
individuals responded,  interviews with employees and external stakeholders as well as seven 
key informant interviews. The information was updated after the two listening session to reflect 
additional views.  Outlined below are the strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats 
(SWOT) that must be considered in planning for the future of The Town of Berlin. The strengths 
and weaknesses focus on facets that are internal to the organization while the opportunities and 
threats are part of the external environment.  

STRENGTHS 
• Small town charm 
• Community involvement 
• Safety 
• Local businesses 
• Historic downtown 
• Tourism 
• Events 
• Environmentally friendly (green spaces and healthy living) 
• Safe and clean 
• Community events/community spirit and engagement 

Vibrancy
Embracing growth/future-oriented: Fostering growth, innovation, and preparation for the town’s future.

Well-being
Committed to wellness: prioritizing the health and wellbeing of our community

Inclusivity
Welcoming/Respectful: Embracing diversity and promoting a friendly and respectful community for all.

Resiliency
Financially Sustainable: Ensuring responsible stewardship for a stable and secure financial foundation.

Culture
Arts/Entertainment/Esthetic: Creating a vibrant culutal scene for all to enjoy.

Heritage
Pride: Legacy of the past, extending seamlessly into the future.

65 



 

33 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

• Diverse and vibrant business community 
• Affordable rent 
• Proximity to major highways and metropolitan areas. 
• People 
• Cleanliness 
• Friendliness 
• Sense of community 
• Small town atmosphere 
• Businesses 
• Location 
• Historic character 
• Volunteers 
• Mayor 
• Collecting money 

WEAKNESSES 
• Historic Preservation 
• Environmental Conservation 
• Fiscal Responsibility 
• Community Development 
• Infrastructure and Services 
• Disproportional growth 
• Limited workforce to fill positions in public services 
• Parking 
• Event succession planning 
• Growth and Development 
• Traffic and speeding 
• Tax inequity 
• Gentrification 
• Affordable Housing 
• Community Unity 
• Youth and Recreation 
• Economic Growth 
• Education 
• Transportation 
• Property Development  

OPPORTUNITY  
• More Parking  
• Affordable Housing and Biking Trails  
• Repurposing the Chicken Plant 
• Skate Park and Green Spaces 
• Bike Path and Rail with a Trail  
• Fiscal Responsibility and Town Foundation  

66 



 

34 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

• Balance Between Growth and Preservation 
• Use of Heron Park  
• More Sidewalks 
• Affordable Living 
• Evening and Sunday Activities 
• Downtown Commercial Walkability 
• Transportation 
• Stormwater Management (SWM) Improvement 
• YMCA  
• Jobs and Employment  
• Preserve Historic Victorian Aspect  
• Community Swimming Pool and Year-round Activities  
• Curbing Rentals and Enhancing Town Businesses  
• More Walkability and Sidewalks 
• Efficiency in Government 
• Athletic Facilities and More Parking 
• Support of Small Businesses 
• Utilizing the Tyson Building  
• Long-distance Bike Path and Outdoor Opportunities 
• Open Spaces and Reasonable Rental Rates 
• Enforcement of Town Codes and Growth Control 
• Care for Tax-paying Residents  
• Cautious Growth with Walkability and Nature Preservation  
• Lower Electric Costs  
• Development Along US 50 and US 113 
• Variety of Businesses 
• Christmas Lights Design 
• Perusing Grants for Sewer Pipes  
• Venue Similar to Freeman Stage 
• Community Guide for Being the Best Small Town 
• Lower Taxes 
• Employee Parking Area 
• Sell Tyson Plant 
• Understanding the Two Groups in Town  
• Multi-purpose Community Spaces  
• Stop Over-development of Rural Land  
• Solar Panels and More Parking  
• ADUs for Affordable Housing 
• Clean Up Stephen Decatur Park 
• Education Demand Units (EDUs) 

67 



 

35 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

 
 THREATS 

• Overdevelopment 
• Affordable housing 
• Stormwater issues 
• High tax rates 
• Too much growth 
• Lack of affordable housing 
• Traffic 
• Economic 
• Town government 
• Overbuilding 
• Not enough housing 
• Overgrowth 
• Overdevelopment of housing 
• Double taxes 
• Competition 
• Electric Bill 
• Rising costs of living 
• Downtown businesses 
• Transportation 
• Environmental issues 
• Not enough employment opportunities 
• Infrastructure issues 
• Youth issues 
• Rising taxes 
• Race issues 
• Community divisions 
• Political agendas 
• Woke DEI policies 
• Drug use among the youth 
• Small town feel threatened 
• Planning and zoning decisions 
• Open space and land use planning 
• Leadership 

 
 
 

 
The remainder of this page was intentionally left blank. 

  

68 



 

36 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

 
SUMMARY SWOT ANALYSIS 

 

To develop the focused SWOT diagram below, BEACON facilitated a discussion between The 
Town of Berlin retreat participants concerning the full SWOT analysis from the previous pages. 
Included in the diagram are the strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats as identified and 
prioritized through the discussion. 

STRENGTHS OPPORTUNITIES 
 

• Cultural and historical heritage 
• Diversity of people 
• Access to business and services 
• Environmentally friendly (green 

spaces and healthy living) 
• Safe and clean 
• Community events/community spirit 

and engagement 
• Diverse and vibrant business 

community 
• Affordable rent 
• Proximity to major highways and 

metropolitan areas. 
• Parks 
• Schools 

• Communication 
• Infrastructure – Fiber Optic Internet; 

water and electricity costs; 
stormwater management 

• Affordable housing 
• Disproportional growth 
• Limited workforce to fill positions in 

public services 
• Parking 
• Event succession planning 
• Insufficient sidewalks and crosswalks 
• Lack of Community Center – Youth 

Activities 
• Traffic and speeding 
• Tax inequity 
• Gentrification 

  
WEAKNESSES THREATS 

 
• Event succession planning 
• Infrastructure and accessibility 
• Public art/murals/statues 
• Diversified town events 
• Affordable housing 
• Shuttles/Transportation for visitors 
• Proximity to major highways 
• Public safety 
• Diversified town events 
• Control overdevelopment 
• Improve green space in public parks 

 

 
• Inappropriate growth 
• Overdevelopment 
• Economic challenges 
• Ability to maintain workforce 
• Access to events/recreation for all 

ages 
• Housing/Affordability 
• Behavioral health and provider access 
• Public Safety 
• Loss of diversity 

 

  

69 



 

37 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

 
LINKAGES FROM SWOT ANALYSIS 

Using the focused SWOT analysis above, the following linkages were developed between the 
four elements (strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats). These linkages serve as the 
foundation for the organization’s driving strategies. To take advantage of the opportunities 
identified, The Town of Berlin needs to fully use its related strengths. Furthermore, to prevent 
the identified threats from more significantly impacting the organization, any related weaknesses 
must be addressed. The linkages that were developed are as follows: 
 
Linkages Between Strengths and Opportunities (Suggesting Potential Proactive Strategies) 
 
Cultural and historical heritage  Event succession planning, Public art/murals/statues 
Diversity of people  Diversified town events, Affordable Housing 
Access to business and services  Infrastructure and accessibility, Shuttles/Transportation for 
visitors 
Environmentally friendly (green spaces and healthy living) Infrastructure and accessibility, 
Proximity to major highways 
Safe and clean  Affordable Housing, Public Safety 
Community events/community spirit and engagement  Event succession planning, Diversified 
town events 
Diverse and vibrant business community  Infrastructure and accessibility, Diversified town 
events 
Affordable rent Affordable housing, Control overdevelopment 
Proximity to tourist areas  Improve access and safety at highway crossings 
Parks  Improve green space in public parks 
 
Linkages Between Weaknesses and Threats (Suggesting Potential Reactive Strategies) 

Communication  Ability to maintain workforce 
Infrastructure  Economic challenges 
Affordable housing Housing/Affordability, Economic challenges, Overdevelopment 
Disproportional growth  Economic challenges, Inappropriate growth, Overdevelopment 
Limited workforce to fill positions in public services Behavioral health and provider access,  
Ability to maintain workforce 
Parking  Access to events/recreation for all ages 
Event succession planning  Access to events/recreation for all ages 
Insufficient sidewalks and crosswalks Economic challenges 
Not enough activities to keep youth engaged  Access to events/recreation for all ages 
Traffic and speeding  Public safety 
Tax inequity  Economic challenges 
Gentrification  Loss of diversity, Overdevelopment 

70 



 

38 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

 

DRIVING STRATEGIES 
 
The following driving strategies flow from the SWOT analysis and associated linkages outlined 
above. They are focused on the areas of highest priority for the organization to successfully 
fulfill its vision. The driving strategies should direct the organization forward in a focused 
manner over the next several years and are broken down into three categories: short-term (1-3 
years), medium-term (3-5 years), and long-term (5+ years). 
 

Driving Strategy 1:  
Short-Term (1-3 years) 

Improve and expand infrastructure focusing on reliability and 
safety. 

Driving Strategy 2:  
Short-Term (1-3 years) Focus on public safety needs, demands, and expectations. 

Driving Strategy 3:  
Short-Term (1-3 years) 

Address interconnectivity of neighborhoods and access to 
businesses and services including parking. 

Driving Strategy 4:  
Medium-Term (3-5 years) 

Retain a small-town feel, enhance equity, and provide 
opportunities for all income levels to live and thrive in Berlin. 

Driving Strategy 5:  
Medium-Term (3-5 years) 

Improve recreation facilities, public amenities, and green 
spaces including existing facilities and access for all. 

Driving Strategy 6: 
Long-Term (5+ years) Unify the town. 

 

  

71 



 

39 
Town of Berlin Strategic Plan 
Prepared by BEACON 

 
TACTICAL ACTION PLAN 

 

A tactical action plan is developed to highlight the action steps that are required for the driving 
strategy to be successful. The tactical action plan reveals what each action step is, who will be 
responsible for the action, when the action will be completed, the resources needed to complete 
the action, and how the success of the action will be measured through specific metrics. Policy 
and procedure documentation should be developed, as appropriate, for each action step to 
continue to guide the operation of the organization into the future.  

The charts on following pages contain a tactical action plan for each identified driving strategy.  

 

 

 

 

 

72 



 

40 
 

 

Driving Strategy #1: Improve and expand infrastructure focusing on reliability and safety. 

 

Action 
Step 

WHAT? WHO? WHEN? WITH WHAT 
RESOURCES? 

WHAT METRICS? 

 
AS1: 

 

Increase the number of 
businesses and homes with 
Fiber Optic Connectivity 

Champions? 
Decider? 
Influencer? 
Partners - Simple Fiber or 
Choptank 

1-3 years Time 
Human 
Expertise 
Financial (Grants) 
 

• The number of connected 
businesses and residents 

 
AS2: 

 

Improve water 
resources/water quality 
(sewer) 

Environmental Protection Agency 
Maryland Department of 
Environment 
Town Staff  
Town Engineers 
Davis, Bowen & Friedel 

1-3 years Time 
Human 
Expertise 
Financial (Grants & 
Town Budget) 

• Whether 
recommendations have been 
followed through or not. 

 
AS3: 

 

Stormwater/runoff 
improvements/study 

Maryland Department of 
Environment 
Zoning 
 

1-3 years Time 
Human 
Expertise 
Informational 
Financial (Grants & 
Town Budget) 

• # of rain gardens 
• Efficient drainage 
• Measuring contaminates 

in runoff 
• Less complaints 
• Observable measurements 

 
AS4: 

 

Improve roads and 
sidewalks (potholes) 
 

Developers, state highway 
administration 

 

1-3 years Time 
Human 
Expertise 
Informational 
Financial (Town 
Budget) 

• # of potholes 
• Yards with new sidewalks 
• Less complaints 

AS5: 

Community involvement 
and education on 
stormwater/runoff 

Volunteers, potential programs, 
workshops, Town Crier, Town 
Public Information Officer 

1-3 years Time 
Human 
Technology 

 

• # of citizens involved 

73 



 

41 
 

Driving Strategy #2: Focus on public safety needs, demands, and expectations. 

 

 

Action 
Step 

WHAT? WHO? WHEN? WITH WHAT 
RESOURCES? 

WHAT METRICS? 

 
AS1: 

 

    •  

 
AS2: 

 

    •  

 
AS3: 

 

    •  

 
AS4: 

 

    •  

AS5: 

    •  

74 



 

42 
 

Driving Strategy #3: Address interconnectivity of neighborhoods and access to businesses and services including 
parking. 

 

 

Action 
Step 

WHAT? WHO? WHEN? WITH WHAT 
RESOURCES? 

WHAT METRICS? 

 
AS1: 

 

    •  

 
AS2: 

 

    •  

 
AS3: 

 

    •  

 
AS4: 

 

    •  

AS5: 

    •  

75 



 

43 
 

Driving Strategy #4: Retain small town feel, enhance equity, and provide opportunities for all income levels to 
live and thrive in Berlin. 

 

 

Action 
Step 

WHAT? WHO? WHEN? WITH WHAT 
RESOURCES? 

WHAT METRICS? 

 
AS1: 

 

    •  

 
AS2: 

 

    •  

 
AS3: 

 

    •  

 
AS4: 

 

    •  

AS5: 

    •  

76 



 

44 
 

Driving Strategy #5:  Improve recreation facilities, public amenities, and green spaces including existing facilities 
and access for all. 

 

 

Action 
Step 

WHAT? WHO? WHEN? WITH WHAT 
RESOURCES? 

WHAT METRICS? 

 
AS1: 

 

    •  

 
AS2: 

 

    •  

 
AS3: 

 

    •  

 
AS4: 

 

    •  

AS5: 

    •  

77 



 

45 
 

Driving Strategy #6:  Unify the town. 

 

 

Action 
Step 

WHAT? WHO? WHEN? WITH WHAT 
RESOURCES? 

WHAT METRICS? 

 
AS1: 

 

    •  

 
AS2: 

 

    •  

 
AS3: 

 

    •  

 
AS4: 

 

    •  

AS5: 

    •  

78 



 

1 | P a g e  
 

To:  Mary Bohlen – Town Administrator 
From:   Craig Kleinhenz – AVP of Power Supply Planning 
Subject: Berlin 2023 Wholesale Power Costs 
Date:  1/31/2024 
 
Attached are summaries of wholesale power supply costs for 2023. Power rates 
for Berlin ended the year at $59.56 / MWh, which is approximately 10.9% ($5.85 / 
MWh) higher than forecast but 2.4% ($1.49 / MWh) lower than 2022 rates.  
     
For the year, Berlin used 46,685 MWh of energy. This is a 5.9% decrease from 
2022 and 4.6% below our 2023 forecast. Much of the lower load can be 
attributed to the mild temperatures that Maryland saw throughout the entire year.  
 
Congestion (the cost of transporting power to Berlin from DPL Zone LMP) was 
higher than expected which increased rates by approximately $2.00 / MWh.  
 
DPL Transmission rates came in higher than expected, adding an additional 
$3.75 / MWh to rates.  DPL’s transmission rates are filed mid-year and their new 
rate was higher than expected in our budget. 
 
Included below is a chart showing Berlin's monthly energy usage compared to 
forecast and a table containing 2023 peak data. Energy sources and rates for 
2023 are shown on the following pages. Please contact me with any questions 
(ckleinhenz@amppartners.org or 614-623-7553). 

 
 

(15)°

(5)°

5 °

15 °

25 °

35 °

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Te
m

p
er

at
u

re
 D

if
fe

re
n

ce
 f

ro
m

 N
o

rm
al

 (
F)

2022 Actual 2023 Forecast 2023 Actual Diff. in Temp

M
W

h

Berlin-MD 2023 Monthly Energy

Agenda Item 3 c

79 



 

2 | P a g e  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Berlin-MD 2023 2022 2021 2020

Peak Demand (MW) 11.81 13.37 10.69 11.07

Month & Day Feb 04 Dec 25 Jan 29 Jan 21

Hour Ending (EST) 08 08 08 08

Temp. During Peak 17° 14° 25° 23°
Washington D.C. Weather Data

DPL Monthly 7x24
18.7%

Exelon Rem. Req. 
2023

80.9%

Berlin Diesels
0.5%

Berlin-MD 2023 Energy Sources

80 



 

3 | P a g e  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

$40

$45

$50

$55

$60

$65

$70

$75

$80

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

$
/M

W
h

Berlin-MD 2023 Monthly Rate Summary

2023 Actual 2023 Forecast 2022 Actual 2021 Actual

Berlin-MD ACTUAL COSTS

Annual 2023 ACTUAL DEMAND = 11.81 MW 01/29/2024

Days 365 ACTUAL ENERGY = 46,685 MWH

EFFECTIVE %

DEMAND DEMAND ENERGY LOAD RATE OF

SOURCE MW MW-MO MWH FACTOR  $/KW $/MWH $/MWH  $/KW $/MWH DOLLARS

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (16) (17) (18)

1 DPL Monthly 7x24 1.00 12.00 8,760 100% $0.00 $62.50 $0.00 $0.00 $547,500 $62.50 19.7%

2 Exelon Rem. Req. 2023 0.00 0.00 37,925 0% $0.00 $36.00 $9.30 $0.00 $1,717,814 $45.30 61.8%

3 Berlin Diesels 0.00 0.00 219 0% $0.00 $300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $65,641 $300.00 2.4%

Previous Month Adj. 0.00 0.00 0 0% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0 $0.00 0.0%

Market Purchases 0.00 0.00 0 0% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0 $0.00 0.0%

Market Sales 0.00 0.00 0 0% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0 $0.00 0.0%

POWER TOTAL  1.00 12.00 46,904 535% $0 $1,978,433 $352,522 $0 $2,330,955 $49.70 83.8%

4 Installed Capacity 6.59 67.37 0 $2.55 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $171,904 $3.67 6.2%

5 Transmission 5.33 64.00 46,466 $2.65 $0.85 $0.00 $0.00 $209,059 $4.46 7.5%

Other PJM Charges 0.00 0.00 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0 $0.00 0.0%

6 Service Fee B 46,685 $0.00 $0.58 $0.00 $0.00 $27,077 $0.58 1.0%

7 Dispatch Charge 46,685 $0.00 $0.89 $0.00 $0.00 $41,478 $0.88 1.5%

OTHER TOTAL $341,413 $108,106 $449,518 $9.58 16.2%

GRAND TOTAL PURCHASED 46,904 $2,780,474

Delivered to members 11.814 46,685 $2,780,474 $59.56 100.0%

DEMAND ENERGY L.F. TOTAL $ $/MWh Avg Temp

2023 Forecast 11.44 48,939 49% $2,628,588 $53.71 57.1

2022 Actual 13.37 49,631 42% $3,029,694 $61.04 57.3

2021 Actual 10.69 48,358 52% $2,443,052 $50.52 59.1

2023 Temp 59.1

CONGESTION/L

OSSES

CAPACITY 

CREDIT 

DEMAND 

RATE

ENERGY 

RATE TOTAL 

CHARGES

81 



Staff Report: Step and Grade with COLA, KJ  Page 1 of 2 

2/22/2024  

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

 

TO:   Mayor and Council 
FROM:   Kelsey Jensen, Human Resources Director 
MEETING DATE: February 26, 2024 
SUBJECT: Step and Grade System for FY 2025 with COLA and Projections  

__________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUMMARY FOR STEP AND GRADE WITH COLA:  
 
Based on the feedback received at the February 12, 2024, Mayor and Council Meeting. I would 
like to present the financial implications associated with the proposed implementation of the 
step and grade system across all funds. The annual additional cost for this initiative is estimated 
to be approximately $204,000, excluding potential factors such as scheduled pay increases for 
personnel, vacancies, and other unforeseen circumstances, which may necessitate slight 
adjustments. Specifically, pay increases within the Water and Electric departments for the 
successful completion of steps in their apprenticeship programs and Police Officers receiving 
increments upon a promotion for tenure. Additionally, certain roles benefit from pay increases 
linked to job-related certifications and licenses.  
 
The cost projections for the step and grade system, factoring in a 2%, 3%, and 4% Cost of Living 
Adjustment (COLA), are as follows: 
 

- Implementation of the Step and Grade with a 2% COLA: Approximately $316,000. 
 

- Implementation of the Step and Grade with a 3% COLA: Approximately $372,000. 
 

- Implementation of the Step and Grade with a 4% COLA: Approximately $428,000. 
 
Projections for fiscal years 2026, 2027, and 2028 have been computed based on the FY 2025 
figures. The estimation involves multiplying the FY 2025 figures by 2.5% (representing the cost 
of a step) for each subsequent year. More comprehensive figures will be provided at the start 
of each new Fiscal Year.  
 
For FY 2025 budget consideration, I am seeking a consensus from the group on the preferred 
figure to include in the budget proposal. Recognizing that this figure has the potential to change 
and does not oblige the Mayor and Council to approve the figure come budget adoption.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

82 



Staff Report: Step and Grade with COLA, KJ  Page 2 of 2 

2/22/2024  

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  
 

 Current Totals 
Totals with 
S&G 

Totals with 
S&G and 2% 

Totals with 
S&G & 3% 

Totals with 
S&G and 4% 

GF $3,524,271.94  $3,650,246.08  $3,721,476.67  $3,757,091.96  $3,792,707.26  

ELEC $900,542.26  $936,032.61  $954,552.47  $963,812.40  $973,072.33  

WATER $1,089,565.07  $1,131,978.56  $1,154,078.75  $1,165,128.85  $1,176,178.95  

TOTALS $5,514,379.27  $5,718,257.25  $5,830,107.89  $5,886,033.21  $5,941,958.54  

       

  

Diff current & 
S&G 

Diff current & 
S&G with 2% 

Diff current & 
S&G with 3% 

Diff current & 
S&G with 4% 

 GF $125,974.14  $197,204.73  $232,820.02  $268,435.32  

 ELEC $35,490.35  $54,010.21  $63,270.14  $72,530.07  

 WATER $42,413.49  $64,513.68  $75,563.78  $86,613.88  

 TOTALS $203,877.98  $315,728.62  $371,653.94  $427,579.27  

      

Estimates      
FY26 $5,652,238.75  $5,861,213.68  $5,975,860.59  $6,033,184.04  $6,090,507.50  

FY27 $5,793,544.72  $6,007,744.02  $6,125,257.10  $6,184,013.64  $6,242,770.19  

FY28 $5,938,383.34  $6,157,937.62  $6,278,388.53  $6,338,613.98  $6,398,839.45  
 
 
 

SUMMARY FOR LONGEVITY/TENURE:  
 

I currently do not have figures for tenure/longevity at this time. However, I am actively working 
on compiling the necessary information and am optimistic about providing a comprehensive 
update for consideration at the meeting on Monday. Although the figures to reward longevity 
would be a separate decision for this body to consider. 
 

83 



__________ 
Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 1 - 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-01 
 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF BERLIN 
INFRASTRUCTURE BONDS, 2024 SERIES A 

 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF BERLIN, A 
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE STATE OF MARYLAND (THE “ISSUER”), 
PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED THREE MILLION EIGHT HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($3,800,000.00) OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
BERLIN, MARYLAND, TO BE KNOWN AS THE “MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF BERLIN 
INFRASTRUCTURE BONDS, 2024 SERIES A” (OR BY SUCH OTHER OR ADDITIONAL 
DESIGNATION OR DESIGNATIONS AS REQUIRED BY THE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT ADMINISTRATION IDENTIFIED HEREIN, THE “BONDS”), TO BE 
ISSUED AND SOLD PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF SECTIONS 4-101 THROUGH 
4-255 OF THE HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ARTICLE OF THE 
ANNOTATED CODE OF MARYLAND, AS AMENDED, FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
PROVIDING ALL OR A PORTION OF THE FUNDS NECESSARY FOR (I) FINANCING, 
REIMBURSING AND/OR REFINANCING COSTS OF THE PROJECTS GENERALLY 
REFERRED TO BY THE ISSUER AS  (A) ELECTRIC AMI METER SYSTEM AND (B) 
PUBLIC WORKS BUILDING, (II) FUNDING A PORTION OF A CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 
AND/OR OTHER RESERVES, AND/OR (III) PAYING OR REIMBURSING ISSUANCE AND 
OTHER COSTS RELATED TO THE BONDS; PROVIDING THAT THE BONDS SHALL BE 
ISSUED UPON THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE ISSUER; PROVIDING FOR THE 
DISBURSEMENT OF THE PROCEEDS OF THE SALE OF THE BONDS AND FOR THE 
LEVY OF ANNUAL TAXES UPON ALL ASSESSABLE PROPERTY WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE ISSUER FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF AND 
INTEREST ON THE BONDS AS THEY SHALL RESPECTIVELY MATURE OR COME DUE; 
PROVIDING FOR THE FORMS, TENOR, DENOMINATIONS, MATURITY DATE OR 
DATES AND OTHER PROVISIONS OF THE BONDS; PROVIDING FOR THE SALE OF THE 
BONDS; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED PURPOSES, INCLUDING, WITHOUT 
LIMITATION, THE METHOD OF FIXING THE INTEREST RATE OR RATES TO BE 
BORNE BY THE BONDS, THE APPROVAL, EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF 
DOCUMENTS, AGREEMENTS, CERTIFICATES AND INSTRUMENTS, AND THE 
MAKING OF OR PROVIDING FOR THE MAKING OF REPRESENTATIONS AND 
COVENANTS CONCERNING THE TAX STATUS OF INTEREST ON THE BONDS. 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, Mayor and Council of Berlin (the “Issuer”) is a municipal corporation of the 
State of Maryland organized under a charter (the “Charter”) adopted in accordance with Article 
XI-E of the Constitution of Maryland and operating under the Charter and other applicable law; 
and 

Agenda Item 5

84 



__________ 
Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 2 - 
 

 
WHEREAS, Sections 4-101 through 4-255 of the Housing and Community Development 

Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, as amended (the “Act”), authorize the Community 
Development Administration (the “Administration”), a governmental unit in the Division of 
Development Finance of the Department of Housing and Community Development, a principal 
department of the government of the State of Maryland, to provide financial assistance to political 
subdivisions and municipal corporations to finance, among other things, infrastructure projects 
and to establish a capital reserve fund in connection therewith; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of the Act, the Issuer has determined to issue its 
general obligation bonds in one or more series in the aggregate principal amount not to exceed 
Three Million Eight Hundred Thousand Dollars ($3,800,000.00) (the “Bonds,” as defined herein) 
for the purpose of providing all or a portion of the funds necessary for (i) financing, reimbursing 
and/or refinancing all or a portion of the costs of the Project (as defined in Section 1(a) hereof), 
(ii) funding a portion of a capital reserve fund and/or other reserves required by the Administration 
under the Program identified below, and/or (iii) paying or reimbursing issuance and other costs 
related to the Bonds; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Issuer proposes to issue and sell the Bonds to the Administration, in 
connection with the Local Government Infrastructure Financing Program of the Administration 
(the “Program”); and  
 

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the Issuer by this Ordinance to provide for the issuance 
and sale of the aforementioned Bonds and to obtain a loan or loans from the Administration 
pursuant to the Program (collectively, the “Loan”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Issuer intends to authorize the execution and delivery of the Bonds and 

all other documents, agreements, certificates and other materials related to the issuance, sale and 
delivery of the Bonds and the Loan; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Administration intends to issue one or more series of its Local 
Government Infrastructure Bonds to finance the Loan and other loans to be financed pursuant to 
the Program. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED AND ENACTED BY THE COUNCIL OF 
MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF BERLIN: 

 
SECTION 1.  Authorization, Terms, Form of Bonds. 

 
(a) Mayor and Council of Berlin (the “Issuer”) shall borrow upon its full faith and 

credit and shall issue and sell upon its full faith and credit an aggregate principal amount not to 
exceed Three Million Eight Hundred Thousand Dollars ($3,800,000.00) of its general obligation 
bonds, to be issued pursuant to the authority of Sections 4-101 through 4-255 of the Housing and 
Community Development Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, as amended (the “Act”), to 

85 



__________ 
Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 3 - 
 

be known as the “Mayor and Council of Berlin Infrastructure Bonds, 2024 Series A” (or by such 
other or additional designation or designations as required by the Administration (as defined 
below) prior to issuance, including, without limitation, to identify separate series or subseries 
(collectively, the “Bonds” and, individually, a “Bond”)).  The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds 
shall be used for the public purpose of providing all or a portion of the funds necessary for (i) 
financing, reimbursing and/or refinancing all or a portion of the costs of two separate projects 
generally referred to by the Issuer as:  (A) Electric AMI Meter System and (B) Public Works 
Building (which building may be occupied by other departments of the Issuer in addition to the 
Public Works Department), together with, in each such case as is applicable with respect to the 
projects identified in clauses (i)(A) and (B), the acquisition or payment for, improved or 
unimproved land, necessary property rights and equipment, related site and utility improvements, 
related planning, study, design, architectural, engineering, document development, bidding, 
permitting, acquisition, demolition, removal, construction, reconstruction, expansion, 
rehabilitation, renovation, repair, construction management, inspection, installation, improvement, 
furnishing and equipping expenses and other related expenses, paving, repaving, sidewalk, curb, 
gutter and drain work, landscaping, and functionally related activities necessary at the locations or 
facilities at or near which such undertakings occur, administrative, financial and legal expenses, 
and related or similar costs, and any such costs that may represent the Issuer’s share or contribution 
to such undertaking (collectively, the “Project”), (ii) funding a portion of a capital reserve fund 
and/or other reserves required by the Community Development Administration (the 
“Administration”) under the Program identified in subsection (b) below, and/or (iii) paying or 
reimbursing issuance and other costs related to the Bonds.  Notwithstanding the foregoing 
description of the Project, the Mayor of the Issuer (the “Mayor”), in consultation with the Town 
Administrator of the Issuer (the “Town Administrator”), any other appropriate officials of the 
Issuer, and the Administration, is hereby authorized and empowered, on behalf of the Issuer, to 
determine prior to the sale of the Administration’s Bonds (as defined in subsection (c) below) not 
to apply proceeds of the Bonds to finance, reimburse or refinance costs of any one or more of the 
purposes described in clauses (i) – (iii) above due to tax, budgetary or other considerations, 
including, without limitation, because the Issuer has determined not to finance, reimburse or 
refinance costs of either the Electric AMI Meter System project or the Public Works Building 
project from proceeds of the Bonds or because of other moneys becoming available for application 
to any of the purposes described in clauses (i) – (iii) above.  To the extent no proceeds of the Bonds 
will be applied to the Electric AMI Meter System project or the Public Works Building project in 
accordance with this subsection (a), references in this Ordinance to the “Project” shall be construed 
to refer to such remaining project. 
 

(b) The Bonds shall be issued as one or more fully registered bond certificate(s) in the 
aggregate principal amount not to exceed Three Million Eight Hundred Thousand Dollars 
($3,800,000.00) payable to the Administration as the registered owner thereof.  The Bonds shall 
be issued in such aggregate principal amount or such lesser aggregate principal amount as 
determined by the Mayor pursuant to subsection (g) below, which shall be equal to the aggregate 
principal amount of the loan or loans to the Issuer from the Administration (collectively, the 
“Loan”) under the Local Government Infrastructure Financing Program of the Administration (the 
“Program”). 

86 



__________ 
Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 4 - 
 

 
(c) The Bonds shall be dated as of the date of issue, or as of such other date as is 

specified by the Administration; shall be numbered from R-1 upward or as otherwise required by 
the Administration; shall be initially registered in the name of the Administration or its designee; 
shall bear interest from the date of issuance of the Local Government Infrastructure Bonds issued 
by the Administration (the “Administration’s Bonds”), payable semiannually on April 1 and 
October 1 or on such other days as the Administration may require in connection with the Program, 
at such annual rate or rates and be payable in annual principal installments at the designated office 
of the Administration or of the trustee for the Administration’s Bonds. 

 
(d) The Bonds shall bear interest at an aggregate rate or rates of interest for a total 

interest cost (expressed as a yield) not to exceed (1) 5.00 percent for a loan with a maturity of 
twenty (20) years or less and (2) 5.40 percent with a loan with a maturity in excess of twenty (20) 
years but not exceeding thirty (30) years, the actual rate or rates of interest to be borne by the 
Bonds to be determined and established by the Mayor acting pursuant to Section 1(g) of this 
Ordinance. 

 
(e) The Bonds shall be in substantially the form set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto 

and made a part hereof, which form, together with all of the covenants and conditions therein 
contained, is hereby adopted by the Issuer as and for the form of obligation or obligations to be 
incurred by the Issuer and such covenants and conditions are hereby made binding upon the Issuer, 
including the promise to pay therein contained. 
 

(f) The Bonds are to be issued in connection with the Program in order to provide all 
or a portion of the funds needed to (i) finance, reimburse and/or refinance all or a portion of the 
costs of the Project, (ii) fund a portion of a capital reserve fund and/or other reserves required by 
the Administration under the Program, and/or (iii) pay or reimburse costs of issuance and other 
related costs of the Bonds.  Under the Program, the Issuer will enter into a Repayment Agreement 
and a Pledge Agreement with the Administration (respectively, the “Repayment Agreement” and 
the “Pledge Agreement”).  The Issuer also will execute and deliver in connection with the issuance 
of the Bonds and the Program any additional documents, agreements, instruments and certificates 
requested by the Administration (which, together with the Repayment Agreement and the Pledge 
Agreement, are herein referred to as the “Program Documents”).  The Program Documents shall 
be in such forms and shall contain such terms and conditions as shall be approved by the Mayor 
and/or the Town Administrator as further provided in this Ordinance and as shall be acceptable to, 
and otherwise approved by, the Administration. 
 

(g) Because this Ordinance is being passed before the details have been finalized for 
the financing pursuant to which the Administration will issue the Administration’s Bonds (the 
“Administration Financing”) that will fund the Loan to the Issuer under the Program, the Mayor 
is hereby authorized to make such changes to the amount and form of the Bonds, including 
insertions therein or additions or deletions thereto, as may be necessary or appropriate to conform 
the terms of the Bonds to the terms of the financing to be provided to the Issuer under the Program.  
Without limiting the foregoing, it is presently contemplated that the Loan will be in an amount not 

87 



__________ 
Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 5 - 
 

to exceed $3,800,000.00 in aggregate principal amount hereby authorized, subject to final approval 
by the Administration; accordingly, the Mayor is specifically authorized: (i) to make changes to 
the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds in order to reflect the final aggregate principal amount 
of the Loan, not to exceed $3,800,000.00 as approved by the Administration and accepted by the 
Issuer, (ii) with the assistance of the Town Administrator and any other appropriate officials of the 
Issuer, to determine the amortization term(s) of the Bonds taking into account the useful lives of 
the various components of the Project, not to exceed the maximum maturity as set forth in 
subsection (d) above, and (iii) to authorize and approve an interest rate or rates and payment 
schedule(s) reflecting the principal and interest payments with respect to the Bonds but not to 
exceed the maximum total interest cost to be borne by the Bonds for the applicable term(s) as set 
forth in subsection (d) above. 

 
(h) This borrowing is in conformance with and does not exceed any and all applicable 

debt limitations under the Charter of the Issuer (the “Charter”). 
 
(i) Certain provisions of this Section 1 are subject to the provisions of Section 14 of 

this Ordinance. 
 

SECTION 2.  Execution and Completion of Documents.  The Bonds, the Repayment 
Agreement and the Pledge Agreement shall be executed on behalf of the Issuer by the manual or 
facsimile signature of the Mayor, and the seal of the Issuer shall be affixed thereto or reproduced 
thereon and attested to by the manual signature of the Town Administrator.  The other Program 
Documents shall be executed on behalf of the Issuer by the Mayor and/or the Town Administrator.  
In the event any official whose signature appears on any of the Bonds or the Program Documents 
shall cease to be an official prior to the delivery of the Bonds or the Program Documents, or, in 
the event any official whose signature appears on any of the Bonds or the Program Documents 
becomes an official after the date of the issue, the Bonds or the Program Documents shall 
nevertheless be valid and binding obligations of the Issuer in accordance with their terms.  The 
Mayor is hereby authorized, empowered and directed to complete the applicable form(s) of the 
Bonds and to make modifications, deletions, corrections or other changes thereto in any manner 
which the Mayor, in the Mayor’s discretion, shall deem necessary or appropriate in order to 
complete the issuance and sale of the Bonds, as will not alter the substance thereof.  The Mayor is 
hereby authorized, empowered and directed to complete the forms of the Repayment Agreement 
and the Pledge Agreement and to make modifications, deletions, corrections or other changes 
thereto in any manner in which the Mayor, in the Mayor’s discretion, shall deemed necessary or 
appropriate in order to complete the execution and delivery of the Repayment Agreement and the 
Pledge Agreement in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance, as will not alter the 
substance thereof.  Either or both of the Mayor and the Town Administrator is hereby authorized, 
empowered and directed to complete the applicable forms of the other Program Documents and to 
make modifications, deletions, corrections or other changes thereto in any manner which such 
official(s), in the discretion of such official(s), shall deem necessary or appropriate in order to 
complete the execution and delivery of the other Program Documents in accordance with the 
provisions of this Ordinance, as will not alter the substance thereof.  The execution and delivery 
of the Bonds, the Repayment Agreement and the Pledge Agreement by the Mayor and the 

88 



__________ 
Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 6 - 
 

execution and delivery of the other Program Documents by the duly authorized applicable 
official(s) provided for in this Section 2 shall be conclusive evidence of such official’s or officials’ 
approval of the forms and substance thereof.  To the extent appropriate, additional officials of the 
Issuer and counsel to the Issuer may be signatories to the Program Documents with respect to facts, 
representations, certifications, covenants and agreements within the scope of their respective 
responsibilities or authority.  Certain provisions of this Section 2 are subject to the provisions of 
Section 14 of this Ordinance. 
 

SECTION 3. Registration of Bonds.  The Finance Director of the Issuer, who is also 
sometimes referred to as the Director of Finance of the Issuer (in either such case, the “Finance 
Director”) shall act as registrar for the Bonds and shall maintain registration books for the 
registration and registration of transfer of the Bonds; provided that, if at any time the registrar of 
the Bonds needs to take any action in such capacity the position of the Finance Director is vacant 
or in the absence, disability or unavailability of the incumbent Finance Director, the authority to 
act as registrar for the Bonds shall be exercised in the following order of priority:  (i) first, by any 
incumbent acting or interim Finance Director of the Issuer, (ii) second, if there is no incumbent 
acting or interim Finance Director of the Issuer or in the absence, disability or unavailability of 
any incumbent acting or interim Finance Director of the Issuer, by the Town Administrator, and 
(iii) third, if there is no incumbent Town Administrator or in the absence, disability or 
unavailability of any incumbent Town Administrator, by any incumbent acting or interim Town 
Administrator of the Issuer.  No security or bond shall be required of any of the officials identified 
in this Section 3 in the performance of the duties of registrar for the Bonds. 
 

The Issuer may deem and treat the person in whose name any Bond shall be registered 
upon the books of the Issuer as the absolute owner of such Bond, whether such Bond shall be 
overdue or not, for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal of, 
premium, if any, and interest on such Bond and for all other purposes. 
 

SECTION 4.  Prepayment.  The Bonds are being issued in connection with the Program 
and will secure payment of the Administration’s Bonds, which are being issued by the 
Administration to provide funds to purchase the Bonds from the Issuer, among other purposes.  
The Repayment Agreement limits the right of the Issuer to prepay the Bonds in accordance with 
restrictions upon the right of the Administration to redeem the Administration’s Bonds.  
Accordingly, the Issuer may prepay the Bonds only in accordance with the provisions of the 
Repayment Agreement and the terms governing prepayments as set forth in the Bonds. 
 

SECTION 5.  Replacement of Mutilated, Lost, Stolen, or Destroyed Bonds.  In case 
any Bond shall become mutilated or be destroyed, lost or stolen, the Issuer may cause to be 
executed and delivered a new Bond of like series or subseries, date and tenor and bearing the same 
or a different number, in exchange and substitution for each Bond mutilated, destroyed, lost or 
stolen, upon the owner paying the reasonable expenses and charges of the Issuer in connection 
therewith and, in the case of any Bond being destroyed, lost or stolen, upon the owner filing with 
the Issuer evidence satisfactory to it that such Bond was destroyed, lost or stolen, and furnishing 
the Issuer with indemnity satisfactory to it.  Any Bond so issued in substitution for a Bond so 

89 



__________ 
Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 7 - 
 

mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen: (i) may be typewritten, printed or otherwise reproduced in a 
manner acceptable to the Administration, and (ii) shall constitute an original contractual obligation 
on the part of the Issuer under this Ordinance whether or not the Bond in exchange for which said 
new Bond is issued shall at any later date be presented for payment and such payment shall be 
enforceable by anyone, and any such new Bond shall be equally and proportionately entitled to the 
benefits of this Ordinance with all other like Bonds, in the manner and to the extent provided 
herein. 
 

SECTION 6.  Use of Proceeds.  The proceeds of the Bonds shall be held and invested by 
the Administration in its sole discretion and shall be: 
 

(a) Administered and disbursed by the Administration pursuant to the Repayment 
Agreement.  The proceeds of the Bonds shall be used, when and as required, to pay Development 
Costs (as defined in the Repayment Agreement). 
 

(b) After the Project has been completed and all Development Costs in connection 
therewith have been paid, any balance of the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds held by the 
Administration under the Repayment Agreement may be applied to the next principal installment 
or installments coming due, payment of interest on the Bonds or prepayment of the Bonds, as 
permitted by the Administration. 
 

SECTION 7. Covenants. The Issuer covenants with the Administration and for the benefit 
of the Administration and the owners from time to time of the Bonds that so long as the Bonds or 
installments of principal thereunder shall remain outstanding and unpaid: 
 

(a) The Issuer will duly and punctually pay, or cause to be paid, to the Administration 
or its designee the principal of the Bonds, premium (if any) and interest accruing thereon, at the 
dates and places and in the manner mentioned in the Bonds from unlimited ad valorem taxes in 
the event that available funds are inadequate to make such payment. 
 

(b) The Issuer covenants that so long as any of the Bonds are outstanding and not paid, 
unless other funds are available for payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the 
Bonds, it shall levy annually, in the manner prescribed by law, ad valorem taxes on all real and 
tangible personal property within its corporate limits subject to assessment for unlimited taxation 
in rate and amount sufficient to provide for the payment of the principal of and interest on the 
Bonds as the same become due and payable; and in the event that the revenues available from the 
taxes so levied in any fiscal year shall prove inadequate for the above purposes, the Issuer shall 
levy additional taxes in the succeeding fiscal year to make up such deficiency; and the full faith 
and credit and the unlimited taxing power of the Issuer are hereby irrevocably pledged to the 
punctual payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds as the same become due. 
 

(c) The Issuer will promptly provide to the Administration (or to any person designated 
by the Administration) all financial information and operating data concerning the Issuer as may 
be required by the Administration in its discretion in order for the Administration to comply with 

90 



__________ 
Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 8 - 
 

the requirements of Rule 15c2-12 of the United States Securities and Exchange Commission, as in 
effect from time to time, applicable to the Administration’s Bonds. 
 

SECTION 8.  Ordinance a Contract.  The provisions of this Ordinance shall constitute 
a contract with the purchasers and owners from time to time of the Bonds, and this Ordinance shall 
not be repealed, modified or altered in any manner materially adverse to the Administration and/or 
the interests of such purchasers or owners while the Bonds or any portion thereof remain 
outstanding and unpaid without the consent of the owners of the Bonds and the Administration. 
 

SECTION 9.  Pledge of Local Government Payments.  As contemplated and authorized 
by Section 4-229(b) of the Act, the Issuer hereby pledges, assigns and grants a lien and a security 
interest to the Administration, its successors in trust and assigns, in all right, title and interest of 
the Issuer in and to the Local Government Payments (as defined in the Pledge Agreement), now 
or hereafter acquired, (i) to secure payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on 
the Bonds and any other Local Obligations (as defined in the Pledge Agreement) issued and to be 
issued from time to time by the Issuer under the Program and (ii) to provide for deposits to the 
capital reserve fund securing the Bonds and/or other reserves required under the Program the 
amount of the Issuer’s portion of any deficiency in such capital reserve fund and/or such other 
reserves as the Administration shall require, all as more fully set forth and provided in the Pledge 
Agreement. 
 

SECTION 10.  Purchase Price of Bonds.  The Bonds shall be sold for cash in accordance 
with the terms and provisions of this Ordinance at par, or if premium or discount is permitted by 
law, at such premium or discount as is agreed to with the Administration in accordance with the 
terms and provisions of this Ordinance, and as authorized by Section 4-229(a) of the Act. 
 

SECTION 11.  Sale of Bonds.  The Bonds shall be sold to the Administration under the 
Program at private sale, as authorized by Section 4-229(a) of the Act. 
 

SECTION 12.  Authority to Take Action; Publication and Public Hearing. 
 

(a) To the extent not otherwise expressly provided for herein, the appropriate officials 
and employees of the Issuer are hereby authorized and directed to do all acts and things required 
of them by the provisions of this Ordinance, for the full, punctual and complete performance of all 
the terms, covenants and provisions of the Bonds, the Program Documents and this Ordinance and 
to do and perform all acts and to execute, seal and deliver all documents or instruments of writing 
which may be necessary or desirable to carry out the full intent and purpose of this Ordinance and 
the Program Documents. 

 
(b) As required by the Act, prior to the issuance of the Bonds, the Issuer shall publish 

in a newspaper of general circulation in the jurisdiction of the Issuer a notice of the proposed 
issuance of the Bonds, which notice shall include the proposed amount of the issue, the nature of 
the projects to be financed or refinanced, the time and place of the public hearing, the name of the 
person(s) and address of the place where written comments may be sent, and the Issuer shall hold 

91 



__________ 
Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 9 - 
 

a public hearing on the proposed issuance of the Bonds.  Such actions may be (or have been) taken 
prior to or simultaneously with the passage of this Ordinance. 

 
(c) The Issuer shall comply with any publication and/or posting requirements set forth 

in the Charter that are determined to be applicable to this Ordinance. 
 
SECTION 13.  Tax Matters 
 
(a) Any one or more of the Mayor, the Town Administrator and the Finance Director 

shall be the officers of the Issuer responsible for the issuance of the Bonds within the meaning of 
the Arbitrage Regulations (defined herein).  Any one or more of the Mayor, the Town 
Administrator and the Finance Director shall also be the officer(s) of the Issuer responsible for the 
execution and delivery (on the date of issuance of the Bonds) of a certificate of the Issuer (the 
“Section 148 Certificate”) which complies with the requirements of Section 148 (“Section 148”) 
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), and the applicable regulations 
thereunder (the “Arbitrage Regulations”), and such official or officials are hereby directed to 
execute the Section 148 Certificate and to deliver the same to the Administration on the date of 
the issuance of the Bonds.  The Section 148 Certificate may be contained within any of the Program 
Documents at the discretion of the Administration. 
 

(b) The Issuer shall set forth in the Section 148 Certificate its reasonable expectations 
as to relevant facts, estimates and circumstances relating to the use of the proceeds of the Bonds, 
or of any monies, securities or other obligations to the credit of any account of the Issuer which 
may be deemed to be proceeds of the Bonds pursuant to Section 148 or the Arbitrage Regulations 
(collectively, “Bond Proceeds”).  The Issuer covenants that the facts, estimates and circumstances 
set forth in the Section 148 Certificate will be based on the Issuer’s reasonable expectations on the 
date of issuance of the Bonds and will be, to the best of the certifying official’s or officials’ 
knowledge, true and correct as of that date. 
 

(c) The Issuer covenants and agrees with each of the holders of any of the Bonds that 
it will not make, or (to the extent that it exercises control or direction) permit to be made, any use 
of the Bond Proceeds which would cause the Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning 
of Section 148 and the regulations thereunder that are applicable to the Bonds on the date of 
issuance of the Bonds and that may subsequently lawfully be made applicable to the Bonds. 
 

(d) The Issuer further covenants that it shall make such use of the proceeds of the 
Bonds, regulate the investment of the proceeds thereof, and take such other and further actions as 
may be required to maintain the excludability from gross income for federal income tax purposes 
of interest on the Bonds.  All officials, officers, employees and agents of the Issuer are hereby 
authorized and directed to take such actions, and to provide such certifications of facts and 
estimates regarding the amount and use of the proceeds of the Bonds, as may be necessary or 
appropriate from time to time to comply with, or to evidence the Issuer’s compliance with, the 
covenants set forth in this Section. 

 

92 



__________ 
Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 10 - 
 

(e) Any one or more of the Mayor, the Town Administrator and the Finance Director, 
on behalf of the Issuer, may make such covenants or agreements in connection with the issuance 
of Bonds issued hereunder as such official(s) shall deem advisable in order to assure the registered 
owners of such Bonds that interest thereon shall be and remain excludable from gross income for 
federal income tax purposes, and such covenants or agreements shall be binding on the Issuer so 
long as the observance by the Issuer of any such covenants or agreements is necessary in 
connection with the maintenance of the exclusion of the interest on such Bonds from gross income 
for federal income tax purposes.  The foregoing covenants and agreements may include such 
covenants or agreements on behalf of the Issuer regarding compliance with the provisions of the 
Code as such applicable identified official(s) shall deem advisable in order to assure the registered 
owners of such Bonds that the interest thereon shall be and remain excludable from gross income 
for federal income tax purposes, including, without limitation, covenants or agreements relating to 
the investment of the proceeds of such Bonds, the payment of rebate (or payments in lieu of rebate) 
to the United States, limitations on the times within which, and the purpose for which, such 
proceeds may be expended, or the use of specified procedures for accounting for and segregating 
such proceeds.  Such official(s) may also make on behalf of the Issuer any elections, designations 
or determinations authorized or permitted by the Code or the Arbitrage Regulations. 

 
SECTION 14.  Effective Date; Miscellaneous.   
 
(a) Pursuant to Section C4-4 of the Charter, the Mayor is the chief executive officer of 

the Issuer.  Notwithstanding the provisions of Section C3-10 of the Charter, pursuant to Section 4-
232(c) of the Act, this Ordinance shall take effect from the date of its passage by the Council and 
its approval by the Mayor, and it is the intent hereof that the laws of the State of Maryland shall 
govern its construction and the construction of the Bonds.  Any copy of this Ordinance duly 
certified by the Town Administrator or the Mayor, or any such official’s successor in office, shall 
constitute evidence of the contents and provisions hereof. 

 
(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance: 
 
 (i) References in this Ordinance to the Mayor shall be construed to refer to the 

Vice President of the Council not only if the position of the Mayor is vacant within the meaning 
of Section C6-14 of the Charter but also if the incumbent Mayor is absent, disabled or unavailable 
at any applicable time.   

 
 (ii) If the position of the Town Administrator is vacant or in the absence, 

disability or unavailability of the incumbent Town Administrator, the authority to attest to the 
affixed or reproduced seal of the Issuer on the Bonds, the Repayment Agreement and the Pledge 
Agreement shall be exercised in the following order of priority:  (A) first, by any incumbent acting 
or interim Town Administrator of the Issuer, (B) second, if there is no incumbent acting or interim 
Town Administrator of the Issuer or in the absence, disability or unavailability of any incumbent 
acting or interim Town Administrator of the Issuer, by the Finance Director, and (C) third, if there 
is no incumbent Finance Director or in the absence, disability or unavailability of any incumbent 
Finance Director, by any incumbent acting or interim Finance Director of the Issuer. 

93 



__________ 
Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 11 - 
 

 
 (iii) Except as otherwise expressly provided in Section 3 of this Ordinance and 

in clauses (i) and (ii) of this subsection (b), any reference to an official of the Issuer in this 
Ordinance shall be deemed to refer to any person serving in an acting or interim capacity as such 
identified official if the position of the identified official is vacant or in the absence, disability or 
unavailability of the incumbent identified official.   

 
 (iv) With respect to the attestation as to the affixed or reproduced seal of the 

Issuer on any of the Program Documents other than the Repayment Agreement and the Pledge 
Agreement, any one or more of the following officials may provide such attestation:  the Town 
Administrator, the Mayor, the Vice President of the Council and/or the Finance Director.  

 
 (v) In the event two or more officials are charged with responsibility for taking 

any actions in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance and any such official’s position is 
not filled at the applicable time (including in an acting or interim capacity) or any such official 
(including in an acting or interim capacity) is absent, disabled or unavailable, any such action may 
be taken solely by the remaining official or officials. 

  
(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Ordinance, but subject to the 

provisions of subsection (b) above, which subsection (b) shall control over the provisions of this 
subsection (c) in applicable circumstances, in the event the position of any official who is referred 
to by title in this Ordinance is vacant at the time any action authorized to be taken by such official 
in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance shall occur, and no person has been elected or 
appointed to or is employed in such position (including in an acting or interim capacity) and is 
incumbent in such position, references in this Ordinance to such official shall be deemed to refer 
to any other appropriate official of the Issuer charged with such responsibilities under the Charter 
or the Town Code or, to the extent not so provided for in the Charter or the Town Code, as 
designated by the Council by motion or other appropriate action.  Written evidence of any such 
designation shall be provided to the Administration.  References in this Ordinance to the term 
“official” shall be construed to include “employee” where applicable. 

  
(d) References in this Ordinance to the phrases “to finance,” “to pay” or “to fund” or 

similar phrases shall be deemed to refer to and include “to reimburse” or “to refinance” or similar 
phrases. 

 
(e) References in this Ordinance to the phrase “including” and similar phrases shall be 

deemed to refer to and include “including, but not limited to,” “including, without limitation,” or 
similar phrases. 

 
(f) To the extent not paid from proceeds of the Bonds, the Issuer shall pay costs of 

issuance relating to the Bonds from other available sources.  References in this Ordinance to “costs 
of issuance” or “issuance costs” of the Bonds shall be deemed to include the costs of issuance or 
issuance costs of the Administration’s Bonds allocable to the Issuer in accordance with the 

94 



__________ 
Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 12 - 
 

Program.  The Council expressly acknowledges the obligation of the Issuer to pay the allocable 
fees of the Administration’s bond counsel in the event the Issuer withdraws from the Program. 

 
(g) The proceeds of the Bonds, including any premium of the Administration’s Bonds 

that may be allocated to the Issuer, are hereby appropriated for purposes of the Project and the 
other purposes specified in this Ordinance. 

 
(h) Any actions taken by officials of the Issuer in connection with the Issuer’s 

anticipated participation in the Program prior to the effective date of this Ordinance are hereby 
ratified, confirmed and approved. 

 
(i) The title of this Ordinance shall be deemed to be, and is, a fair summary of this 

Ordinance for all purposes. 
 
(j) Pursuant to Section 4-232(b) of the Act, this Ordinance shall be subject to petition 

to referendum by the qualified voters of the Issuer in accordance with the Charter provided that 
the petition is filed not later than 20 days after this Ordinance is passed by the Council.  The 
provisions of Section C3-12 of the Charter allowing for a referendum petition to be filed within 
20 days following approval of an ordinance by the Mayor or passage of an ordinance by the 
Council over the Mayor’s veto shall be disregarded and the provisions of Section 4-232(b) of the 
Act shall control the period in which any referendum petition must be filed. 

 
(k) The provisions of this Ordinance shall be liberally construed in order to effectuate 

the transactions contemplated hereby. 
 
 

[CONTINUED ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 
  

95 



__________ 
Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 13 - 
 

THIS ORDINANCE was introduced and read at a meeting of the Mayor and Council held on the 
26th day of February, 2024, and thereafter, notice of the public hearing concerning this Ordinance 
was published as required by law. 
 
A PUBLIC HEARING was held and this Ordinance was passed this ________ day of 
_______________, 2024, by the Council of the Town of Berlin, Maryland, by affirmative vote of 
__________ in favor to_________ opposed, with ________ abstaining. 
  
 
 

______________________________ 
    Dean Burrell, Sr., Vice President of the Council 
 
 
THIS ORDINANCE was approved this _________ day of _______________, 2024 by the Mayor 
of the Town of Berlin and was effective immediately, subject to submission of a petition to 
referendum by the qualified voters of the Town within the time period provided by the Act. 
 
 
 

______________________________ 
    Zackery Tyndall, Mayor 

 
  
 
Exhibit A. – Form of Bond        
 
 
 
 
 
#234265;50016.019

96 



__________ 
Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- A-1 - 
 

[FORM OF BOND] 
EXHIBIT A 

 
 
 

United States of America 
State of Maryland 

Mayor and Council of Berlin 
Infrastructure Bond, 2024 Series [A] 

 
 

No. R-_          $__________ 
 
 Mayor and Council of Berlin, a municipal corporation duly organized and existing under 
the Constitution and laws of the State of Maryland (the “Issuer”), hereby promises to pay to the  
 

Maryland Community Development Administration 
 
or its registered assigns, the principal amount of _______________ Dollars ($__________), plus 
interest on each unpaid principal installment at rates per annum resulting in the total interest cost 
(“TIC”) (expressed as a yield) set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto, in lawful money of the United 
States of America, as follows: (a) interest on the outstanding and unpaid principal of this bond 
shall be due and payable in semiannual payments commencing on __________, 20__, and 
continuing on the first day of [October] and [April] in each year thereafter until final maturity; and 
(b) principal of this bond shall be paid commencing on _________ and on ___________ in each 
year thereafter until final maturity in the aggregate amount of principal installments as set forth on 
Exhibit A.  Payment of the principal hereof and the interest due hereon shall be made by check 
mailed to the address of the registered owner of this bond as shown on the registration books 
maintained by the Issuer, or in such other manner and to such other address as the registered owner 
of this bond may designate.  If any payment of the principal of or interest on this bond shall be due 
on a day other than a Business Day (defined herein), such payment shall be made on the next 
Business Day with like effect as if made on the originally scheduled date.  A “Business Day” is 
any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday in the State of Maryland observed as such 
by the Issuer. 
 
 In the event any payment hereon (whether principal, interest or both) is not paid when due 
and payable, such payment shall continue as an obligation of the Issuer and shall bear interest until 
paid at the rate or rates of interest borne by this bond. 
 
 This bond, designated as “Mayor and Council of Berlin Infrastructure Bond, 2024 Series 
[A]” (this “Bond”), is a general obligation of the Issuer, and has been duly issued by the Issuer for 
the purpose of providing all or a portion of the funds necessary for (i) financing, reimbursing and/or 
refinancing all or a portion of the costs of two separate projects generally referred to by the Issuer 
as:  (A) Electric AMI Meter System and (B) Public Works Building, (ii) funding a portion of a 

97 



__________ 
Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- A-2 - 
 

capital reserve fund and/or other reserves required by the Administration, and/or (iii) paying 
issuance and other costs related to this Bond.  Unless paid from other sources, the Issuer covenants 
that so long as any portion of this Bond is outstanding and not paid, it shall levy annually, in the 
manner prescribed by law, ad valorem taxes on all real and tangible personal property within its 
corporate limits subject to assessment for unlimited taxation in rate and amount sufficient to 
provide for the payment of the principal of and interest on this Bond as the same become due and 
payable. 
 
 This Bond is issued pursuant to the authority of Sections 4-101 through 4-255 of the 
Housing and Community Development Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, as amended, 
Sections C7-19, C7-19.1 and C7-21 of the Charter of the Issuer, and Ordinance No. 2024-01 of 
the Issuer passed by the Council of the Issuer on ______________, 2024, approved by the Mayor 
of the Issuer on ________________, 2024 and effective on _________________, 2024 (the 
“Ordinance”).  The full faith and credit of the Issuer are hereby irrevocably pledged to the payment 
of the principal of this Bond and the interest to accrue hereon. 
 
 This Bond is issued in connection with the Local Government Infrastructure Financing 
Program of the Community Development Administration, a governmental unit in the Division of 
Development Finance of the Department of Housing and Community Development, a principal 
department of the government of the State of Maryland (the “Administration”).  This Bond is 
subject to the terms and conditions of the Repayment Agreement dated as of __________, 2024, 
between the Issuer and the Administration (the “Repayment Agreement”). 
 
 This Bond is subject to prepayment by the Issuer to the extent provided in the Repayment 
Agreement. 
 
 Notice of prepayment shall be given, the date of prepayment determined, and all 
prepayments of this Bond shall be applied in accordance with the provisions of the Repayment 
Agreement. 
 
 The Issuer may treat the person in whose name this Bond is registered as the absolute owner 
hereof, whether or not this Bond shall be overdue, for the purpose of receiving payment thereof 
and for all other purposes whatsoever, and shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary, 
except as provided below. 
 
 This Bond is assignable and upon such assignment the assignor shall promptly notify the 
Issuer by certified mail, and the assignee shall surrender this Bond to the Issuer for transfer on the 
registration records and verification of the portion of the principal amount hereof and interest 
hereon paid or unpaid, and every such assignee shall take this Bond subject to such condition.  In 
connection with any transfer of this Bond, the Issuer may make a charge sufficient to reimburse it 
for any tax, fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such transfer and 
any reasonable fees or expenses of the Issuer incurred in connection with such transfer. 
 

98 



__________ 
Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- A-3 - 
 

 Principal of this Bond is paid in annual installments and this Bond is subject to partial 
redemption without any notation of such payment being made on this Bond or the surrender of this 
Bond for cancellation and the issuance of a new Bond or Bonds in the amount of the unpaid 
principal hereof.  Accordingly, the outstanding principal of this Bond may be less than the stated 
face amount hereof and any purchaser or transferee of this Bond should contact the Issuer and the 
prior owner of this Bond to ascertain the outstanding face amount hereof. 
 
 As declared by Section 4-231(c) of the Housing and Community Development Article of 
the Annotated Code of Maryland, as amended, this Bond shall have and possess all the attributes 
of negotiable instruments as provided in Section 19-224 of the Local Government Article of the 
Annotated Code of Maryland, as amended.  This Bond is issued with the intent that the laws of the 
State of Maryland shall govern its construction. 
 
 No recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of, the interest on, or for any 
claim based hereon or on the Ordinance against any elected or appointed official or employee, 
past, present or future of the Issuer or any agency thereof; and any such recourse, claim or liability 
is expressly waived by acceptance by the owner of the delivery of this Bond. 
 
 It is hereby certified and recited that each and every act, condition and thing required to 
exist, to be done, to have happened and to be performed precedent to and in the issuance of this 
Bond does exist, has been done, has happened and has been performed in full and strict compliance 
with the Constitution and laws of the State of Maryland, the Charter of the Issuer and the 
proceedings of the Issuer. 
 

99 



__________ 
Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- A-4 - 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Mayor and Council of Berlin has caused this Bond to be signed 
in its name by the manual or facsimile signature of its [Mayor] and its corporate seal to be affixed 
hereto and attested by the manual signature of the [Town Administrator], as of ____________, 
2024. 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
ATTEST:      MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF BERLIN 
 
 
 
 
______________________________  By: __________________________ 
[Town Administrator]           [Mayor] 
 
 

100 



__________ 
Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- A-5 - 
 

BOND PAYMENT SCHEDULE 
 

 
 

[Repayment Schedule to be Inserted.] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Each installment of Principal and Interest or Interest alone shall be the aggregate of amounts set forth in this Exhibit 
A for the date of such payment as shown under the heading designated “[Total].” 

101 



1 
 

BULLET POINTS SUMMARY OF BERLIN ORDINANCE 
REGARDING CDA LOAN 

 
Overview:  Under certain provisions of the Housing and Community Development Article of the 
Annotated Code of Maryland (the “CDA Act”), the Community Development Administration 
(“CDA”) is authorized to make loans to Maryland local government entities for infrastructure 
projects.  Such loans are typically “papered” by general obligation bonds, notes or other 
evidences of indebtedness issued by the local government entities to CDA.  CDA obtains the 
funds to make such loans by issuing CDA’s own revenue bonds to the public.  The CDA loan 
program that the Town anticipates participating in is known as the Local Government 
Infrastructure Financing Program.  In connection with such Program, the Town will issue one or 
more general obligation bonds to CDA.  Accordingly, the Town will be both the “borrower” of 
loan proceeds from CDA and the “issuer” of one or more Town general obligation bonds to 
CDA. 
 
CDA requires its Program participants to pass legislation in the form required by CDA (an 
ordinance in this case).  In Ordinance No. 2024-01 the Town is referred as the “Issuer” and CDA 
is referred to as the “Administration.”  References in the Ordinance to “Bonds” shall be 
construed to mean a single bond if the Town issues only a single bond to CDA; multiple bonds 
may be issued if the various Project components have different reasonably expected useful 
lives—CDA will not allow a Project component to be financed for a period longer than its 
reasonably expected useful life. 
 
Ordinance Summary: 
 

 Recitals trace authority for the Program and the Town’s participation therein. 
 Section 1(a) – Authorizes the Town to issue its general obligation bonds in one or more 

series in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $3,800,000 (the “Bonds”) for the 
public purposes of:  (i) financing, reimbursing and/or refinancing costs of all or a portion 
of the costs of two separate projects generally referred to as the Electric AMI Meter 
System and the Public Works Building (which building may be occupied by additional 
Town departments), the total costs of which include, as applicable, costs of land and 
right-of-way acquisition and development; necessary property rights and equipment; 
related site and utility improvements; related studies, planning, design, architectural, 
engineering, document development, bidding, permitting, surveying, feasibility, 
acquisition, demolition, removal, construction, expansion, reconstruction, rehabilitation, 
renovation, repair, construction management, inspection, installation, improvement, 
furnishing and equipping expenses and other related expenses; paving, repaving, 
sidewalk, curb, gutter, stormwater, water and sewer improvements; and related or similar 
activities and expenses (collectively, the “Project”), (ii) funding a portion of a capital 
reserve fund and/or other reserves required by CDA, and/or (iii) paying or reimbursing 
costs of issuance and other related costs of the Bonds.  Subsection (a) provides for 
designation of the Bonds, subject to changes in such designation as CDA may require.  
Authorizes the Mayor, in consultation with other Town officials, to determine not to 
apply proceeds of the Bonds to one or more of the authorized purposes including, without 
limitation, because of tax, budgetary or other considerations, because the Town has 

102 



2 
 

decided not to fund either project from proceeds of the Bonds, or because of other funds 
becoming available for any of the stated purposes.   

 Section 1(b) – Authorizes the Mayor to determine the final aggregate principal amount of 
the Bonds and whether one or more Bonds will be issued, subject to the not to exceed 
aggregate principal amount of $3,800,000. 

 Section 1(c) – Standard provisions regarding numbering and registration of the Bonds 
and that interest will be payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1 or such other 
dates as CDA requires and principal will be payable annually (note:  if the interest 
payment dates are April 1 and October, principal will likely be payable each April 1). 

 Section 1(d) – Provides the interest rate(s) to be borne by the Bonds shall be calculated 
based on a maximum total interest cost (expressed as a yield, because CDA’s financial 
advisor will perform yield calculations) of (i) 5.00% for a loan with a maturity of 20 
years or less, and (ii) 5.40% for a loan with a maturity in excess of 20 years but not 
exceeding 30 years  (Note:  The stated maximum yield for each maximum loan term is 
based on current interest rates and anticipated changes in interest rates as estimated by 
CDA’s financial advisor, plus a cushion, and represents an aggregation of the actual 
interest rates payable with respect to the principal installments due on a loan. The actual 
(or coupon) interest rate payable by the Town with respect to any principal installment 
amount due on a Bond may be higher than the applicable stated maximum yield.  The 
maturity limit calculation will run from the date of issuance of the Bonds.) 

 Section 1(e) – Bonds will be in substantially the form attached as Exhibit A to the 
Ordinance. 

 Section 1(f) – Provides that the Town will be required to enter into a Repayment 
Agreement and a Pledge Agreement with CDA, and to execute certain additional 
documents, agreements, instruments and certificates requested by CDA (collectively with 
the Repayment Agreement and the Pledge Agreement, the “Program Documents”). 

 Section 1(g) - The Mayor is authorized to approve the final aggregate principal amount of 
the Bonds and the final interest rate(s) subject to the limitations stated in the Ordinance.   

 Section 2 – The final forms of the Bonds, the Repayment Agreement and the Pledge 
Agreement shall be approved by and executed by the Mayor and the Town seal shall be 
impressed on the Bonds and attested to by the Town Administrator.  The Mayor and/or 
the Town Administrator are authorized to approve the final forms of and to execute the 
other Program Documents.  To the extent applicable, other appropriate officials are 
authorized to be signatories to the Program Documents. 

 Section 3 – The Finance Director will be registrar for the Bonds.  Provides for other 
officials to alternatively serve as registrar if the position of the Finance Director is vacant 
or in the absence, disability or unavailability of an incumbent Finance Director, in the 
order of priority provided. 

 Section 4 – The Bonds will be subject to prepayment as provided for in the Repayment 
Agreement, which will limit the right of prepayment, and such prepayment right will be 
tied to redemption rights relating to CDA’s revenue bonds. (Note:  typically CDA’s 
revenue bonds are not redeemable for approximately 10 years from the issuance date, 
meaning the Town will most likely have no prepayment right with respect to its Bonds 
until sometime in 2034.) 

 Section 5 – Standard provisions regarding lost, destroyed or mutilated Bonds. 

103 



3 
 

 Section 6 – Bond proceeds will be disbursed in accordance with the Repayment 
Agreement.  If there are unexpended Bond proceeds, they will be applied to future 
principal installments, interest payments or prepayment of the Bonds, as allowed by 
CDA. 

 Section 7 – The Town agrees to make timely payments on the Bonds and pledges its full 
faith and credit and unlimited taxing power to payment of the Bonds.  The Town also 
pledges to provide CDA with the necessary financial and operating information so that 
CDA may meet the continuing disclosure requirements of SEC Rule 15c2-12 with respect 
to CDA’s revenue bonds. 

 Section 8 – The Ordinance is considered a contract with owners of the Bonds. 
 Section 9 – As authorized by the CDA Act and as security for the Bonds, the Town 

pledges its right to receive tax and other revenue payments from the State (identified as 
“Local Government Payments”).  Such pledge will be detailed in full in the Pledge 
Agreement.  (Note:  This pledge will allow CDA (i) to intercept taxes and other State-
collected or State-shared revenues due from the State to the Town in the event the Town 
defaults in its obligations under the Bonds and the Program Documents and (ii) apply 
such intercepted taxes and revenues to meet the Town’s payment obligations with respect 
to the Bonds.) 

 Section 10 – The Bonds will be sold for cash and for such price as permitted by the CDA 
Act. 

 Section 11 – The Bonds will be sold to CDA at private sale, as authorized by the CDA 
Act. 

 Section 12 – Except to the extent not otherwise expressly provided for in the Ordinance, 
Town officials and employees are authorized to take actions necessary to carry out the 
provisions of the Bonds and the Program Documents.  As required by the CDA Act, the 
Town will publish notice of, and hold, a public hearing relating to the Bonds prior to 
passage of the Ordinance.  (Note:  The public hearing on the Ordinance is scheduled for 
03/11/2024.) 

 Section 13 – It is anticipated that interest on the Bonds shall be tax-exempt for federal 
income tax purposes.  Any one or more of the Mayor, the Town Administrator and the 
Finance Director are designated as the Town officials responsible for issuance of the 
Bonds within the meaning of the federal tax code and are authorized to make certain 
representations and certifications or designations, determinations or elections relating to 
the tax-exempt status of the Bonds for federal tax code purposes.  Standard 
representations and covenants regarding complying with the federal tax code are set forth 
in this Section. 

 Section 14 – Miscellaneous provisions, including that notwithstanding the provisions of 
Section C3-10 of the Charter, the Ordinance will be effective upon passage by the 
Council and approval by the Mayor pursuant to the CDA Act; provisions of the CDA Act 
control an ordinance’s effective date and any petition-to-referendum period rather than 
the participant’s charter.  Sets forth the officials or employees who may act in place of 
certain officials identified in the Ordinance in the event of a vacancy, absence, disability 
or unavailability of the named official, in the stated orders of priority.  Includes certain 
rules of construction.  Provides for appropriation of proceeds of the Bonds.  Provides that 
to the extent not paid from proceeds of the Bonds, the Town shall pay costs of issuance of 
the Bonds and CDA’s revenue bonds from other available sources.  Acknowledges the 

104 



4 
 

Town’s obligation to pay the allocable fees of CDA’s bond counsel if the Town 
withdraws from the Program.  Ratifies, confirms and approves actions of Town officials 
taken in connection with the Town’s anticipated participation in the Program prior to the 
effective date of the Ordinance.  The Ordinance title constitutes a fair summary of the 
Ordinance.  Addresses the petition to referendum period, which runs for 20 days after the 
Council approves the Ordinance.  (Note:  assuming the Ordinance is passed on 
03/11/2024, the petition-to-referendum period will end on Monday, 04/01/2024 because 
20 days after 03/11/2024 is 03/31/2024, which is a Sunday.)  The provisions of the 
Ordinance shall be liberally construed.   

_________ 
Further Notes: 
 
(1)   The Town will be required to file its UFR and audited financial statements with CDA on an 
annual basis and will be required to provide CDA with prompt notice of the occurrence of certain 
specified events as provided for in SEC Rule 15c2-12.  These requirements are not specified in 
the Ordinance but will be specified in the Program Documents. 
 
(2)     Although not specified in the Ordinance, the Program Documents will provide that in the 
event the Town defaults under the terms of the Program Documents, CDA will have the right to 
accelerate payment of the Bonds, which means that remaining outstanding principal and accrued 
interest could be payable to CDA upon demand following a default (this is standard for a CDA 
loan but is not standard in situations where the Town issues its general obligation bonds to a 
bank).  Bond counsel is not aware of CDA ever accelerating any of its underlying loans. 
 
(3) With its June 2012 bond issue, CDA changed the form of Pledge Agreement to provide 
that a participant may not, without CDA’s prior consent (which cannot be unreasonably withheld 
and is based on calculated debt service coverage ratios), incur any other obligations where it has 
to pledge its right to receive State-collected taxes or other revenues as security other than 
Maryland Water Infrastructure Financing Administration (known as the Maryland Water 
Quality Financing Administration until mid-2022) loans, and with regard to an MWIFA loan, a 
participant must notify CDA beforehand of its intention to obtain an MWIFA loan.   The Town 
will have to monitor and comply with this requirement if the Town undertakes other borrowings 
or is a recipient of grant funding with respect to which the Town is required to pledge any such 
taxes/revenues as security for its obligations, including by providing prior notice to CDA of any 
MWIFA loans.   
 
(4) While the Town will not have the right to prepay any of the Bonds prior to the date stated 
in the Repayment Agreement, it is possible to structure a cash defeasance or a refunding of the 
Bonds in whole or in part prior to such date.  However, the ability to undertake a tax-exempt 
advance refunding (tax-exempt refunding bonds issued more than 90 days prior to the allowable 
prepayment date) will depend on federal tax law at the time in question (currently, tax-exempt 
advance refundings are disallowed).  Tax-exempt current refundings (where the tax-exempt 
refunding bonds are issued no more than 90 days prior to the date of prepayment of the Bonds) 
are currently allowed, but that could change depending on federal legislative/regulatory actions.  
Any tax-exempt or taxable current or advance refunding, and any cash defeasance, will require 
the involvement of the Town’s bond counsel as well as the CDA team, new legislation (for any 

105 



5 
 

refunding), and the obligation by the Town to prepay its share of CDA’s trustee’s fees for the 
remaining term, as well as the costs of CDA’s bond counsel and CDA’s financial advisor. 
 
 
#234303;50016.026 

 

106 



  
 
  

              
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mayor & Council of Berlin 
10 William Street, Berlin, Maryland 21811 

Phone 410-641-2770      Fax 410-641-2316 

www.berlinmd.gov 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

SUBJECT: Public Opioid Settlement Endo Bankruptcy Voting   
 
MEETING DATE: February 26, 2024  

__________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUMMARY:  The following is a summary of an email sent by Nachawati Law Group on Friday, February 9, 2024.  
 
The Nachawati Law Group, the Town’s legal representative  in the Public Opioid Settlement, has advised the 
Mayor and Council of the current terms of the Endo Settlement as part of that matter. A fully developed 
settlement plan has been drafted and now requires entities to vote.  
  
The Nachawati Law Group has taken on the responsibility of casting this vote for the Town of Berlin. In order for 
that process to proceed, Nachawati needs confirmation from the Town outlining acceptance of the deal as it 
stands.  
  
Terms of the Current Endo Settlement 
In regards to Public Opioid Claimants, as the deal stands, subdivisions would receive a total of $273 million (which 
could increase to $460 million if paid over 8 years). For reference, the distributor settlement amount for this 
same group was $19 billion, meaning the amount now available to the Town will be lower than what has begun 
to be received to date. This settlement was developed with an expedited payment timeframe at the forefront as 
private claim holders and political subdivision’s returns have been hamstrung by other Chapter 11 bankruptcy 
processes to date.  
  
When outlining the fund amounts potentially available to the Town, Nachawati references distributions that may 
be received from the State in accordance with the State’s Opioid Abatement programs or as directed by the 
bankruptcy trustee. As a part of this plan, it was agreed that the States would receive funds and would 
subsequently make them available to counties, cities, and other political subdivisions for applicable opioid 
abatement programs.  Following the final approval of the plan, Nachawati will provide a subsequent update if 
additional or different steps are required to receive funds. 
  
Voting 
It is Nachawati’s opinion that the Town should vote to approve the current plan and elect to accept the outlined 
releases. The deadline to cast votes was February 22, 2024 by 4 pm. 
 
CONCLUSION 
On Wednesday, February 14, 2024, the Town Administrator initiated a poll vote of the Councilmembers regarding 
the above. The results of that poll vote were four (4) in favor with Councilmember Nichols experiencing technical 
difficulties to approve the recommendation and Nachawati was so advised on Wednesday, February 21, 2024. 
 
This statement and attachment(s) shall be included in the record for the Mayor and Council Meeting of Monday, 
February 26, 2024. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Email from Town Administrator requesting poll vote 
 

Agenda Item 6 b

107 



108 



109 



110 



1 | P a g e  

 

February 26, 2024 
Weekly Report 

 
 
 
Departments this Week: 
 
Town Administrator 

• Because there will be a quorum of members of the Mayor & Council present at the 
March 5, 2024, County Commissioners Meeting, that information will be posted to the 
Town website for information purposes.  

• Budget work is underway with Department Heads meeting with Finance over the next 
few weeks. The public budget schedule is available on the Town website.  

• Interviews for potential members of the Board of Supervisors of Elections will be held in 
early March. There is one vacancy on the Board. 

• Advertising for the open Administrative Assistant II position is ongoing. 

• Both the RFQ for Design/Build and the RFP for IT Audit Services are active. 

• Extensive information is being compiled as part of the Bond application process. 

• Special Projects Administrator Kate Daub is working on several items in preparation for 
the 2024 Election and we will be scheduling a meeting with the Board of Supervisors of 
Elections for mid-March. 

• Councilmember Knerr forwarded a link from World Atlas noting Berlin as one of the “7 
Most Vibrant Towns in Maryland”. As he noted “Once again Berlin makes the grade”!  

 
Ongoing: 

• Smart Water Meter installation began on Tuesday, January 2, 2024, and is expected to 
continue for approximately six months. Further information can be found on the Town 
website at www.berlinmd.gov, including a map of the planned work areas and updates 
will be provided periodically throughout the project period. 
 

Economic and Community Development  

• Spoke at the Rehoboth Main Street Board Meeting  

• Event meeting in Easton 

• Attended the MARYLAND STATE ARTS COUNCIL Cultural Artists Showcase  

• Planning for the Vintage & Vinyl in Berlin event celebrating Record Store Day 

• Meeting with Brunswick Main Street Manager 

• Delivered rack cards to the Myersville Maryland Welcome Centers 

• Continue to work on annual reports and sustainability applications. 
 
Electric 

• Heron Park: Clean up 

• Walnut Hill: Installed Service 

• Evans Road: Removed Service Pole 

Agenda Item 7

111 

https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fmedia.berlinmd.gov%2Fwp-content%2Fuploads%2F2019%2F03%2F26112620%2FFY-2025-Budget-Schedule-Web.pdf&data=05%7C02%7C%7Cf5a47ed3706141259c1808dc33197a14%7C799b1f0ab4fb4909ae800ac966d5c44b%7C1%7C0%7C638441431718701097%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=00qPDlTEOBjneKaeX96A2xphsuMY2H34U8HiO2bnheI%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.worldatlas.com%2Fcities%2F7-most-vibrant-towns-in-maryland.html&data=05%7C02%7C%7C8bc3efb016a142cf3c5008dc33b03d64%7C799b1f0ab4fb4909ae800ac966d5c44b%7C1%7C0%7C638442079259809628%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Am6NjgeYcyofjqOazEU75C%2BBslwccoQQVwYDLyNq8ZI%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.worldatlas.com%2Fcities%2F7-most-vibrant-towns-in-maryland.html&data=05%7C02%7C%7C8bc3efb016a142cf3c5008dc33b03d64%7C799b1f0ab4fb4909ae800ac966d5c44b%7C1%7C0%7C638442079259809628%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Am6NjgeYcyofjqOazEU75C%2BBslwccoQQVwYDLyNq8ZI%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.berlinmd.gov%2F&data=05%7C02%7C%7Caab3dca5f77c4dfe1adf08dc281311fa%7C799b1f0ab4fb4909ae800ac966d5c44b%7C1%7C0%7C638429309598911329%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=%2Fq9hm6WdwPQgFH7Gnbyk5eUGggRPu47zKLN5XdjRSRk%3D&reserved=0


2 | P a g e  

 

• Westview Development: Installed Transformers & Street Light 

• Prospect Drive: Installed Service 

• Demand & Meter Reads 

• Berlin Activities Depot-Touch-A-Truck Event 
 
Finance Director  
Continue working on: 

• FY 2025 Budget planning. Projections, scenarios  

• FY 2025 Capital projects  

• Half year financials preparation, budgeted vs actual highlights 

• CDA Bond for electric smart meters and public works building. 

• Bond application and tax questionnaires 

• Department goals and achievements 

• Meeting with department heads, budget for FY 2025 projections 

• Personnel FY 2025 budget with Kelsey 

• EA invoices processing 

• DBF invoices review and processing. 

• RE tax projections 

• Credit cards payments and processing- Shirley. 

• Bank reconciliations and journal entries - Melissa. 

• Electric rate study paperwork and necessary reports for evaluation 
o Working with Booth and Assoc-in process 

• Water and electric meters readings- Michelle 

• Smart metering project planning and Tyler integration 

• Check processing and credit cards payments, review registers, checks, and Town’s cards 
payments - Shirley. 

• Department meetings scheduled, projects, and planning. 
 
Human Resources Director 

• Working on adding lift stations to insurance, they came on-site on 01/04/24 for more 
information. They have determined there is one they will not cover due to its poor 
condition, and they are evaluating the condition of one other to determine if coverage 
will be extended.  

• Filed a Worker's Compensation Claim on 02/01/24.  

• Attended the CPM in-person Lunch meeting at the U-Balt campus on February 7, 2024.  

• Filed two Liability Claims, one on 02/07/24 and one on 02/14/24 (this one was report 
only, no damage).   

• Processed payroll and all related paperwork on 02/12/24.  

• Presented the initial step and grade program to the Mayor and Council on 02/12/24. I 
will now be working through COLA and tenure options.  

• Worked with my CPM program to permit me to make my final presentation a day 
earlier, June 13th, with another class, so it does not interfere with payroll.  

112 



3 | P a g e  

 

• Posted the Administrative Assistant Position for the Administration Department on 
02/13/24.  

• Onboarded new Police Communications Officer, Kevin O’Rourke, on 02/15/24.  

• Attending (virtually) LGIT Safeguarding Success: Navigating the Essentials of Safety 
Committees on 02/21/24.  

• Attended the Salisbury University Career Fair on 02/22/24. 

• Planning to attend the Eastern Shore SHRM Meeting: Leadership and renewing energy 
on 02/27/24.  

• Planning to attend the LGIT Maryland Public Information Act Training in Snow Hill on 
02/29/24.  

• Scheduled CPR/AED Training for all employees with Jackie Carey on April 23, 25, and 30 
and May 1, 2, and 3.  

• Coordinated a 2024 Jolly Rogers Day for Sunday, August 4, 2024 – please save the date. 
Also, prices did go up from $20 to $28.  

 
Planning Department 

• Issued 2 new single-family dwelling permits, 8 sign permits,2 fence permits, and one 
roofing permit. 

• The Planning Commission will meet on Wednesday, February 28, 2024, at 5:30 PM. 

• Attended the Worcester County bike and pedestrian trails meeting on 2/20 at the Berlin 
Library. 

 
Police Department 

• 2/7, Chief Downing was interviewed by the Governor’s Office of Performance 
Improvement regarding the Police Accountability Board in Worcester County. 

• 2/20, Sgt Collins attended “Critical Infrastructure Security and Resilience Awareness” 
sponsored by FEMA.  

• Collisions – 8; Arrests – 2 
 
Public Works 

• We worked with the HAC to plant the downtown pots with tulip bulbs. The lamp post 
baskets and window baskets will be back up soon as we prep for our spring 
maintenance/planting.  

• We will be attending Berlin Education Station’s Touch a Truck event on 2/22 from 4-6 
pm. We will have some of our trucks there as well as coloring books to pass out.  

• Town parks are being prepped for spring. We have been continually cleaning up debris 
from winter storms and making note of trees that need to be removed, equipment that 
needs to be repaired, etc.  We plan on planting more trees and replacing benches in 
Stephen Decatur Park in the coming months.  

• Normal trash/recycling collection is taking place.  

• We have been monitoring town streets for potholes and making repairs where needed. 
Regular street sweeping is taking place as well. 

 

113 



4 | P a g e  

 

Water Resources 

• Meter project continues: 
o 619 meters replaced so far. 
o Assisting meter technicians as necessary 

• Miss Utility tickets 

• Responded to sewer backup on Bay St 

• Abandoned service on Old Ocean City Blvd 

• Troubleshooting Decatur Farms lift station pump 

• Replaced pinch valve for septage machine operation. 

• One operator passed the CDL driver test. 

• One operator sat for a pesticide exam. 

• New water service for Littleworth Ct 

• Electric motor installed for Spray Site B, waiting on electric for operation. 

• Cleaned Schoolfield lift station. 
o Pulled clogged pump at Schoolfield lift station. 

• Locate and test pit utilities for WWTP electric gate installation. 

• Broad St lift station project:  
o Met on-site with the contractor, DBF, and SHA for a pre-construction meeting. 

114 



  
 

 
 
 

Check Run Reports for: 
2.07.24 
2.08.24 
2.13.24 
2.15.24 

 
 

 

115 



2/7/2024 12:32:22 PM Page 1 of 3

Payment Register
Town of Berlin, MD APPKT02941 - 20240207SW

01 - Vendor Set 01

Bank: BOC AP - BOC AP Checks

0002338

Vendor Number

WISE RONDELL

Total Vendor Amount

203.60

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/07/2024 203.60
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

02/07/2024 02/07/2024CONTRACTUAL FINANCE DEPARTMENT 203.6002/07/2024 0.00

116 



Payment Register APPKT02941 - 20240207SW

2/7/2024 12:32:22 PM Page 2 of 3

Payment Summary

Type

Payment
Count Discount Payment

Payable
CountBank Code

0.001Check 203.601BOC AP

0.001Packet Totals: 203.601

117 



2/13/2024 11:57:38 AM Page 1 of 3

Payment Register
Town of Berlin, MD APPKT02946 - 20240213SW

01 - Vendor Set 01

Bank: BOC AP - BOC AP Checks

0002202

Vendor Number

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE

Total Vendor Amount

5,000.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/13/2024 5,000.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

2/13/2024 02/13/2024POSTAGE FOR BULK MAILING 5,000.0002/13/2024 0.00

0002338

Vendor Number

WISE RONDELL

Total Vendor Amount

203.60

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/13/2024 203.60
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

02/13/2024 02/13/2024CONTRACTUAL FINANCE DEPARTMENT 203.6002/13/2024 0.00

118 



Payment Register APPKT02946 - 20240213SW

2/13/2024 11:57:38 AM Page 2 of 3

Payment Summary

Type

Payment
Count Discount Payment

Payable
CountBank Code

0.002Check 5,203.602BOC AP

0.002Packet Totals: 5,203.602

119 



2/15/2024 9:18:35 AM Page 1 of 3

Payment Register
Town of Berlin, MD APPKT02949 - 20240615SW

01 - Vendor Set 01

Bank: BOC AP - BOC AP Checks

0003317

Vendor Number

CARTER MACHINERY COMPANY INC

Total Vendor Amount

318,750.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 318,750.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

2152024 02/15/2024MEA FUNDS FOR NATURAL GAS ENGINES  POWER PLANT 318,750.0002/15/2024 0.00

120 



Payment Register APPKT02949 - 20240615SW

2/15/2024 9:18:35 AM Page 2 of 3

Payment Summary

Type

Payment
Count Discount Payment

Payable
CountBank Code

0.001Check 318,750.001BOC AP

0.001Packet Totals: 318,750.001

121 



2/8/2024 11:56:50 AM Page 1 of 6

Payment Register
Town of Berlin, MD APPKT02943 - 20240208SW

01 - Vendor Set 01

Bank: BOC AP - BOC AP Checks

0000080

Vendor Number

ADVANCE AUTO PARTS

Total Vendor Amount

147.39

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/08/2024 147.39
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

63058403326915 02/06/2024BATTERY FOR VERMEER CHIPPER ( REPLACEMENT ) 147.3902/06/2024 0.00

0000453

Vendor Number

CAPITAL ELECTRIC SUPPLY COMPANY

Total Vendor Amount

609.98

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/08/2024 609.98
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

S0539784350.001 02/06/20244 BOXES MILBANK ENCLOSURE PLATES 200 AMP BOXES 325.8802/06/2024 0.00

S054042795.001 02/06/202418 INHDF BOLT CUTTERS ( GREENLEE ) CUTTERS 284.1002/06/2024 0.00

0003317

Vendor Number

CARTER MACHINERY COMPANY INC

Total Vendor Amount

1,597.32

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/08/2024 1,597.32
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

00442917 02/06/2024TOWN HALL BACKUP GENERATOR RENTAL 1,597.3202/06/2024 0.00

0000480

Vendor Number

CATO OIL CO., INC.

Total Vendor Amount

10,047.57

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/08/2024 10,047.57
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

CFSI-4001 02/06/2024TOWN VEHICLE GAS 10,047.5702/06/2024 0.00

0000534

Vendor Number

CJIS-CR

Total Vendor Amount

536.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/08/2024 536.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

APP-1P-028 02/07/2024FINGERPRINTING 536.0002/07/2024 0.00

0003161

Vendor Number

EASTERN SHORE MOBILE DRUG & ALCOHOL TESTING LLC

Total Vendor Amount

55.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/08/2024 55.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

3944 02/06/2024PRE EMPLOYMENT DRUG SCREENING BURKEY 55.0002/06/2024 0.00

0000907

Vendor Number

FLAG PUBLICATIONS INC

Total Vendor Amount

30.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/08/2024 30.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

368024 02/06/2024FLAG PUBLICATIONS - ADMINISTRATION ADVERTISING 30.0002/06/2024 0.00

122 



Payment Register APPKT02943 - 20240208SW

2/8/2024 11:56:50 AM Page 2 of 6

0000970

Vendor Number

GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION

Total Vendor Amount

870.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/08/2024 870.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

6/9-6/12 02/07/2024GFOA CONFERENCE JUNE FY24 870.0002/07/2024 0.00

0000977

Vendor Number

GREAT AMERICA FINANCIAL

Total Vendor Amount

75.60

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/08/2024 75.60
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

35860075 02/06/2024GREAT AMERICA COPIER LEASE AGREEMENT 75.6002/06/2024 0.00

0003644

Vendor Number

LIBERTY MANUFACTURING GROUP LLC

Total Vendor Amount

925.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/08/2024 925.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

1126 02/06/2024ALUM. SECONDARY STUD CONNECTORS 925.0002/06/2024 0.00

0001394

Vendor Number

MARYLAND DEPT OF THE ENVIRONMENT

Total Vendor Amount

100.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/08/2024 100.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

7027 02/06/2024CERT RENEWAL DHURLEY 100.0002/06/2024 0.00

0003637

Vendor Number

NAPA AUTO PARTS

Total Vendor Amount

490.32

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/08/2024 465.34
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

476816,477768,477483 02/06/2024TOOLS, PARTS AND OTHER SUPPLIES 465.3402/06/2024 0.00

Check 02/08/2024 24.98
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

478335 02/06/2024TOOLS, PARTS AND OTHER SUPPLIES 24.9802/06/2024 0.00

0001625

Vendor Number

ONE CALL CONCEPTS, INC.

Total Vendor Amount

79.61

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/08/2024 79.61
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

4016168 02/07/2024MISS UTILITY TICKETS 79.6102/07/2024 0.00

0001676

Vendor Number

PENINSULA AUTO & TRUCK PARTS, INC

Total Vendor Amount

953.43

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/08/2024 953.43
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

211697,212009 02/07/2024PARTS FOR VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT REPAIRS 744.2802/07/2024 0.00

211982, 212213 02/07/2024PARTS FOR VEHICLE REPAIRS 209.1502/07/2024 0.00

0003127

Vendor Number

QUADIENT FINANCE USA, INC

Total Vendor Amount

500.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/08/2024 500.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

8273 JAN 02/06/2024POSTAGE TOWN WIDE 500.0002/06/2024 0.00

123 



Payment Register APPKT02943 - 20240208SW

2/8/2024 11:56:50 AM Page 3 of 6

0001757

Vendor Number

RACETRACK AUTO CENTER

Total Vendor Amount

287.26

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/08/2024 287.26
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

154904 02/07/2024VEHICLE REPAIRS 287.2602/07/2024 0.00

0003171

Vendor Number

RICKY JARMON

Total Vendor Amount

866.71

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/08/2024 866.71
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

JAN FY 24 02/07/2024CUSTODIAL SERVICE FOR PD 866.7102/07/2024 0.00

0001867

Vendor Number

SALISBURY UNIVERSITY

Total Vendor Amount

9,300.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/08/2024 9,300.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

16792 02/07/2024BEACON STRATEGIC PLAN 9,300.0002/07/2024 0.00

0003222

Vendor Number

SFS TOOLS AND SAFETY LLC

Total Vendor Amount

972.36

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/08/2024 972.36
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

428190 02/06/2024CLASS 1 SIZE 10 1/2 RUBBER GLOVES 972.3602/06/2024 0.00

0003245

Vendor Number

SNOW HILL VETERINARY SVCS LLC

Total Vendor Amount

242.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/08/2024 242.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

02/06/2024 02/07/2024LUKE EXAM 242.0002/07/2024 0.00

0001997

Vendor Number

STAPLES BUSINESS CREDIT

Total Vendor Amount

754.28

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/08/2024 754.28
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

1653626596 02/06/2024OFFICE SUPPLIES 754.2802/06/2024 0.00

0003461

Vendor Number

TECHMD

Total Vendor Amount

1,353.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/08/2024 1,353.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

240484 02/06/2024IT SERVICES - MICROSOFT 365 & AZURE 1,353.0002/06/2024 0.00

0003220

Vendor Number

THE GUN SHOP

Total Vendor Amount

2,469.08

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/08/2024 2,469.08
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

50454 02/07/2024AMMUNITION FOR RECRUITS IN ACADEMY 2,469.0802/07/2024 0.00

0002993

Vendor Number

TUCKAHOE UNDERGROUND LLC

Total Vendor Amount

4,325.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/08/2024 4,325.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

23273 02/06/2024I G BURTON PROJECT ASPHALT PATCHING 825.0002/06/2024 0.00

124 



Payment Register APPKT02943 - 20240208SW

2/8/2024 11:56:50 AM Page 4 of 6

23628 02/06/20249413 EVANS ROAD STORAGE 2'' ELECTRICAL BORE 3,500.0002/06/2024 0.00

0002928

Vendor Number

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

Total Vendor Amount

177.95

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/08/2024 177.95
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

1430112037 02/07/2024UNIFORMS FOR PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 36.6002/07/2024 0.00

1430112040 02/07/2024UNIFORMS FOR PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 141.3502/07/2024 0.00

0002231

Vendor Number

VA MD & DE ASSOC OF ELECTRIC COOPERATIVES

Total Vendor Amount

800.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/08/2024 800.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

25788 02/06/2024LINEMAN TRAINING CLASSES 800.0002/06/2024 0.00

125 



Payment Register APPKT02943 - 20240208SW

2/8/2024 11:56:50 AM Page 5 of 6

Payment Summary

Type

Payment
Count Discount Payment

Payable
CountBank Code

0.0027Check 38,564.8631BOC AP

0.0027Packet Totals: 38,564.8631

126 



Payment Register APPKT02943 - 20240208SW

2/8/2024 11:56:50 AM Page 6 of 6

Cash Fund Summary
NameFund Amount

-38,564.8698 POOLED CASH

-38,564.86Packet Totals:

127 



2/15/2024 1:55:48 PM Page 1 of 10

Payment Register
Town of Berlin, MD APPKT02951 - 20240215SW

01 - Vendor Set 01

Bank: BOC AP - BOC AP Checks

0000015

Vendor Number

ABC PRINTERS INC

Total Vendor Amount

320.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 320.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

63830,63829 02/12/2024PRINTING SUPPLIES 320.0002/12/2024 0.00

0000060

Vendor Number

ACTION ISLAND GRAPHICS

Total Vendor Amount

1,719.80

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 1,719.80
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

9394 02/14/2024FARMERS MARKET BAGS 1,719.8002/14/2024 0.00

0000090

Vendor Number

AFLAC

Total Vendor Amount

546.48

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 546.48
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

041693 02/14/2024AFLAC EMPLOYEE PAID SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE 546.4802/14/2024 0.00

0000205

Vendor Number

ARCTIC HEATING & AIR

Total Vendor Amount

160.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 160.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

444568 02/12/2024MINI SPLIT SERVICE 160.0002/12/2024 0.00

0000249

Vendor Number

ATLANTIC TRACTOR

Total Vendor Amount

4.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 4.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

-P81356 02/14/2024HANDLE W/GAURD 4.0002/14/2024 0.00

0000312

Vendor Number

BENEFITMALL

Total Vendor Amount

86,025.52

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 86,025.52
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

321525 MAR FY 24 02/13/2024BENEFITMALL MAR 24 MED DENT VIS LIFE DIS 86,025.5202/13/2024 0.00

0000394

Vendor Number

BOOTH & ASSOCIATES INC

Total Vendor Amount

10,355.25

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 10,355.25
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

8282503892 02/14/2024PROJ P.0669282.M.00 MISC ENGINEERING 2,039.2502/14/2024 0.00

8282503950 02/14/2024PROJ P.0669295.F.50 RATE SVC,POW PLT, REG COMPL 8,316.0002/14/2024 0.00

128 



Payment Register APPKT02951 - 20240215SW

2/15/2024 1:55:48 PM Page 2 of 10

0000405

Vendor Number

BRASURE'S PEST CONTROL INC

Total Vendor Amount

55.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 55.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

837275 02/15/2024QUARTERLY MAINTENANCE 55.0002/15/2024 0.00

0000431

Vendor Number

BURKE EQUIPMENT COMPANY

Total Vendor Amount

708.07

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 708.07
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

DEL-3011957 02/12/2024KUBOTA MAINTENANCE 708.0702/12/2024 0.00

0003577

Vendor Number

CAREFLEX LLC

Total Vendor Amount

1,006.50

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 1,006.50
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

2401-05474 02/12/2024CAREFLEX HRA & FSA ADMIN FEES 1,006.5002/12/2024 0.00

0003317

Vendor Number

CARTER MACHINERY COMPANY INC

Total Vendor Amount

5,936.44

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 5,936.44
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

1593531 02/14/2024TOWN HALL GENERATOR  GENERATOR/ATS REPAIR 1,154.1402/14/2024 0.00

1593532 02/13/2024TOWN HALL GENERATOIR REPLACE MICRO BOARD 1,513.2502/13/2024 0.00

OP03177 02/14/2024TOWN HALL GENERATOR  REPLACE LEAKING RADIATOR 3,269.0502/14/2024 0.00

0002755

Vendor Number

CHESAPEAKE TELEPHONE SYSTEMS INC

Total Vendor Amount

380.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 380.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

INV205229 02/12/2024ANNUAL MIV SFTWARE AGREEMENT 380.0002/12/2024 0.00

0000511

Vendor Number

CHOPTANK ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.

Total Vendor Amount

2,495.85

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 2,495.85
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

9913014900 FEB FY 24 02/15/2024ELECTRIC UTILITY SERVICE SPRAY SITES 2,495.8502/15/2024 0.00

0002647

Vendor Number

CINTAS RUGS

Total Vendor Amount

245.92

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 245.92
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

10635537 JAN FY 24 02/12/2024POWER PLANT  TOWELS,RUG & COVERALLS 175.0002/12/2024 0.00

418246221 02/12/2024RUGS AND RUG CLEANING SERVICE 70.9202/12/2024 0.00

0003643

Vendor Number

CONTECH ENGINEERED SOLUTIONS LLC

Total Vendor Amount

22,002.80

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 22,002.80
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

28554640 02/13/2024CMP FOR STRMWTR UPGRADES 22,002.8002/13/2024 0.00

129 



Payment Register APPKT02951 - 20240215SW

2/15/2024 1:55:48 PM Page 3 of 10

0000622

Vendor Number

CROPPERS INC

Total Vendor Amount

35.61

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 35.61
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

17789 02/12/2024REPAIR JET HOSE VAC TRUCK 35.6102/12/2024 0.00

0000678

Vendor Number

DAVIS, BOWEN & FRIEDEL

Total Vendor Amount

26,309.73

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 26,309.73
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

179976 02/14/2024PROJ 0050A002.001 GEN CORR & COORD W/TOWN,MDE WTR 789.3802/14/2024 0.00

179977 02/14/2024PROJ 0050A002.019 OCEAN'S EAST SEAHAWK PHS 28 PLAN 360.0002/14/2024 0.00

179978 02/14/2024PROJ 0050A002.049 EVANS RD WRHSE REVIEW CONST SUB 11,875.5402/14/2024 0.00

179979 02/14/2024PROJ 0050A002.060 RDWY PVMENT OVERLAY PROJS COM ST 990.0002/14/2024 0.00

179980 02/14/2024PROJ 0050A002.063 BERLIN WWTP UPRG PERMIT LAGOON 660.0002/14/2024 0.00

179981 02/14/2024PROJ 0050A002.073 WT ST UTILITY & RDWY IMP COST ES 2,165.0002/14/2024 0.00

179982 02/14/2024PROJ 0050A002.079 WEST VIEW DESIGN SUB REVIEW RDWY 2,021.0602/14/2024 0.00

179983 02/14/2024PROJ 0050A002.082 HARRI AVE WTRMAIN REPL PROP LINE 1,221.2502/14/2024 0.00

179984 02/14/2024PROJ 0050A002.083 GAY ST DEVEL ENG PLAN REVIEW SVC 402.5002/14/2024 0.00

179985 02/14/2024PROJ 0050A109.A01 POWELLTON AVE WELL BLDG PLAN BID 645.0002/14/2024 0.00

179986 02/14/2024PROJ 0050A112.B01 BROAD ST PUMP STAT BIDDING & AWA 3,780.0002/14/2024 0.00

182217 02/15/2024PROJ 0050A116.A01 TYSON PLT SELECTIVE DEMOLITION 1,400.0002/15/2024 0.00

0000770

Vendor Number

DOVER PLUMBING

Total Vendor Amount

6,692.96

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 6,692.96
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

180595,180597 02/12/2024DIST PARTS 6,692.9602/12/2024 0.00

0000794

Vendor Number

EASTERN SHORE COFFEE

Total Vendor Amount

48.70

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 48.70
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

327876 02/12/2024WATER & COOLER RENTAL FEES 8.7502/12/2024 0.00

663826 02/12/2024DISTILLED WATER 39.9502/12/2024 0.00

0000845

Vendor Number

ENVIREP, INC.

Total Vendor Amount

1,695.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 1,695.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

75928 02/12/2024ANNUAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 1,695.0002/12/2024 0.00

0000888

Vendor Number

FASTENAL

Total Vendor Amount

1,969.88

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 1,969.88
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

MDSAS140543, 140596 02/15/2024TOOLS 1,969.8802/15/2024 0.00

0002814

Vendor Number

FRONTLINE MOBILE TECH LLC

Total Vendor Amount

1,318.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 1,318.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

FLM50481 02/15/2024CENTER CONSOLE MOUNT FOR 6748 1,318.0002/15/2024 0.00

130 



Payment Register APPKT02951 - 20240215SW

2/15/2024 1:55:48 PM Page 4 of 10

0000932

Vendor Number

GAME TIME

Total Vendor Amount

4,830.67

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 4,830.67
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

PJI-0227691 02/13/2024GAME TIME 6 FOOT PARK BENCHES 4,830.6702/13/2024 0.00

0000968

Vendor Number

GOODY HILL GROUND WORK INC

Total Vendor Amount

9,505.44

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 9,505.44
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

10256 02/15/2024EMERGENCY FORCE MAIN REPAIR 9,505.4402/15/2024 0.00

0001032

Vendor Number

HILL'S ELECTRIC MOTOR SERVICE INC.

Total Vendor Amount

5,651.14

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 5,651.14
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

0147748 02/12/2024DIGESTER MIXER MOTOR 4,531.1402/12/2024 0.00

0148046 02/14/2024GRAHAM AVE PUMP INSTALL SPARE 1,120.0002/14/2024 0.00

0001068

Vendor Number

INTERCOASTAL TRADING INC.

Total Vendor Amount

3,465.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 3,465.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

240268 02/12/2024BLEACH 3,465.0002/12/2024 0.00

0001286

Vendor Number

LEGAL SHIELD

Total Vendor Amount

31.90

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 31.90
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

139007 FEB FY 24 02/14/2024LEGAL SHIELD EMPLOYEE PAID 31.9002/14/2024 0.00

0003654

Vendor Number

LIFELOCK MEDICAL SUPPLY LLC

Total Vendor Amount

3,157.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 3,157.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

47733 02/13/2024AED FOR PUBLIC WORKS TRUCKS 3,157.0002/13/2024 0.00

0003660

Vendor Number

LYWOOD AUTOMATION LLC

Total Vendor Amount

480.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 480.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

1932 02/12/2024PARKSON PLC ERRORS 480.0002/12/2024 0.00

0003502

Vendor Number

MARYLAND TOURISM COALITION INC

Total Vendor Amount

350.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 350.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

2020448 02/14/2024ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP FEE 350.0002/14/2024 0.00

131 



Payment Register APPKT02951 - 20240215SW

2/15/2024 1:55:48 PM Page 5 of 10

0002678

Vendor Number

MCGEE FENCE LLC

Total Vendor Amount

2,171.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 2,171.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

8116 02/15/2024REPLACE  FENCE AT 105 & 107 KENWOOD STROM DAMAGE 2,171.0002/15/2024 0.00

0003646

Vendor Number

MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES INC

Total Vendor Amount

4,556.13

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 4,556.13
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

IN2002641 02/14/2024GAS DETECTOR UNIT 4,556.1302/14/2024 0.00

0003637

Vendor Number

NAPA AUTO PARTS

Total Vendor Amount

2,343.22

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 1,865.38
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

479294,479658 02/14/2024CHEVY BOX TRUCK 320.0202/14/2024 0.00

479657 02/14/2024BRAKES TRUCK # 45 244.7302/14/2024 0.00

Check 02/15/2024 477.84
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

480269,581,457,481119 02/12/2024POWER PLANT  ( PLANT / F-150 FORD PICK-UP 477.8402/12/2024 0.00

Check 02/15/2024 1,865.38
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

VARIOUS INVS 02/12/2024TOOLS, PARTS AND OTHER SUPPLIES 1,300.6302/12/2024 0.00

0001565

Vendor Number

NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTIONS

Total Vendor Amount

3,570.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 3,570.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

PPE 02/11/2024 02/12/2024NATIONWIDE EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS DEFFERED COMP 3,570.0002/12/2024 0.00

0003657

Vendor Number

OLGA RULERA DESHIELDS

Total Vendor Amount

4,000.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 4,000.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

02082024 02/14/2024GRANT FUNDED MSAC ARTIST RESTORATION MURALS DEPSIT 4,000.0002/14/2024 0.00

0001652

Vendor Number

PASCO OF FRUITLAND

Total Vendor Amount

25.88

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 25.88
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

559408/D 02/14/2024UPS BATTERY 25.8802/14/2024 0.00

0001677

Vendor Number

PENINSULA DRY CLEANERS, INC

Total Vendor Amount

70.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 70.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

1290 02/12/2024DRY CLEANING 70.0002/12/2024 0.00

132 



Payment Register APPKT02951 - 20240215SW

2/15/2024 1:55:48 PM Page 6 of 10

0001747

Vendor Number

QUILL CORP.

Total Vendor Amount

586.73

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 586.73
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

36923224,36916292.4605 02/12/2024OFFICE SUPPLIES 586.7302/12/2024 0.00

0002795

Vendor Number

SANDPIPER ENERGY INC

Total Vendor Amount

185.01

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 185.01
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

06-605972-67941-1 FEB FY 24 02/15/2024NATURAL GAS PD 185.0102/15/2024 0.00

0001904

Vendor Number

SELBYVILLE TRACTOR & EQUIPMENT INC

Total Vendor Amount

657.08

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 657.08
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

64872 02/12/2024SERVICE TRACTOR 657.0802/12/2024 0.00

0003661

Vendor Number

SHOCKLEY COLLIN

Total Vendor Amount

220.85

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 220.85
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

PER DIEM 02/12/2024MILEAGE TOLL & MEAL COLUMBIA 220.8502/12/2024 0.00

0002092

Vendor Number

THE DEPT OF PUBLIC SAFETY & CORRECTIONAL SVC

Total Vendor Amount

77.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 77.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

AB4-01-419 02/12/2024METERS LOG ON 77.0002/12/2024 0.00

0002786

Vendor Number

THE PETE STORE

Total Vendor Amount

991.40

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 991.40
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

15P224698 02/12/2024PARTS FOR SANITATION VEHICLES 138.9002/12/2024 0.00

15P225394 02/12/2024PARTS FOR SANITATION VEHICLES 852.5002/12/2024 0.00

0002163

Vendor Number

TOWN OF BERLIN

Total Vendor Amount

37,904.74

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 37,904.74
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

FEB FY 24 02/14/2024TOWN UTILITY BILLINGS 37,904.7402/14/2024 0.00

0002189

Vendor Number

ULINE

Total Vendor Amount

1,182.23

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 1,182.23
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

173948559 02/14/2024STAIINLESS TABLE LAB 1,182.2302/14/2024 0.00

133 



Payment Register APPKT02951 - 20240215SW

2/15/2024 1:55:48 PM Page 7 of 10

0002928

Vendor Number

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

Total Vendor Amount

147.63

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 147.63
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

1430113123 02/13/2024UNIFORMS FOR PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 147.6302/13/2024 0.00

0002195

Vendor Number

UNITED ELECTRIC SUPPLY

Total Vendor Amount

5,519.33

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 5,519.33
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

S105878442.001, 002 02/12/2024SURGE PROTECTORS 5,519.3302/12/2024 0.00

0002205

Vendor Number

UNITED WAY OF THE EASTERN SHORE

Total Vendor Amount

45.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 45.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

PPE 02/11/2024 02/12/2024UNITED WAY EMPLOYEE DONATIONS/CONTRIBUTIONS 45.0002/12/2024 0.00

0002220

Vendor Number

USA BLUEBOOK

Total Vendor Amount

1,038.03

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 1,038.03
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

INV00212020,00242186,187 02/12/2024SAFETY AND LAB 980.9302/12/2024 0.00

INV00242170 02/12/2024LAB SUPPLIES 57.1002/12/2024 0.00

0003387

Vendor Number

UTILITY TRANSFORMER BROKERS LLC

Total Vendor Amount

87,551.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 87,551.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

5562 02/14/20241 75KVA PAD MOUNT TRANSFORMER 13,675.0002/14/2024 0.00

5563 02/14/20241 100KV & 3-167KVA PAD MOUNT TRANSFORMERS 73,876.0002/14/2024 0.00

0003224

Vendor Number

VERIZON - RPC

Total Vendor Amount

12,660.14

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 12,660.14
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

04A0U9PK 02/14/2024MOVE VERIZON TRUNK LINE ON CEDAR 12,660.1402/14/2024 0.00

0002252

Vendor Number

VERIZON WIRELESS-720117503-00001

Total Vendor Amount

51.65

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 51.65
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

9954994363 02/15/2024MDT SERVICE 51.6502/15/2024 0.00

0003055

Vendor Number

WASHINGTON NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY

Total Vendor Amount

485.48

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 485.48
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

-P2232849 02/15/2024WASHINGTON NATIONAL EMPLOYEE PAID SUPPLEMENTAL 485.4802/15/2024 0.00

134 



Payment Register APPKT02951 - 20240215SW

2/15/2024 1:55:48 PM Page 8 of 10

0002304

Vendor Number

WEST OCEAN CITY ILLNESS & INJURY CENTER

Total Vendor Amount

170.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 170.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

21402632 02/15/2024PFALLER DOT PHYSICAL 125.0002/15/2024 0.00

21432736 02/14/2024POST ACCIDENT DRUG SCREEN BRADFORD 45.0002/14/2024 0.00

0002363

Vendor Number

WORCESTER COUNTY LANDFILL

Total Vendor Amount

17,701.60

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 17,701.60
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

124 JAN FY 24 02/13/2024RECYCLE,REFUGE, AND CAN PULLS 13,344.8002/13/2024 0.00

306 JAN FY 24 02/14/2024SLUDGE 4,356.8002/14/2024 0.00

135 



Payment Register APPKT02951 - 20240215SW

2/15/2024 1:55:48 PM Page 9 of 10

Payment Summary

Type

Payment
Count Discount Payment

Payable
CountBank Code

0.0056Check 381,413.7980BOC AP

0.0056Packet Totals: 381,413.7980

136 



Payment Register APPKT02951 - 20240215SW

2/15/2024 1:55:48 PM Page 10 of 10

Cash Fund Summary
NameFund Amount

-381,413.7998 POOLED CASH

-381,413.79Packet Totals:

137 



2/15/2024 2:10:16 PM Page 1 of 3

Payment Register
Town of Berlin, MD APPKT02953 - 20240215SW

01 - Vendor Set 01

Bank: BOC AP - BOC AP Checks

0000572

Vendor Number

COMCAST

Total Vendor Amount

33.57

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 33.57
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

41 016 0053157 FEB FY 24 02/15/2024TELEVISION SERVICE POLICE DEPT 0053157 33.5702/15/2024 0.00

0002754

Vendor Number

NOYES MICROSYSTEMS INC

Total Vendor Amount

1,699.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 1,699.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

1017333 02/15/2024IA PRO UPGRADE, SERVER TROUBLESHOOT, NEW HARD DRIV 1,699.0002/15/2024 0.00

0002304

Vendor Number

WEST OCEAN CITY ILLNESS & INJURY CENTER

Total Vendor Amount

31.00

Vendor Name

Payment AmountPayment DatePayment NumberPayment Type

Check 02/15/2024 31.00
Payable Number Description Payable AmountDue DatePayable Date Discount Amount

21439111 02/15/2024NEW HIRE DRUG TEST 31.0002/15/2024 0.00

138 



Payment Register APPKT02953 - 20240215SW

2/15/2024 2:10:16 PM Page 2 of 3

Payment Summary

Type

Payment
Count Discount Payment

Payable
CountBank Code

0.003Check 1,763.573BOC AP

0.003Packet Totals: 1,763.573

139 



2/7/2024 11:49:19 AM Page 1 of 1

Refund Check Register
Town of Berlin, MD Refund Check Detail

UBPKT10412 - Refunds 1 UBPKT10411 Single Billing

Account Name Date TypeCheck # Amount Code Receipt Amount
22-5200000-00 SHORE UP-REFUNDS 2/7/2024 26161 365.05 Deposit365.05

55-3470001-01 WILSON, DORARENO 2/7/2024 26162 194.74 Deposit194.74

Total Refunded Amount: 559.79Total Refunds: 2

Revenue Code Summary

Revenue Code  Amount
996 - UNAPPLIED CREDITS / REFUNDS 559.79

559.79Revenue Total:

General Ledger Distribution

Account Number Account Name Posting Amount IFT

Posting Date:  02/06/2024

Fund: 10 - ELECTRIC

CLAIM ON CASH-FUND 1010-1110-1098 Yes-559.79

UNAPPLIED CREDITS10-2010-2074 559.79

10  Total: 0.00

Fund: 98 - POOLED CASH

CENTRAL DEPOSITORY CASH98-1098-1000 -559.79

DUE TO OTHER FUNDS98-2498-2200 Yes559.79

98  Total: 0.00

Distribution Total: 0.00

140 



2/7/2024 11:45:28 AM Page 1 of 1

Refund Check Register
Town of Berlin, MD Refund Check Detail

UBPKT10393 - 20240131MT

Account Name Date TypeCheck # Amount Code Receipt Amount
22-5200000-00 SHORE UP-REFUNDS 1/31/2024 26160 1742.65 Deposit1,742.65

Total Refunded Amount: 1,742.65Total Refunds: 1

Revenue Code Summary

Revenue Code  Amount
996 - UNAPPLIED CREDITS / REFUNDS 1742.65

1742.65Revenue Total:

General Ledger Distribution

Account Number Account Name Posting Amount IFT

Posting Date:  02/07/2024

Fund: 10 - ELECTRIC

CLAIM ON CASH-FUND 1010-1110-1098 Yes-1,742.65

UNAPPLIED CREDITS10-2010-2074 1,742.65

10  Total: 0.00

Fund: 98 - POOLED CASH

CENTRAL DEPOSITORY CASH98-1098-1000 -1,742.65

DUE TO OTHER FUNDS98-2498-2200 Yes1,742.65

98  Total: 0.00

Distribution Total: 0.00

141 


	Staff Report Event - Alcohol at Events February 2024.docx
	SUMMARY

	Berlin Strategic Planning_ Phase1&2_ c.pdf
	Appendix A:
	Summary of 2016-2018 Strategic Plan
	Appendix B:
	SWOT Linkages as shared with Committee
	1/22/24
	Appendix C:
	Appendix D:
	Appendix E:
	INTRODUCTION
	TOWN OF BERLIN CHARACTERISTICS
	OVERVIEW OF PROJECT AND STRATEGIC PLANNING PROCESS
	PURPOSE OF THE STRATEGIC PLAN
	SWOT ANALYSIS
	STRENGTHS
	WEAKNESSES
	OPPORTUNITY
	SUMMARY SWOT ANALYSIS
	LINKAGES FROM SWOT ANALYSIS
	DRIVING STRATEGIES
	TACTICAL ACTION PLAN

	2.05.24 Special Open Session Minutes.docx
	Present: Mayor Zackery Tyndall, Vice President Dean Burrell, Councilmembers Steve Green, Shaneka Nichols, and Jack Orris.

	2.12.2024 Regular Session Minutes.docx
	Present: Mayor Zackery Tyndall, Vice President Dean Burrell, Councilmembers Steve Green, Jay Knerr, and Jack Orris.


	Name of NonProfit organization: Berlin, MD Chamber of Commerce
	Mailing address: PO Box 212 Berlin, MD 21811
	Business Telephone no: 410-641-4775
	Federal tax identification number: 52-2535174
	Location: Main St. Berlin MD. MD-818
	Wine Festival dates: Saturday May 4, 2024
	Hours of Operation: 10a-6p
	1 Name: Ryan Nellans
	Phone Number: 302-290-9736
	Name of program: TIPS
	2 Name: David Fitzgerald
	Phone Number_2: 410-726-9083
	Name of program_2: TIPS
	Printed Name: Ryan C Nellans
	we are the owners of the property known as 1: Berlin Main Street
	we are the owners of the property known as 2: 
	Type or print name of owner partner or corporate officer: Zackery Tyndall
	Title: Mayor, Town of Berlin, MD
	Date_2: 
	Name of Corporation Partners of Partnership or Individual include Trade Name: Berlin, MD Chamber of Commerce
	Title_2: Executive Director
	Federal Identification Number andor Social Security Number: 52-2535174
	Date_3: 
	Provide details of the Wine Festival: Beer, Wine & Spirits tastings, and drinks available for 
	Provide details of the Wine Festival 2: purchase. Live Music & Arts vendors.
	Provide details of the Wine Festival 3: 
	Complete Mailing Address: PO Box 212 Berlin, MD 21811
	Complete Mailing Address 2: 
	County 1: 
	Mailing 2: 
	County 2: Berlin's Main St
	County 3: Berlin, MD
	1: 
	0: Off
	1: Off
	2: Off

	2: Yes
	3: Off
	4: Yes
	5: Off
	6: Yes
	7: Off


